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Cl. of the Cr. He hath challenged twenty eight
peremptorily. - Lo

Cl. of the Cr. Nathaniel Wd.'{ff;}'-

Prifomer. 1 don’t challenge bim. _

Mr. At Gen: -1 challenge him for the King,

Cl. of the Cr. Benjamin Rutland,

Prifower. My Lord, 1 defire he may be afked
whether he doth not farm fomething under the
King or on the Foreft. o '

L. C. Fuit, If it was of any Secrvice to you It
thould be done; but if it is fo, it is no Objec-
tion. '

Mr. Ketelbey, The ObjeCtion was once made
in the Cafe of Sir #illiam Perkins, It was recom-+
mended to the King’s Counfel.

LE.C. Fust. 1 deny it. It was not recom-
mended to the King’s Counfel, but the King’s
Counfel did not infift upon it. -

Mr. Fust, Fortefene Aland. The Court in that
Cafe gave their Opinion, that to be a Servant to
thé King was no good Caufe of Challenge, and
my Lord Chief Fupice Holt and Trely werc
prefent, and Mr. Attorney General did not infift
on the Jury-man fo challenged, but waved the
Matter without any Recommendation of the
Court, |

M. Ketelbey. I know no other ways, than if
Mr. Attorney will do it, as ‘it was done in that
Cale,

Mr. Ait. Gen. 1 know nothing of the Fadt.

L. C. Fuff. What do you do, do you challenge
himor no?

Prifoner, T challenge him.

Cl of the Cr, Alexander Marfhall,

Thomas Selby,
Challenged by the Prifoner.

Cl.of the Cr. fobn Milligande.

Mr. Hupgerford, My Lord, he is fearching for
a Paper ; he challenges him for Caufe.

Prifoner. My Lord, what I have to offer s,
that this Mr, Milligande hath been heard to fay,
before he came here, that I ought to be hanged 3
and I apprehend that is good Caufe for challeng-
g him, if I make it out.

David Martin called:

Cryer, You fhall true Anfwer make, &e.

Mr, Hungerford, Do you know Mr., Mille-
gonde ?

Martin, Yes. |

Mr, Hungerford, What have you heard him de-
clare concerning, the Prifoner at the Bar ?

Martin, ¥ heard huim 1n Converfation fay, that
he hoped he fhould be hanged, for, he believed he
was Guilty.

Mr. Hungerford. This Objeétion {fure is right,
{Mr. Milligande was not fworn. ]

CI. of the Cr. Robert Walker.

Prifoner, I challenge him,

Cl. of the Cr. William Nicholfon.  Sworn,

Prifoner, My Lord, I have very near all my
Challenges, I think they may go on as they are
called, if Mr. Attorney will challenge no more.

Mr. Att. Gen. Youmay go on your own way,
I fhyll make no Bargains with you.

‘Mr. Ketelbey. We don’t offer- any Bargain,
but only an Expedient to fave the Time of the
Court,

Cl. of the Cr. Nicholas Freeman,

Prifoner. 1 challenge him.

Gl of the Cr. Chriftopher Hill,

Gl, of the Cr, Stephen Wood,

Prifgner. 11think I'have dong all my Challenges,

Sworn.

Cl. of the Cr. You have two more;

Prifoner, Let them take them then as they
come. R o

Mr. A, Gen, 1 challenge him for.the King.

Cl. of the Cr. Richard Biidge.

Prifoner. 1 challenge him,

Fobn Batnes, et alide by Confent, by Rea-
{on of Infirmity. .

Cl. of the Cr. Robert Barnard.

Cl. of the Cr. Leonard Benneit.

Prifoner, 1don’t challenge him.

Mr. Ai. Gen. I challenge him for the King.

Cl. of the Cr. William Sandford.

Prifoner. My Lord, I have the fame Objedti-
on to this Gentleman as to the other, he hath de-
clared his Opinion before-hand, and that he muit
make a Sacrifice of me.

L. C. Fuft. Call your Witnefs.

Mr. Martin {worn.

Mr. Ketelbey. Mr. Martin, do you know Vil
Jiom Sendferd of Rumford ?

Martin, Yes.

Mz, Ketelbey. Have you had any Difcourfe with
him about the Prifoner at the Bar ?

Moartin, He faid, before he was fummoned on
the Jury, that if he was one of the Jury, he would
be for hanging of him. Set afide.

Cl. of the Cr. Thomas Waters.

Prifoner. Sir, I apprehend I have challenged
thirty five.

Cl. of the Cr. You have one more.

Prifover. 1 will challenge no more, let them

Sworn,

o0 O,
Cl. of the Cr. Thomas IVaters, Sworn.
Richard Gray, Sworn,
William Wheatly.,

Mt. Hungerford, 1 hope that what I am going
to offer is proper. There 15 fome hittle doube
how far he is gone in his Challenges, 1t is faid he
hath one more, if the Court would indulge us
fo far as to let the Perfons challenged be called
over.

Cl. of the Cr. It is impoffible that we fhould
miftake.

Mr. Hungerford. You fay he hath one more.

C. of the Cr. Yes.

William H beatly, Sworn.

Then the twelve Jurors wio were fworn were
counted, and their Names were as follow, vz,

Thomas Clarke, Gent,
Ifaac Potter, Gent.
Hezekiah Haynes, Gent.
Fobun Lowry, Gent.
Thomas Prat, Gent,
Francis Aylett, Gent.

William Nicholfon, Lfq;
Chriftopher Hill, Gent.
Robert Barnard, Gent,
Thomas Waters, Gent,
Richard Gray, Gent.

William- TV heatly, Gent.

Cl. of the Cr, Cryer, make Proclamation.
Cryer. O yes, If any one can inform, v,
Cl. of the Cr. Chrifiapher Layer, Hold up your
Hand. Gentlemen of the Jury, look upon the
Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe,

He ftands indicted by the Name of Chriffopher
Layer, late of the Parifh of St, Audrew’s Holborn,
in the County of Middlefex, Efg; For that he,
{gt. Upon this Indictment he hath been
Jately arraigned, and thereunto hath pleaded Not
Guilty, and for his Trial hath put himfelf vpon
God and the Country, which Country you are.
Your Charge is to enquire whether he be guilty
of this High Treafon, in Manner and Form as
he ftands indiCted, or Not Guilty, If you find

him
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; 1ev. vou fhall enquire what Goods or Chat-
]tle][;: ?.Suit?;!gr Tencmen?s he had, at the Time
of the faid High Treafon committed, or at any
Time fince; If you find him not Guilty, you
fhall enquire whether he fled for 1t. If you ﬁn;l
that he did fly for ity you fhall enquire of his
Goods and Chattels, as if you had found him
Guilty. If you find him not Guilty, and that
he did not fly for it, fay fo, and no more, and hear
your Evidence. _ |

Mr. Wearg., May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, this 1s an Indiétment
aoainft the Prifoner for High Treafon. “The In-
dictment fets forth, That he being a Subject of
his prefent Majefty King George, but not having
the Fear of God in his Heart, nor confidering
the Duty of his Allegiance, as a falfe Traitor a-
cainft his fupreme, true, lawful, and undovbted
Lord, contriving and to the utmoft of his Power
intending to change, alter and fubvert the Go-
vernment of this Kingdom, lawfully and happily
eftablithed under his prefent Majefty, and to de-
pofe and deprive his faid Majefty of his Thtle,
Honour, Royal Eftate and Government of this
Kingdom; and toadvance to the Crown and Go-
vernment of this Realm, the Perfon in the Life
of the late King Fames 1. pretended to be Prince
of IWales, and after the Deceale of thefaid King
Sames pretending to be and taking upon himiclf
the Siile and Title of King of England, by the
Name of Fames III. did upon the twenty ffth
Day of Auguft, in the ninth Year of his prefent
Majefty’s Reign, and at feveral other Days and
Times, at Layton-Stone, in the County of Effex,
falfely, malicioufly, and traiteroufly, compafs,
imagne, and intend to depofe our faid Sovereign
Lord King George, from his Title, regal State
and Government, and the faid King to kill and
bring to utter Deftruction,

The Indi@ment further fets forth, That he the
faid Christepher Layer, to perfet and bring to
Effe® his Treafon and traiterous Purpofts, on
the faid twenty fifth Day of Augufl, and at feve-
ral other Days and Times, at Layton-Stone afore-
faid, together with divers other falfe Traitors,
to the Jury unknown, did falfely, malicioufly,
and traiteroufly meet, confult, confpire and agrec,
to move and {tir up an Infurreétion and Rebellion
in this Kingdom, againft our faid Sovereign Lord
the King.

'The Indictment further fets forth, That he the
faid Chrisigpher Layer, to perfet and compleat
his Treafon and traiterous Purpofes, on the faid
rwenty ffth of Augeft, at Layton-Stone aforefaid,
with Force and Arms, did fallely, malicioufly,
and traiteroufly publifh a certain malicious, fedi-
uous, and traiterous Writing, containing m it {elf,
and purporting to be, an Exhortation and Pro-
mife of Rewards to the Subjects of his faid Ma-
jefty, to perfuade and excite them to take up
Arms and levy War againft our faid Sovereign
King George.

The Indiftinent further fets forth, That the
- aid Chriflopher Layer, together with other falfe
Yraitors to the Jury unknown, to compleat and
bring to Effect his traiterous Purpofes, on the
lad twenty fifth Day of Auguf?, at Layton-Stone
aforefaid, with Force and Arms, did falfely,
malicioully, and traiteroully meet, confult, con-
Ipire and agree, to exalt to the Crown and Royal
Dignity of this Realm the Perfon in the Life of

the latc King Fames T1. pretended to be Prince
Vor. VI, |
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of Wales, by means of an armed Force and Troops

of Soldiers, for that Purpofe to be rafed and
levied.

The Indiément further fets forth, That the faid
Chrifopber Layer, to perfet his faid Treafon, on
the faid twenty Bith Day of Augus?, at Layton-
Stone aforefard, malicioufly and traiteroufly did
rafe, levy, and retain feveral Men, to the Jury
unknown, to take up Arms and levy War with-
in this Kingdom, againt our faid Sovereign Lord
the King,

That the faid Chriffopher Layer, to perfe& his
treafonable Purpofes on the faid twenty fifth Day
of Angust, at Layton-Stone aforefaid, together with
divers other falfe Traitors, to the Jury unknown,
did falfely, malicioufly, and traiteroufly meet, con-
{pire and agree, to take, feize, imprifon and de-
tun in Cuftody the Sacred Perfon of our faid So-
vereign Lord the King, againft the Duty of his
Allegiance, aguinft the Peace of the King, his
Crown and Dignity, and againft the Form of the
Statute in that Cafe made and provided. To
this IndiCtment the Prifoner hath pleaded, Not
Guilty.

Mr, Seiy. Pengelly. May it pleafe your Lord-
fhip, and Gentlemen of the Jury; the Prifoner
at the Bar, Mr. Layer, comes now to be tried be-
fore you, fora wicked and deteftable Confpiracy
agantt the Perfon of his Majefly, and againft his
Government 3 and this in favour of an attainted
and abjured Pretender; a Pretender whom the
Prifoner himfelf has abjured in Words, and ought
to have renounced 1n his Feart,

The Indictment contains a Charge of High-
Treafon againit the Prifoner at the Bar, for com-
pafling and intending the depofing the King, and
alfo lus Death and Defltrution,

The particular Faéts Jaid to prove this traite-
rous Imagination and Intent, and which the Pri-
foner put in Execution, in order to bring to Effeét
his treafonable Purpoles, are five,

The firlt is ; That the Prifoner, with other T'rai-
tors, did confult, confpire, and agree to raife a ge-
neral Infurretion and Rebellion in this Nation a-
gainft his Majefty.

The next; That he did publifh a feditious and
treafonable Declaration, containing Incitements,
and Promifes of Reward, whereby to excite and
ftir up his Majefty’s Subje@ts to tke up Arms,
and to levy War againft his Majefty within chis
Realm.

And farther; That he, with other Traitors,
confpired, confulted and agreed, by an armed
Force, to exalt, and bring the Pretender to his
Majefty’s Crown, to the Throne of thefe King-
doms, and put him into the Poffeflion of the Go-
vernment thereof,

That hath provided, levied, and retained fe-
veral Perfons, to take up Arms, and to levy War
againft his Majefty within this Kingdom, for the
executing thefe traiterous Purpoles.

The laft Overt-A& alledged, and to finifh this
Confpiracy, is, That he, with the other Traitors,
confulted, confpired, and agreed to {eize upon,
Em{;l to imprifon the facred Perfon of his Ma-
jetty.

Gentlemen, it is unneceflary, when thefe Falts
are opened to you, to acquaint you, that an At-
tempt of this Natute, if ic had fucceeded, would
have been the Subverfion of the prefent happy
Eftablithment, and the Proteftant Succeflion, fo

often confirmed by the Confent of the whole Na-
K k tion,
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tion, and the only Sccurity of your teligious and
civil Rights and Libertics 5 they would all have
been expoled to the Arbitrary Power of a Popifh
Faction, under the Tyranny of the Pretender.

Gentlemen, having faid this to fhew the Na-
ture of the Offence ; we (who are Counfel for
his Majefty) fhall proceed to lay before you the
particular Evidence againit the Pnﬁ;mer at the
Bar : Gentlemen, we have been fo fortunate as
to difcover, and fhall produce before you, the
very Plan itlelf, upon which thefe Conlpirators
proceeded, and which was to bz put in Execu-
tion. _

We fhall produce the Plan under the Prifoner’s
own Hand-writing, and fhew his acting corre-
{pondent to that Plan, and in the Execution there-
of 5 this Plan is a compleat Scheme of a treafon-
able Infurrc€tion, 1f that may be called complear
which tends to utter Deftruction ; for if the fe-
veral Parts therein contained had been execured, it
would have been a total Overturning of the Go-
vernment and. Conftitution,

But you may oblurve a Regularity going thro’
the whole Scheme,

The Place of A&tion, and the Scene where this
Confpiracy was frft to be put in Exccution, was
in the City of Londen, and the’ in the Plan it felf
the Day 15 not mentioned, yet we fhall thew to
you, by the Prifoner’s own Declaration and Dif-
covery, the Time when it was to be executed 5 it
was at the breaking up of the Camp of his Ma-
jefty’s Forces in Hyde- Park,

Gentlemen, the Plan conmins a Difpofition of
feveral Officers, who were appointed to their par-
ticular Stations, and were to be fupplyed with
Men defigned to be procured for the Execution
of this Pian 5 and, as the Confpirators hoped to
debauch pare of the Army, thefe Officers were to
be difpofed at feveral Places, 1o receive the pri-
vate Muen, who, to the Numbor of about two
Fundred (towards the Iivoningof the Day agrecd
upon for Exccution) were (o o {ingly out of the
Camp, without their Arms, that they might more
cafily pafs without Obfervation, and were to be
collected togetherata Place of Rendezvous ap-
pointed them.

Gentlemen, from the Manacement of the Con-
fpiracy, and the Method they had taken to carry
iton, and the Hopes they had entermined, the
Confp.rators concluded, they fhould have that
Number ot two hundred Men ready in one Body,
to bt commanded by proper Officers, to make
the firlt Attempt, and che frft Stand.

At the Place of Rendezvous they were to be
fopplyed with Mufkets ready loaded, and to re-
ceive thetr Arms, which were to be diftributed
to them a hittle before the Hour of Niue 5 at
which Hour exactly, they were to march direclly
to the Tower of Londsn, (as the Plan propofes,
and as the Prifoner agreed and declared) where
they might expect to be admitied, by the Help
and Affittance of their Friend, the Officer upon
the Guard; and as foon as they had entered,
they were to fhut up the Zower Gates, and feize
the Arms,

Their General was to make his Stand in Perfon
at the Koyal Exchange ; at the fame time, it is di-
reted by the Plan, and was confulted upon, and
agreed by the Prifoner himfelf, they were to at-
tempt toarreft the Perfons of feveral great Men ;
and although the Plan doth not name the Perfons,
yer the Prifoner hath explain’d it fully, and from
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his own Mouth we fhall prove; who the patticular
Perfons are, thus intended to'be feized, @

A Declaration was to be difperfed to excite
People to come in to the Rebels ; the Gates of
the City of London were to be fhut up, and
Cannon brought down againft them: They were
then to fet a Guatd over the Bank 5 but in the
firft Place, they were to take out Money fuffici-
ent to pay their Men, fuch as they hoped would
appear 1n their Intereft : Their feveral other Par-
ties were to fecure the Artillery in the Camp, the
Guns in the Privy-Garden, the Cannon and Am-
munition neat the MHorfe-Guards in St. Fames’s
Paoik,

Thefe were the firft Operations : But to finifh
this villanous and execrable Defign, at the Time
the Tower was leized, and the City in Arms,
they were to fend a Detatchment to fize the Per-
fon of his Majefty ; and this they exprefled in
thetr Plan to be, for the fecuring his Perfon from
the Mob. But our King was to be delivered to
their General at the Tower, and to be put under
his Cuftody. Thus the Life of his Majefty was
to be in their Power,

After this, there are feveral other Difpofitions
of Officers, and other Perlons, in order to ex-
cite and carry on the Rebellion : Some were to
appear in Tothil-Fields, fome in Sowthwark, who
were to give Arms to the Minters 3 {fome at Green-
wich, to engage the Watermen, and feize the
Magazine and Powder there, ahd others at other
Places.

Gentlemen, you will find in this Plan a2 Pre-
paration to make an entire Conqueft of the Ci-
ties of Londonand Weftminfler 3 upon which the
Confpirators hoped the reft of the Kingdom would
declare for the Pretender : And there is one par-
ticular Provifton in the Plan, that as they pro-
ceeded here, and found Succefs, the General
fhould immediately difpatch Meffengers into the
feveral Counties of England, to give Intellipence
of their Progrefs, and to perfuade thofe, who
they looked upon to be in their Intereft, to de-
clare for the Pretender, and to rife in their refpec-
tive Counties with their Adherents.

This 15 the Plan upon which the Confpiracy is
carried on 5 and as we fhall produce this Plan,
which the Prifoncr hath fupplied himfIf with, and
written with his own Hand, we beg leave to
infilt upen that, as ftrong Evidence againft the
Prifoner, upon the Overt-Adts alledged in the In-
dictment, of his confulting and confpiring to raife
a Rebellion and Infurretion in the Nation, and
to feize the King’s Perfon,

Gentlemen, upon this Plan, which the Prifon-
erat the Bar had thus furnifhed himfelf with, you
will find, on the Examination of our Witnefies,
that he conftantly afted ; he declared for, and
p;omotcd the Iixecution of the principal Parts
of it.

Gentlemen, the Witnefles we fhall call who
were engaged with the Prifoner at the Bar, in this
Delign, are Stephen Lynch and Matthewy Plunkett s
(which laft had been a Serjeant in the Army) with
whom the Prifoner confulted, and whom he en-
gaged In this defperate Attempt; and we fhall
call fome other Witnefies to confirm feveral Cir-
cumftances in their Evidence.

Mr. Lynch is a Petfon the Prifoner might have
reafonable Hopes of engaging in this Service : He
had been formerly acquainted with one Dr. Mar-
hey, who (I am inftructed) was in the Rebellion

that
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that broke out in the Beginning of his Majefty’s
Reign: Mr. Lyneh having l:gccn abrt::;acl, }Ind &b.'
fent for fome time, returned into Eiagland in April
lat: Upon his Return, Dr. Muiphey, his old Ac-
quaintance, I€CEs with him, bids him wclcome
to Englaind, and tells him that an Affair was go-
ing on by which he might make his I:"ortune,
and advifes him not to go out of Euglang: That
there was an Intention o rife in Favour of the
Pretender, whom he called his King, and he
would take care to recommend Mr. Lyirch to a
Perfon who had a great Part in that Aftair,

Mr, Lynch having fuffered before, and run a
great Hazard, was unwilling immediately to Cen-
ter into any Lngagement, but propofed, that if
he could have fufficient Encouragement, and what
he expected as 2 Reward, he f(hould b_:.: willing
to ftay, Somx time after Dr. AMuiphey nltro:.h_lces
Lyiuch to the Priloner at the Bar: The firft time
they met, Ithinkit was the Baginning of J iz
lalt, they went to the Prifonet’s Lodgings, which
where then at the upper End of Ctraiceyy-Laie s
and he being about to remove his Goods, defired
them to oo to a Tavern hard by, the Giiffir Ta-
vern in Helbsuiie.  To this Place the Prifoner at
the Barcame, where Dr. Aduipbey prefented Lyanch
¢y Mr. Layer, asthe Gentleman Dr. Muiphey had
before recommended to himy Mr. Layer receiv-
ed Mr. Lynch at that ume with great Civility,
and tells him, that the Recommendation he had
received of Lyiuch from Dr. Muiphey, made him
not to doubt of his Integrity and Ability.  Then
they entered upon a Confultation as to the carry-
ing on of this Defigny Mr. Layer mtroduced it
with reprefenting an Uneafinefs in the Nation in
oeneral, and how fair an Opportunity there was
to bring about @ Revolution : But Mr. Layer tells
him, that one of the firt and principal Steps
was to feize upon a Generaly or other great Man,
(which you will obferve is one part of the Scheme)
and upon Dr. Muiphey’s Recommendation of
himasa it Man for that Service, Layerr propofes
to Lynch to undertake it, At this time Lyich
acquainted LZayer with the Difficulties he had bee
in, and that an Aftair of this Nature would take
up fome time before 1t could be put in Execution,
and he could not well engage in it without fome
farther Lncouragement, and a Reward in Money,
1n order that he might live ealy and well while
he ftaid here. Upon that, the Prifoner at the
Bar promifed him Supplies of Money for his
Subliftence and Expences, wiat fhould be necef-
fary, befides future Rewards; and in purfuarce
of that Promife, Layer hath feveral times fupplied
Lyich with Money, to engage him more cffectu-
ally in this Defign, and to fupport himin it. By
thefe Affurances Lynch was prevailed upon, and
then agreed to enter into this Confpiracy, and to
take upon him the Part therein that fhould be fig-
nified to him,

Gentlemen, the Prifoner did not then make a
full Dilcovery of the Perfon that was to be feized
but they were to mect again, as they did, abous
the latter end of 7w, at the fame Tavern: There
the Prifoner difclofed to the Witnefs the particular
Perlon who was defigned to be firlt feized. He
acquaints the Witnefs, that the Perfon he (the
Prifoner) intended at their former Mecting, and
wnom he defigned the Witnefs fhould feize, is
the General of the Army, the Farl Cadsgan; and

yireh was to find out {uch other Perfons as he
could rely upen, for the affitting in, and efe@ing
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that Linterprize ; whereunto Lyueh agreed. ZLayer
then acquainted him what Steps were already made
in the Conlfpiracy, and that they were to be head-
ed and commanded by a General, who had Wit
and Courage and Refolution, and who were fup-
ported by a great many Friends, who had full
Power and Authority from the Pretender (whom
he cailed King) to a&t, and who was Intrufted with
2 Commiflion as his General, and whofe Orders
Lyneh was to obey, -

The Prifoner and Lyweh had feveral other
Meetings, fome at the Grffin ‘Tavern, and others
ac the Prifoner’s own Houfe in Old Southainpton
Buildirgs, where the Prifoner always encouraged
Lyach 1o perfilt in the Undertaking, by afluring
him that all Things went on well, and that the
Defign was fo well laid, that it could not pro-
Lably milcarry: That they fhould be aflifted by
a great many Officers, as foon as any Motion
was made, and that the common Soldiers would
declare upon the hrit Opportunity @ and being
afked by Lyich, whether they had no Foreign
Affiltance to depend ony the Prifoner anfwered,
when we beain the Bufinefs, we fhall not want
Reliet, if requifite. At one of thefe Meetings
the Prifoner revealed to the Witnefs, that, upon
the Rifing, the Zower would be delivered up o
them, by muans of an Othcer, who was to be
upon the Guard there on the Day of Exceution
and that the People in the A i Southwark
would come 1nto them; who, and all others that
thould repair to their Party, fhould have. Arms
delivered to them; and that the whole Defign
fhould bz put in Iixecution at the Breaking up
of the Camp, which would be the moft proper
Time for the ipaking with the Soldiers in the
Army.

But at a Meeting they had, fome time in -
guft, at the Queen’s Head ‘Tavern in Great Queci-
Street ncar Lincolw’'s L Fields, Lyich complain-
ing of the Delay in putting their Defion in Exe-
cution, and reprefenting the Danger of ir, and
withal prefling to know his mntended General and
Commander, the Prifoner gave him great Iin-
covragement, from the goud Profpet ol their
Aftars, and the Vigilence of the Noble-Man at
the Helm, who would lofc no Opportunity, when
a convenient Lime fhould offer; and promifed
the Witnefs, that he fhould be prefented to this
wble Porfon 1n due time, from whom Lyich
fhould receive his Orders, or Commiflion for
executing lus Pare, and entering upon his Enter-
prize,

And accordingly, upon the twenty fourth Day
of AAugnfl, Mr. Layer invites Lyuch to ride out of
Town with him the next Day to take the Air,
which Lyuch comply’d with; and on the twenty
nfth of Auguft in the Morning, Lyneh went to the
Prifoner’s Houle, who appointed Lynch to 2o be-
fore, and to ftay without Aldgate.

At that Time the Prifoner afked the Witnefs,
whether he mounted wita Furniture or Pittols s
who anfwering that he did not, but that he had
a Double-Barre]l Fowling-Piece, which the Prifon-
er’s Servynt might carry; the Prifoner direted
him to get his Piece ready loaden, becanfe he
( Laver) thould carry fomething with him, which
he would not lofe for all the World., Lyuch and
the Prifoncr met without Aldgate at eleven belore
Necon, and the Prifoner’s Servant carried the Gun,
and they rode together toward’s Eppiny in Fffex,
which was the Place they were going to.

Kk?2
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Upon the veay as they proceeded; Mr. Layer
told the Witnefs, that they were going to the
Houfe of the Lord North and Grey, where he
would prefent Iynch to his Lordfhip, asa par-
sicular Friend of his (the Prifoner’s.) When they
came to the Green Max at Layton-Stone, at the
Entrance upon Epping-Foreft, the Prifoner faid,
it might be beft to eat fomething there, becaufe
they (hould be too late for the Lord Norsh and
Grey’s Dinner; and accordingly they ftopt at this
Houfe to Dine.

Gentlemen, You will hear from the Witricls
that at this Place, the Prifoner and Zy#eh had an-
other Confultation, wherein there was a Repitt-
on and Confirmation of the whole Defign and
Confpiracy. At this Green Man, in your Coun-
ty, Gentlemen, you will find every principal
Part of the Confpiracy, which was to be execut-
ed, confulted upon, and agreed unto by them
both: The Time and Manner of the Infurreéti-
ons the Preparations making for 1t, the Affiftance
to be provided and expected from the Army, from
many in the City of London, and from the Gene-
rality of the Nation, as was then fuggefted; the
Seizing the Farl of Cadggan as the firtk Step, and
the Surprizing the Tower in the Manner mentioned
in the Plan, by the Help of the Officer upon the
Guard ; and then they proceeded to confider and
approve the moft daring and execrable Part of the
Plan, which was then exprelly repeated by the
Prifoner, the making 2 {trong Detachment to Sieze
on his Majefty’s Perfon.

The Prifoner then declared his great Satisfacti-
on, in having engaged a Perfon of fuch Courage

and Condut as Mr, Lynch, i the Attempt of
Scizing the Earl Cadogan; and likewife named
the feveral other great Men, hinted at in the
Scheme, whofe Perfons were to be feized, and of
whom he had made up his Collection in purfuance
of the Plan; and then exprefs’d his Withes fo to
bring Matters to bear, that Mr. Lynch might like-
wife have the fole Dircction apprehending the Per-
fons of fome of his Majefty’s Minifters, the Lords
Townfbend and Cartzret, hus Majelty’s principal Se-
cretaries of State, and Mr. Walpole, firft Lord
CommifTioner of the Treafury.

Thefe Perfons, moft immediately intrulted in
his Majefty’s Service, were in the firlt Place to be
feized, in order to facilitate the Defign, and to
smake it fuccelsful. By this means the Confpira-
tors were to weaken his Majefty’s Power of De-
fending himfelf, when they had deprived him of
his General, who was to command and conduct
his Army; of his two Secretaries, who were to
maintain and carry on his Intelligence; and of the
firlt CommifTioner of his Treafury, who was to
take Care for his Supply.

At this Place thefe things were debated and
confidered between them: Mr. Lyuch then again

comphined of the long Delay, and wifhed that
the Affair might be carried on with more Expe-
dition: The Prifoner thought no time fo proper
as the Breaking up of the Camp, when they
might be fupplied with Soldicrs; yet he was wil-
ling to hear any Propofal from Mr. Lynch, and
defired Mr. Lynch, that if he could think of any
fpeedier Method, or better Scheme, to let him
know it: But the Witnefs was not capable to
propofc any way more proper, than what had
been agreed upon the Foot of the Plan, as it had
been expliined by the Prifoner himfelf, and there-
fore Mr, Lynch acquicfced therein,

Layer, £fg; Mich. o. LG,

Gentlemen; at that time, and at the fame Place,
the Overt-A&t laid in the Indictment, of publifh-
ing the treafonable Writing, was committed ;
which was a2 Declaration framed in the Hand.
writing of the Prifoner; to be publithed immedi-
ately on the firlt Breaking out of the Confpiracy,
to excite the King’s Subjeéts to take up Arms,
and to enter Into a Rebellion againft himy and
that 1t might have an Influence on the Army,
where their Hopes were placed, it took Notice,
that the King’s General was feized, and in their

Cuftody.

In this Declaration particular Rewards are pro-
mifed to the Horfe and Foot in the Army; dif-
ferent Allowances are made, to every Horfe-man
and Serjeant three Guineas; two Guineas to every
Corporal, and one Guines to every common Sol-
dier: All had Promifes of Encouragement, Fa-
vour, and future Reward.

Gentlemen, after this was read, the Prifoner

put this Declaration up into his Pocket agains
and afterwards (as he acquainted the Witnefs) he
himfelf made an Alreration thereing it containing
at firlt a general Invitation to a Revolt, but was
not direfted in the Name of any particular Per-
fon, therefore the Prifoner thought fit afterwards
toulter it, (as he informed Lynch) and to make it
in the Name of the Pretender, as King,
- Gentlemen, though their Hopes and Expeéta-
tions were founded on corrupting and Debauch-
ing the Army; I mention it only, as it was their
Expetation and Defign, without any Imputati-
on on the Honour or Fidelity of the Gentlemen
of the Army: But Perfons who undertake an Af-
fair of this Nature, are always forward to expect
that their Defigns will be fuccefsful,

This, Gentlemen, which I have mentioned to
you, which will be more fully and particularly
given in Evidence to you, againft ehe Prifoner at
the Bar, was tranfaéted and committed in the
County of Effex.

My Lord, this will be Fvidence of moft of
the Overt-Aéts alledged in the Indictment in the
County of Eflex 3 but we fhall confirm this Evi-
dence by the Confeflion of the Prifoner, proved
by two Witnefls, in whofe Prefence he acknow-
ledged the feveral Falts, which will be charged
upon him in the County of Zffex, by the Teti-
mony of Mr. Lynch; and {hall make Proof of
other Qvert-Acts in the County of AMiddlefex ; tor
it was impoffible a Defign fo extenfive fhould be
confined to one or two particular Places within the
fame County : Their Confultattons mult be tranf-
ferred from Place to Place, as Opportunity offered,
and as they thought moft conducive to the Purpofe
they were engaged in.

But the Fats I have mentioned, were tranfaét-
ed, Gentlemen, in your County.  After the Pri-
foner and Mir. Zymch had fewtled chefe Affairs at
the Green Man, they went to the Houle of my
Lord North and Grey at Epping: They {taid there
all Night, and dined there the next Day; the
Witnels was introduced and prefented to his T.ord-
fhip by Layer, and was civilly reccived and en-
tertained; and the Prifoner at the Bar, as he
and Lynch returned home, afked the Witnefs
how he liked his Lordfhip, and affured Mr.
Lynch for his Encouragement, that he had great-
ly recommended him (the Witnefs) to his Lord-
fhip.

The Prifoner and Lyich met a fecond time at

the Lord North and Grep’s Houle, where Lyich
declared
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declared he would withdraw himfelf, if things
were not put in Execution; to which Laer re-
plied, they would be fooner put in Execution than
Lynch imagined. ‘ _ _

Gentlemen, you may perceive, by this Lvi-
dence, the Prifoner’s Explanation of the whole
Scheme, and his Execution of it, fo far as was
1 his Power; tho’, blefled be God, thefe, or
any farther Attempts of this kind, have not hi-
therto prevailed,

The Prifoner proceeds farther; and the next
Witnefs who will be produc’d againft him, isone
who had been a Servant in the Army, Matthew
Pluykett.  Plunkett had been formerly acquainted
with the Prifoner, and done him a piece of Ser-
vice; he was made ule of to refeue fome Goods,
when they were taken In Iixecution at the Houfe
where Laver lodged; which was the begining of
their Acquaintance: This, with fome other Re-
commendations from Perfons engazed in this De-
fign, induced the Prifoner at the Bar to make
Offers to him, as you will hear from the Wit-
nefs, .

In Yume 1722, another Perfon of the fime
Name, one Fames Plunkett was dire€ted by M,
Layer to goto this Serjeant Plunkett, and delire
hini to meet Layer at the Italian Cofice-houfe in
Riffel-Court. The Witnefs could not at that time,
at leaft did not think 1t proper to go to the Place
appointed; buta Day or two after, Mr. Layer
meets him in Lincoln’s-Tnn- Fields, and takes him
afide under a Gate-way near Turn-Stile: Layer
then told Plunkett, he would inform him of a
Matter that would be of great Advantage and
Benefic to Him ; there Layer let himinto this Con-
Ipiracy, and engaged the Witnefs in it; not only
by aflurance and promife of Reward, but by ac-
tual Reward and Money given him; and to in-
duce and to encourage Plunkett the more, Layer
acquainted him, that there were feveral Perfons
of great Eftates, who were tefolved to refcue
themfclves, and the Nation from the Calamitics
and Slavery, that they then ehdured ; and that
they intended to bring about a Revolution, and
reftore their King the Pretender ; Plunkers object-
ed, that the Pretender was a Papift 5 but the Pri-
foner reply’d, there was no difference between a
Papift and a Lutheran King; and therefore, that
ought to make no Impreflion upen Plusilett, to
hinder him in joining to bring in a Papift,

The Prifoner enquired of Pluitkett, whethet he
had not an Acquaintance in the Army with fome
Officers, and with the common Soldiers: and then
engaged Plunkett to levy what Perfons he could
Into thetr Service ;and when the Witnefs to]d Layer,
he knew twenty or thirty Serjeans in the Army,
proper Perfons to beapplied to, the Prifoner oave
Plunkett Diretions to make Application to them,
and to have them enroll’d; and at that Meeting
the Prifoner gave the Witnefs Money for his En-
couragement 3 and as they had feveral other Meet-
ings after this, to provide and levy Men, the
Direction and Employment given by Layer to the
Witnefs, was, to take care to find out theit Lodg-
ings, and to make Lifts of the Men, of their Narnes,
and Places of Abode, that they might be ready
upon Notice,

The Prifoner not only employed Pluskett to
procure, and involl as many as he could get; but
gave him Money for one particular Perfon, one
Chila, who had ferved in the Army, and who
was recommend to Layer by Plunkett, as a Per-

for High-Trealon.
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fon ‘that had been difoblig™d by having beeh turn-
ed out of the Service 3 Layer himRIf gave Pl
kett half a Guinea, for to give to this Perfon, to
engage him in this Confpiracy, which Plunkett
accordingly paid Child: Layer likewife ordered
Money at other times to be given ta Plunkcts,
and ac one time particularly acquainted him; that
the Prifoner had left a Guinea with one Fefferies
a Non-juring Parfony to give to him, who had
civen Plunkett but half a Guinea,

The Prifoner at the Bar; to encourage Pluy-
kett, acquainted him with the Perfons, whom
Layer expelted to join in this Confpiracy 3 and
afked the Witnefs his Opinion of feveral, the Wit-
nefs will tell you the Names of the Perfons, and
what Anfwers he gave; particularly that Layer
afked him what he thought of the Lord Noyth and
Grey, for an Officer to be at their Head? The
Witnels anfwer’d, though he had never ferv'd
under him, he look’d upon his Lordfhip as a great
Man,

They had Meetings at feveral times, when Layer
informed him, that things were in a great For-
wardnefs, tho” it was not yet a time to put their
Defign in Executiony but it went on fo well,
that it could not mifcarry 5 that the Duke of Or-
mond was to come with a fingle Ship, with fome
Offices; and that the Defign had been difcover’d
to the French Embafladors who had given Intelli-
gence thereof o his Majelty, or elie the Aftair
had been done before that time,

This Plunkett was employed, from time to time,
to prepare Lifts of, and to colleét and inroll fit
Perfons to go on with this Defign; and particu-
farly a Number of S:rjeants, about twenty five,
being difimifs’d from the Army, the Prifoner en-
gaged Plunkett to go 1mmediately to thole Perfons,
and take care to fecare them.,

Gentlemen, thefe tratterous Confults and Tran{-
ictions were in Fuly and Auguft; and the Witnels
will acquaint you more fully with the feveral Par-
ticulars. There was one Encouragement which
the Prifoner gave to this Wirnefs, which he did
not mention to the other s he told Plunkett there
would be an Army of Dutch to come over in Aid
of his Majefty, but the Witnefs fhould fee a Num-
ber of half-pay Officers, clpecially thofe of the
Name of Fitzgerald, on the Side of his King
(the Pretender) that they could not doubt” of

Succefs. |
Gentlémen, Undei thefe Encouragements and

Promifes, and with thefe Rewards, both thefe
Perfons, the two Wimelles, were engaged by
the Prifoner to enter into, and 2o on with this
Confpiracy: The Prifoner met them apart from
time to time ; they concerted and carried on fuch
Meafures as they thought proper to execute this
Defign, upon the Foot of the Plan, which hath
Been mentioned, and will be produced to you.

After we have produced the Scheme, and
likewife examined thefe two Witnefles, who will
oive you an Account of the Progrefs which the
Prifoner made in this Treafon; we fhall give you
other plain and evident Proof, which will demon-
{trate the treafonable Intent of the Prifoner at the
Bar, and his hopes of Succefs.

We fhall prove that the Prifoner had been at
Romg, and by his own Confeflion, that he had
fen the Pretender, and had Conferences with

him.
We fhall prove that the Prifoner had blank

promiffory Notes; or Receipts for Money, ﬁgqelc}_
' Wit
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with the Pretenders own Hand, by the affumed
Title of Fames Rex, found :u}long[’r Layei’s Pa-
pers, which were remitted to him ‘from Reome, :}nd
which he has acknowledg’d were fent over to ‘lum,‘
for raifing of Money to carry on the Caule of
the Pretender.  This is a ftrong Evidence of the
Truft and Credit repoled in him to execute this
Confpiracy ; that the Prifoner 15 4 Perlon lull_y
intralted 5 the Receipts are in Blank, and the Pri-
fonet had Power to raife Money on them, and
o fill them up with fuch Sums, as he thought pro-
per and neceflary. o )

Gentlemen, on the Examination of our Witnef-
fes it will appear that Mr. Layer declared he had
cxpended great Sums of Money in this Aftr,
and that he has made it an Excufe, why he had
not Money to fupply fome Demands, becaule he
had difburs’d fo much.

This therefore was to be his full Power to raile
Money towards bringing the Pretender to the
"Throne. |

Befides thefe Receipts, he had furnifhed him-
fIf with Lifts of the Officers of the Army, 1n or-
der to know the Situation and Condition of the
Army, and to confider what Advantage he could
make by any of thofe in the Lifts : He had pro-
vided himielf with Lifts of the Ofhicers of the
Tower, which we apprehend, was to render the
Dolion of ficzing the Tower, when their Friend
the Officer was on the Guard, more probable and
lop. ful. |

B.fides this, we have Letters which will be
produced, that pafled between Sir IWitliam Ellis,
an Adherent of the Pretender’s at Rewe, and My,
Layer, by the Nome of Fouitarn, (1 Name he
went by) encouraging him to go on with this De-
fion: We have the Cypher, and the Explanation
of the Cant Words ufed n thofe Letters.  In one
Letter L4075 fays, the beft Method of carrying on
the Manuiactory, (which is the Infurreétion) is to
oot good W orhmen, by which‘is meant Soldiers)
and particilarly to gun jome of the ableft of Mrs,
Baibara Sintl’s, (by Mrs, Baibara Sinith 1s figni-
fied the Army) and this would be very agreea-
ble to all concerned, particularly to Mr, ki
{which by their Cypher or Key is a Name for the
Pretender.)

And 1 another Letter there is particular Men-
tion of Mr. Layei’s Intended Generals you will
find 1 the Letter an Explanation of him, thus;
that he, who the Prifoner v his Letter called $i-
ioingy, and deferibed as a Tenant, tho® his Namd
was not then found m the Rentall, this Writer be-
lizved he fhould be called Simines, and fays he is
of the Nei!ly agrey hair’d antient Man, for whom
his IFriend has a particular Efteern and Value, as
a very cood Tenant, This is the Deleription, and
this 1s the Cane that pafled between them s the
lxplanation you will apprchend, by the Cyphers
that were found amongfl the Prifoners Papers,

Mr. Loy was not wanting in other Prepara-
tions for this Attempt ; for he had provided Arms
i his own Houfe, more than he could have Oc-
calion for, asa private Subjeéty he had feveral
Mulquets and other Fire-Arms ; he had forty or
hitty Cartridges loaded with Bullets, ready made
up for fo many Difcharzes, which might be deli-
vered out to the People who fhould come in to
them: If he had any ufe for fuch a Quantity he
wiil fhew upon what Occafion,

Th:.: Difcovery of the Fadts made be the Wit-
nefles, occalioned the i‘»PPI‘t:ht:nding Mr. Layer,

in whofe Houfe thefe Arms were likewife feized.

My, Laver was fo confcious of his own Guile,
that after he wasapprehended, he made his Efcape
out of the Cuftedy of the Meflenger, in whofe
Foufe he was placed s he offered a great Reward
to Watermen o carry hum off: This is a Demon-
{travonot his Guile, from the Conviction of his own
Conicience,

Gentlemen, there are fome other Matters and
Papers which 1t will be proper to ofter to your
Confideration; and moft of thefe particular Faéts,
which I have mentioned, or the moft marterial of
them have been confirmed by Mr. Layer’s own
Confeflion which he made upon his Examination
before the Lords of the Privy Conncil.  And
when we have Tud before you this Evidence, as
according to my Inftructions we thall very fully,
I don’t deubt but that you will do your Duty as
honeft Men.

We don’t apply to your Zeal, as you are Pro-
teflants and Inghihmen s but upon the Weighe
of the Evidence, we thall appeal to your Juflic,
o your Ouths and to your Confcicnees ;3 whether
upon the whole Preof to be haid Lefore you, you
will not remam fully fadslied, that the Prioner
at the Bar 1s guilty of the High-Treafon whercof
he ftands mdicted, and then that you do find him
fo.

Mr. . Geir, May w pleake your Lordthip and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, I am Countel on the
fame Side for his Majeily againft the Priloner at
the Bar, who ftands dicted for High-T'reafon,
in compalting and imagining the Death of the
King.  The Prelervation of the Lite of the King
is of that grear Importance to the Safety and Pro-
perity of his Subjects, that even Imaginations and
Intentions (which are but Adts of the Heart) to
take 1t away, manifelted by Overe-A&s are an
Offence of the higheft Napre which the Law
tikes notice of 5 but as Imaginations and Intenti-
ons of Men are ferer, and can’t be diftovered
but by their Actions, there muft be Preof of fone
Iact done - order to carry fuch Intentions into
I;i:-:cttltit.ﬂl, to make the Offenders ouilty of Trea-
fon: Thercfore in this IndiGment tive feveral O-
vert-Adts are laid s the firft s, that the Prifoner
at the Bar propofed, confulted and agrecd with
divers Perlons unknown to the Grand Jury, to
rafe an InfurreCtion and Rebellion within this
Kingdom againft his Majefty; che fecond, thas
he publifhed o traiterovs Writing, purporting ar
Lixhorwtion, Encouragement and Promile of
Rewards, to perfuade his Mujefty’s faithiul Sab-

Jects to take up Arms againtt him; the third,

that he propofed, confulted and agreed to It the
Pretender on the Throne by arm’d Force; the
fagrth, that he Iifted Men to levy War aeainft the
Kings and the fifth, thar he propefud, confulted
and agreed o fuize and imprifon his Maelly’s
facred Perfon,

Gentlemen of the Jury, you will reactily agree
with me that nothing can ke more dreadiul to a
true Biston who hath any Reeard to himilf or
his Pofterity, or Love to his Country, than the
fatal Confequences that mufl have inf:vimbly -
tended fuch wicked Defigrs, had they been car-
ricd into Ixecntion with Succels - Suppefe a Re-
bethion had been only mifed, what could any
Man have ipeced from a Rebellion in the
Heart of the Kingdom, but Plunder and IRapine,
and Murder, a ozl Sufpenfion of all Civil Right,
ak as long as the Storm had continued, a jut

but
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Kuf terfible Apprehenfions of fomething yet wotle
¢ come: This would ¢ertainly have been;he Cafe,
though the Attempt fhould have becn difap-
pointed at laft. But had it been attended With
Guccefs, had his Majefty’s facted Perfon been
feized and iiprifoned, and had 'the Pretender
been pliced on the Throne, "if.’h_ata_'SCEHE of .MI-
fery had open’d! A tild Adminiftration, govérn’d
by the Law of the Land under an excéllent Prince,
and as juft and merciful a5 ever wore the Crown,
muft have given way to Arbitrary Power; ali your
E{tates and Properties muft have been at the Will
of a pravok’d and exafperated Ulfurper; Liberty
muft have given Way o Slavery, aqd the beft of
Religions to Popifh Idolatry and Supetfion; and
chis humanly fpeaking, without any Profpect or
Hopes of Relief: Nor would icfe dreadful Cala-
mities have been tonfin’d within the Bounds of
the King’s Dortinions, fot thould the prefent hap-
py Eftablifhment in his Majefty and his Royal
Family (the chief Bulwatk and Support of the
Proteltant Intereft) be deftroyed, the Proteftant
Religion in genetal muft be reduced to the lowelt
Ebb. if not totally extinguifhed.

This is the Naturt of the Crime, and thefe fome
of the fatal Confequences that muft have enfued,
if the Defigns charged upon the Prifoner by the
Indictment had took Efedt. .But whethet he s
auilty of this great Offence, 1s what you Gentle-
men of the Jury are now to try.

My Lord; ’tis my part to open the Nature of
e Fvidence that we fhall produce to prove the
fveral Overt-A@s laid in the Indiétment; and
in ftating it to your Lordfhip and the Jury, I
thall follow the Courfe of Time in which the Facls
were done, that the Cafe may be more eafily ap-
prehended, and fhall open nothing but what I be-
lieve will be clearly verified by Proof.

This Fafoner at the Bar, tho® brought up to
the Prolethion of the Law, and a Praétifer in it
went beyond Sea in the Year 1720, and at the
Clofe of that Year, according to our Stile, or the
Boginning of the Ycar 1721, arrived at Roe,
where the Pretender then was; while the Pri-
foner was there, he procured himfielf to be intro-
duced to the Pretender, and had two private Con-
ferences with him, 1n which (but by whatMethods
or Reprefentation is beft known to himfulf) s
plain he obwained the Pretender’s good Opinion fo
far, that he thought him a fit Perfon in whom a
Confidence for' carrying on any Defigns againft
his Majelty, and for fetting himfelf on the Throne,
might be fafcly repos’d: For this Purpoft a Cor-
relpondence was then fettled between the Prifoner
and fome Perfons of Ditinétion aboutr the Pre-
tender, and 2 Cypher of Names of Perfons and
Things was agrced on, norder to carry this Cor-
refpondence on.  The Prifoner returned to Exg-
lond abont Fuly 1721, atter which he wrie Let-
ters to his Correfpondent at Rome, ahd Anfwers
to them came from thence, whereby it will ap-
pear, that the Prifoner had undertook a confide-
rable Part in the Delign then catrying on to bring
the Pretender in; and altho® thefe Letters are in
obfcure and cant Terms, and fictitious Names, yet
by the Help of the Cypher and from the Nature
of the Letters themfelves, it will eafily appear to
a common Underftanding for what Purpole chey
were wrtt: This Cypher and Letters we fhall prove
to have been found among the Prifonet’s Papers,
which were feized foon after his Commitment,

and your Lordfhip and the Jury will fee, when they
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come to beé fead, thatnotwithftanding the obfeuré
Ters, and the myfterious Expreflions inferted
to-ddzzle the Eye of the Reader, when compai’d
with the Cypher they will be {o intelligible, thdt
they will be a plain Evidence that a Defign was
carrying on of raifing a geéneral Rebellion in fa-
vour of the Pretender ; for which Purpofe a Scheme
in Writing was'prepared, which we fhall lay be-
fore your Lordihip and the Gentleinen of the
Jury, that was likewife found among the Prifoi-
ner’s Papers s we fhall prove it to be writ with his

‘own Hand. .

Mr. Serjeant Pengelly opened the Nature of this
Sclieiire very fully, I fhall not tréuble your Lord-
fhips with a Repetition of what hefaid; when it
comes to be read it will appear to be calculated
for a general Rifing, it will prove a form’d De-
fign to feize the Tower, to feize Perfons in great
Stations, to {eize the Bank, and then at lait to
feize the Perfon of the King himfelf, and to feize
his Royal Highnefs the Prince of Zales, This
we apprehend will be a ftrong Evitdence of the
Overt-Aéts laid 1n the Indiétment, and will con-
fitm the Teftimonies of the Witnefles which we
fhall produce.

There are two Witnefles we thall call to prove
the Overt-Adts laid in the Indiétment, they have
already been mentioned to your Lotdfhip, Mr;
Stepheir Lynch, and Serjeant Matthewy  Plustelt,
M. Lynch will prove the feveral Overt-Ads laid
in the Indiltment to have been commutted by the
Prifoner in the County of fflex, where this In-
di¢tment was found; as alfo Overt-A&ls of tie
fame Natuie conimitted by him in the County of
Middlefex.  But as *cis improper to fall directly
upon the Proof of thofe Falts, without firlt prov-
ing fome other Falts by way of Introduétion, as
how the Acquaintance between Mr. Lynch and the
Prifoncr at the Bar began, and how they came
to be fo intimate as to enter into a Defign of this
Nature, Mr. Lynch will give your Lotdfhips and
the Jury an Account; that there had becn an Ac-
quaintance between this Mr. Lynch and one Dr.
Murphey eight or nine Years apo, that they had
agreed to join in the Rebellion which was in the
beginning of his Majefty’s Reign 5 after chat was
over Mr. Lynch went beyond Sea, and continued
there fome time, and arrived in England in Aprif
Jaft 5 that their Acquaintance continued, and their
Principles were not altered ; Mr., Lynch tieeting
Dr. Murpbey, Dr. Murphey (who hath been men-
tioned to your Lordfhips ona late Occafion in
this Court and 1s not now to be found, but had
a great Acquaintance with the Prifoner ar the
Bar) told him he had fomething advantageous to
communicate to him, and appointed a Meeting
next Morning at a Coltee-FHoule in Cornbil, where
they accordingly met, and Murphey then advifed
him not to 2o out of England, becaufe he had an
Opportunity of making his Fortune, telling him
there would be a generdl Rifing in Favour of the
Pretender (whom he called King) and that 1t was
carry’d on by Gentlemen of Note and Credit; and
if he would accept of the Service, he would te-
commend hitm to one greatly concerned in that
Affair; Mr, Lynch after Confideration agieed to
ftay=— After feveral other Meetings between
this Dr, Murpbey and Mr. Lyuch, at which their
Difcourfe general wrhed pon this intended Ri-
fing; about the Begibning of Fuwwe, Db, Mui-

phéy introduced Mt. Lynth to the Prifoner, asa -

Petlon fit to be entrufted in the intended En-
tCrprize 3
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terprize s they went to the Grifin Tavern In Ha{-
Bourns Mr, Layer there expreffed the good Opi-
nion he had of Mr. Lynch upon the Character he
had received of him from fo good a Friend as
this Dr. Murpbey. They foon enter’d upon Bu-
finefs, and the Prifoner after having made a Re-
prefentation of the Uneafinefs of the Nation in
general, and of the fair Opportunity there Was
1o bring about a Revolution, propos’d to Mr:
Lyneh to feize fome General, to which the Witnefs
agreed.  After this they had feveral other Meet-
ings, at which their Difconife turn’d upon the fame
Subject of a general Rifing in order to fet the Pre-
tender on the Throne, and at one of them the
Prifoner declared he intended Lyueh fhould feize
the Earl of Cadogar, and that the Scheme was
Iaid on a found Foundation, having a great Man
at the Head of Affairs, who wanted neither Wi,
Courage nor Refolution, and he would be chk-
ed by his Friends. Several other Propofitions
were made by the Prifoner tending to the fame
End; to all which Mr. Lyuch agreed, and they
confulted how they might put thofe things in fux-
ccution, In Fuly lalt, Mr, Layer went into the
Country for fourtcen or fifteen Days, and after
his Return in the beginning of Augyf, n Purfu-
ance of what they had concerted, Mr, Lynch and
he went to view the Earl of Cadggar’s Houle, to
fee how practicable that Defign of feizing him
at his Houfe was. Mr. Lyusch thought it feafi-
ble, but he grew uncafy at Delays, and fre-
quently told the Prifoner that his Circumitances
would not permit him to continue here at his
own Expence; therefore to encourage him to {tay,
and perfevere in the Defign, Mr. Layer gave him
feveral Sums of Money.

My Lord, upon the twenty fourth of Auguf
lat, the Prifoner and Mr. Lyneh agreed to ride
out the next duy to take the Air: on the twenty
fifth, according to Appointment, (which brings
us now to the Overt-Adts 1 the County of Effex)
they rid out together; the Prifoner thought it
proper to ride with Arms, alledging that he had
things about him he would not lofe for any thing
in the World. Upon the Road he told Mr. Lyich
they would go to Lord Nerth and Grey’s, with
whom the Prifoner had the Honour to be well
acquainted, and he would prefent Mr. Lyuch to
my Lord as his particular Acquaintance. It hap-
pened to be too late to get to Lord North and
Grey’s by Dinner, whereupon they put in at the
Green-Man near Epping-Foreff, which, Gentle-
men, is at Layon-Stone in your County. Din-
ner not being ready at therr coming thither
they enter’d into Converfation on the former To-
picks, and Mr. Lyuch defiring to give him fome
infight into the Scheme that was formed, the
whole fubjett matter of their former Confulta-
tions and Difcourfes were repeated about feizing
Lord Cadogan, {feizing the Minifters of State, of
getting Part of the Army to declare for them
and for feizing the King’s Perfon; and thefe
things were then agreed to by them, At this
Place it was, that the Prifoner pulled out of his
Pocket and fhew’d to Mr. Lyuch the traiterous
Wiiting laid in the Inditment, which was a De-
claration to encourage a general Rifing, writ, as
the Witnefs believes, in the Prifoner’s own Hand ;
and that Part which contained the Promifes of
Rewards to be given to the Soldiers and other
Perlons to encourage them to come into their
Dehgns; was read by the Witnefs, after which M.
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Layer took his Paper away, and put it it up in his
Pocket again, My Lord, when they had dined,
they went on to Lord Nerth and Grey’s Houfe
(whom your Lordfhip will hear mentioned by the
Evidence as the Perfon thought on to be General
in this Undertaking) they ftaid here that Nighe,
and dined there next Day, and afterwards they
had a fecond Meeting at Lord North and Greys,
Your Lordfhip and the Jury will be pleafed to
obferve that this Evidence will be a full and pofi-
tive Proof by this Witnefs; that the Overr-Ads
of publifhing this traiterous Writing, encourag-
ing Perfons to take up Arms againft his Majelty,
of the Confultations and Agreement to levy War,
to {et the Pretender on the Throne; and to feize
his Majefty’s Perfon, were done at the Green- Man,
in the County of Effex: And this will likewift be
an Evidence; that all the Overr-A&s laid in the
Indi€tment (except pubhthing the traiterous Writ-
ing) were done In the County of Middlefex,

My Lord, the next Witnefs we fhall produce
is Matthew Plunkett, formerly a Serjeant in fome
Regiment; he had been formerly acquainted with,
and had been ferviceable to the Prifoner, and
was very well acquainted with one Fames Plun-
kett, which Fames Plunkett was a grear Acquain-
tance of the Prifoner’s.  This Famcs Plunkett de-
fired the Witnels Masthezy Plumkett to meet the
Prifoner n Fuly lalt, at the Iralian Coffee-Houfe
in Ruflel-Conrt, which the Witnels could not com-
ply with; but the Witnefs met the Prifoner the
Sunday following in Lincol’s - Inm Fields, they
were together near an Hour, the Prifoner gave
him an Account of the intended general Rifing,
and ask’d the Witnefs if he knew any old Serjeants
or Soldiers who could difcipline a Mob, agreed
with him to procure fuch, mentioned to him fe-
veral Perfons fit to be at the head of this Enter-
prize; and in order to make him diligent, he gave
him at that tme half 2 Crown: And Money was
not only given him at that time, but a Promife
was made to him of further Rewards, The Pri-
foner having Occalion to go in the Country,
one Feffreys, a Nonmpuring Clergyman, was fent to
Mattheso Plunkett by Layer (and this Fa& that I
am going to open mult not be barcly confidered
as an Act besween Feffreys and Plunketr, buc it
will be brought direétly home to the A& of Lay-
e himfelt.)  effreys wold Plunkert he came from
the Prifoner, and that he was employ’d by him
to go to fuch as the Witnels was, who were old
Serjeants, to get a Number of them together to
difcipline the Mob, in order to the general
Rifing: The next Day they met again, and had
the hke Difcourfe, and Feffreys pave Marthew
Plunkett half a Guineas and what brings this home
to the Prifoner, 15, that he told Plunkers he had
left a Guinea with the Nonjuring Parion to give
him, and tlked with him on the fame Subjet
that Feffreys had difcourfed the Witnefs before.
But in fact Feffreys did not give Plunkest the Gui-
nea, he gave him but half a Guinea,

My Lord, after Mr. Layer went out of Town
Plunkett gave him an Account what Progrefs he
had made in the Afiir.  Plunkett told him thas
he had got feveral old Soldiers that would bear 2
Part in this Bufinefs: The Prifoncr faid he muft
take care to keep a Lift of their Names, and
the Places where they lived, that they might be
in 2 Readinefs when they fhould have Occafion
for them., And on Swiday before the Prifoner
was taken up, he told this Plunkers that a great

many -
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many of his Countrymen werc turned out of the
Guards, and afl’d him ii he knew where they
lodgd, and upon the Witnels’s Anfwer that he dul_
not, the Prifoner direéted him to take a Laft of
their Names and Places where they lor._l;';d, t‘hnt he
might have them when Occafion required, So that
here is Mr, Lysch a pofinve Witnels as to the
Overt-Acts in Lfflex s Mr. Lyuch and Mr. Pluiikett
pofitive as to the Overt-Alls Middlefex, and
their Telftimony confinmed by the Scheme uncﬁ:r
the Prifoncr’s own Hand, and other Papers, which
we {hall produce, found among his Papers which
wili leave no room to doubt of the Truth of their
Evidence, Befides, my Lord, the Prifoner beng
feized in September Wty we fhall give an Account
when e was in Cuftody of a Meffenger leck’d up
in a Room two pair of Stairs high, he mude a thitt
to make his Elcape, got to the ‘v\""nt_cr-ﬁdu, and
oot a Sculler to carry him over the River; he ac-
tally gotover the River, but he was retaken again
in St. Gesrge's-Fieldsy and brought back to the
Meflenger, and offer’d very confiderable Sums to
the Perfons who retcok him to let him go. I be-
lieve it is hardly to be imagin’d, a Peron perfedtly
innocent would venture to get out of @ Reom two
Story high, and in the manner he did, and ofker
to give fuch a Reward to the Perfons who retook
him to let him ger off 3 he muft be confcious to
himfelf that he was in very great Danger. There
were likewife found in his Houfe Arms more than
nceeffary for his Ule, and which he has confefied
were to be ufed if there had been a Rifing,

My Lord, to corroborate the Teftimony of
the Witnefles, we fhall lay before your Lordfhip
aad the Gentlemen of the Jury, the feveral Pa-
pers which were found, ITmay fay, in Mr. Layer’s
Cuitody ; T don’t fay they were actually taken in
his Cuttody, but it will come to the fame thing ;
for hie had delivered them in two Parcels to Mrs.
Majo the Witnefs, whom we fhall produce, with
Directions that the fhould take particular Care of
them 5 and they were feized in her Cuftody not
long atter the Prifoner was committed to the Cof
tody of a Mcflenger; fhe faw every one of them
mark’d by the Perfons who feized them, and
marked them her feif: There are not only the
Scheme and the Cyphers and Letters mentioned
before, but alio wn promiffory Notes fubicribed
by the Pretender : Thele promiffory Notes run,

]Aﬂ’:;;miedge to have reccived fiein
the Sups of which Suin
L groiiife to wcpay wwith ain Intcroft for i i the R

of per Ann, James R,

Can any Man imagine, if there was nothing elfe
to explain them, that thefe Notes were there for
nothing? Every Body maft believe that they were
intended to be made vie of to carry on the Con-
piracy 5 But we fhall fhew by the Prifoner’s own
Confuflion, that they were fent over to him by
Sir illiain Ellis, in order to be made ufe of as
Occafion fhould ferve, to promote thefe Defigns
In favour of the Pretender. Among thefe Pa-
pers leveral Lifts were found  which will be pro-

duced, fome of which contain the Number of _

the Othicers and of the Soldiers in the Guards,
fome the Names of other Officers and Soldiers,

and fome the Number of the Officers belonging
to the Tower. It mult be owned, that in fom.

of thole Lifls, there are the Names of foveral
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Perfons of as great ITonour; Loyalty, and Fidelity
to his Majefty, as‘any Subje@s his Majefty hath ;
yet the procuring thefe Lifts could bz for nothing,
but to ger an Information of the Number and
Character of the Perfons in his Majefty’s Service,
to know the Strength of his Majefty’s Forces, that
Intelhigence might be given and Schemes framed
accordingly, and that there might be tampering
with fuch as there could be any Hopes of bringing
over mto the Pretender’s Interctt : If the Prifoner
can put any orher Conftruétion upon his having
thete Lifts in his Coftody; he will have an Oppof—
usity to do it. Thele Things being proved, I ap.
prehend there remains no doube but that the Priic-
ner will appear to be guilty of the Crime charged
on him in this Indictment : But befides all this we
fhall prove his Confeflion, by two Witefles, where-
by he has confefled every Overt- A& laid in this In-
dictment, the feveral Tranfactions that Mr., Lyuch
and Pluntett will give account of, and almoft all the
Iacts that I have mention’d before. I fhall conclude
with this, Gentlemen of the Jury, thae if we make
out thefe Facls as they have been opened; and accord-
ing to my Infiruétions I have ro Realon to make
the leaflt Quefuion of ir, it muft be left to your
Coufideration whether the Prifoner at the Bar s
gutlty of the Offence for which he flands indi¢td
or not : If you fhull be fatistied by the Evidence
that heis, I'do not doubt but you will do Juftice
(which 1s all that is defired of you) and find a
Verdict for the King,. J_

Mr. Soll, Gen.  1f your Lordthip plafss, we
will now proceed to examine Witneflus; and we
defire that room may be made for the Witneffes
to come into Court. Call Mr. S/ephen Lynch,

L. C. J«fi. You muft make way there,

Prifsicy. My Lord, T humbly deiire before
this Witnefs be fworn, that he may be examin’d
upon a oyei drie, whether he hath not a Promife
of Pardon, or fome other Reward, {or fwearing
againit me, o

L. C. Fuft. Sir, you can’t afk him that Queftion.

Mr. Hungerford. 1 hope we thali be at Liberry,
and have a Right to enter into an Examination of
this Matter. It a Man is reprefented to be in the
fame Circamftances with the Prifoner, and the Pri-
foner led 1nto the fame Circurftances by the Perfon
propofed as a Witmefs, and afterwards by him
involved 1 the fame Offence s if the Perfon there-
fore propofed as a Witnefs, hath a Promife of Par-
don or fome Reward, upon Condition thit he would
fwear againft the Prifoner, he cannot by Law be a
aood Witnefs 5 the Perfon propos’d as a Wimnels
mult be 2 credicle Witnels, mult be a legal Wit-
nefs, moft not be convicted of Perjury or any other
notorious Offence, a free Witnels that is not under
Reftraint for the Ofienee he accufes another of 3 and
therefore we hope we havea Rigntof afking whe-
ther he acts under the Influence of any Promife of
Reward or the Promife of a Parden : And the
Right we have of examining him to the Promife
of a Reward or Pardon, is fupperted by the Au-
thority of my Lord Chiet Juftice Ifak, * as re-
ported by Kehuge.

Mr, Ketelbey, My Lord, T would not take up
your Lordihip’s time, and fubmit the Weight of
what Mr, Hungeiford has ofiered to your Confide-
ration, but we found our Right of afking this
Queftion upon my Lord Chicf Jutice Hali’s cx-
prefs Decluation, fet lorth at harge in Kelyuge's
Reports, fol. 18. which Lhave here in my Hand,

L. | I mult
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1 muft Jikewife beg Leave to obferve to your
Lordfhip, that this Queftion was formerly afked
in the Trial of Gordon and Dorrell to one Adams
that had been in the fame Confpiracy with tholc
that were brought to Trial for High-Treafon,
and was then produced as a Witnefs agninit them;
the Book was then brought into Court, and the
Quotation read before your Lordfhip, and accord-
ing to my Notes of that Trial, which I have here
brought with me for my Juftification, (I{ubmit to
your Lordfhip’s Correétion if I don’t flate it right)

Adams was afl’d thar Queltion, though 1t was

long objected to by the King’s Counfel. The Dil-
tinftion my Lord Chief Jultice fale made was thus.
Mr. Fuft. Eyre. Read the whole Paragraph.

Mr. Ketelbey. I will, my Lord. The Words
are thefe: © It was refolved that fome of thole
“ Perfons equally culpable with the reft, may
“ be made ule of as Witnefles againft their Fel-
“ lows, and they are lawful Acculers or Witnefles
“ within the Statute 1 £d4, VI, 12, 5 & 6 FEd VL
“ ¢, 11, & 1 Mar, 1. and accordingly at the Tri-
« al of thefe Men, fome of them who were Par-
“ ties in the Treafon were made ufe of againft
 the reft: For hawial Wimefles wichin thofe
¢ Statutes are fuch as the Law alloweth 5 and
“ the Law alloweth every one to be 1 'Witnefs,
¢ who is not convifted or made infimous for
“ fome Crime s and if 1t were not {o all Trea-
“ fons would be fafe, and it would be 1mpotli-
“ ble for one who confpires with never fo many
“ Perlons to make a Dilcovery to any Purpofe.

[ was aware of what was here Iaid down, and
therefore did fubmit Mr. Husigerford’s Reafon to
your Lordfhip’s Confideration, and did not infift
farther upon 1t 5 the fublequent Words are thefe,
“ But the Lord Chuct Baron flele faid, That if
“ one of thefe culpable Perlons be promifed his
“ Pardon on Condition to give Evidence againit
“ the reft, that difableth him to be 1 Witnefs
“ aganft the others, becaule he is bribed by fav-
“ g his Life to be a Wimefs: So that he males
“ a Difference where the Promife of Pardon is
*“ to him for difclofing the Treafon, and where
“ it is for giving of Lvidence,  But fome of the
“ other Judges did not think the Promife of
“ Pardon, if he gave Lvidence, did difable him.
“ Bue they all advifed that no fuch Promife thould
* be made, or any "Chreatnings ufed to them in
“ cale they did not give full Evidence.

So that, my Lord, we have not only the Au-
thority of that Book with us, buta folemn Pre-
cedent in this Court in point cftablifhed upon a
long Debate, and grounded on that very Autho-
1y, And when I moved this Matter at the
Trial of Doriell, Gordsn and Ker, 1 then cited
another Inflance where it had been allowed by
the Court, and that was before Mr, Juttice
Poweel! at [Vorcefter Affizes, upon the Trial of
Palineir and Synonds for the Murdet of Mrs, Pal-
s : There a third Perfon concerned in the Fadt
came 1n as a Witnefs againft the other two, and
after it had been argued by Counfel, and that
learned Judge had read upon the Bench, and con-
fidered this Authority, the Witnefs was at Jaft afk-
el this Queftion upon a Poyer dire: And for the
Lruth of this Cafe as I reported it, I appealed to
my Lord Lechincre, then Attorney-General, and
who had been one of the Counfil at Palimes’s T'rial.
. Mr, Seij. Pengelly, My Lord, we hope if there
IS any room for this Pretence which is infinuated,
itonly goes as to his Credit, and does not dif:

™
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able him from being a2 Witnefs ; the Authoritics
produced are no more: The Judges dire€ed that
no fuch Promife fhould be made but if fuch a Pro-
mife was made, they agreed it doth not difable
him from being a Witnefs, as was mentioned by
my Lord Chief Baron Hele; 1t 1s not like Money
given, which 1s an actual Corruption 3 the Pro-
mtle of Pardon is a thing voluntary in it ftlf ;
Who is the Promile to be made by ? Is it in the
Power of any Perfon but his Majelly to perform
it ? If there is any Thing i the Suppolition, it is
not proper to aflk in relation to 1t upon a Foyer
dire o prevent the Wimefs from being fworn to
aive vidence 3 but when he hath been fworn, if
they think fit to afk the Queftion, they may.

Mr, At Gen. The afking the Witnefs this
Quettion, as *tis irregular, fo if it was anfwered
in the affirmative, wou’d be of no Scrvice to the
Prifoner ; for with Submiffion, it will not difa-
ble Mr. Zynch from being a Witnels. Every Man
is bound in Juftice to give Evidence if required,
and a Promite to have a Pardon if he gives Evi-
dence againft the Prifoner, can be looked on only
to tnduce him to do that which by Law he oughe
to do according to the Truth: It does not im-
port that he was to give a wrong or 2 falfe Evi-
dence 5 fuch a2 Queftion he cannot be obliged to
anfwer.  And the greateft Ule the Prifoner could
make of this, if fuch a Promife was made to the
Wimels (which is not admitted) wou'd be only
againft the Credit of the Witnefs, but not en-
tirely take oft his Teftimony 5 his Credit, as well
as the Credit of all Witnefles, muft be left to the
Confideration of the Jury. As to the Opinion
of my Lord Chicf Baron Ifafe cited out of Kedge,
the other Judges differ’d with him, and therctore
we hope Mr., Lyach thall be fworn.

Mr. Sell. Geir. We whoare Council for the King
don’t cppole the afking this Queftion, out of any
apprehenfion that the Anfwer would come out a-
oainlt us, but for fear of overturning a Point
that hath been long fetded.  As to the Book,
which thefe Gentlumen cite to fupport their Ob-
jection, with Submiffion, it is rather an Autheri-
ty to over-rule it. The Opinion they feund them-
{clves upon is, that of my Lord Chief Baron Hale,
but the reft of the Judgeswere of Opinion againit
him ; fo that we apprehend the Authority is with
us, and likewife the Reafon of the thing, 1 take
it that no Queftion 1s to be afked 2 Man upon a
Voyer dive, but to a Fa& that would take off his
Teftimony,  Suppole then, for Argument fake,
that there was a Promife of Pardon made to a
Man upon Condition that he fhould give Evi-
dence 3 T apprehend that would not difable him
from being a Witnefs, any more than if the Con-
ditton had been that he fhould declare the Truth,
which it was his Duty to have done, although
no fuch Promife had been made: And iurely the
Promife of a Pardon upon a Condition to do that
which was his Duty before, won’t take off his
Teltimony. If they would afk the Witnefs whether
he has accepted 2 Promife of a Pardon upon Con-
dition to give falle Teftimony, that 1sa Queftion,
to which, with great Submiffion, he is not bound
to anlwet ; becaufe that would be to examine him
to accufe himfelf of a thing which s unlawful, For
thefe Reafons, as well as upon account of the Au-
thority they produce, we apprehend there is ne
Force 1n the Objection.

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. My Lord, 1 know not

whether 1t would not be laying too great a
weight
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Weight upon the Objection, for fo many of the

King’s Coun

it would.
) ?v?f Hungerford. 1 urge it thus far: Whatfo-

ever Perfon is produced in 2 Court of Juftice for
2 Witnefs, he muftappear to be utterly uncon-
cerned in point of Intereft in the Confequence of
he Trial. If a Man produced as an Evidence
to prove the Df:l:zt upon the Defendang; ﬂu!l,
upun being examined upon 2 Voyer dire, dif-
clofec that he is to have a part of the Money
recovered, is not fuch a Perfon difabled from be-
ing a Witnefs at all? f}nd Is not Prqmlfe of
Pardon to the Witnefs, in Cafe he convicls the
Criminal, a greater Byals than the Witnc‘fs’:s
having part of the Money recovered P Ina (;mi
Caufe the Queftion is not whether the Witnels be
tempted to fweara T ruth or Falthood, but‘whe-
ther the Witnefs doth not appear to be fo far
concerened in Intereft, that he ought not to be ex-
amined at all? And therefore I humbly nfift
that we ought to have an Account whether the
Witnels Lyzed hath the Promife of a Pardon, or
any Reward for that. which he i1s to do here, viz,
for the Iovidence he is to give again{t the Prifoner.
As to the Confequence of fuch an Enquiry, 1cis in
different to me whether 1t will difable him from be-
ing & Witnefs abfolutely, or go to us Credit only :
For if it fhould come out that he hath fuch a Pro-
mife, we fuppofe no Jury or Man living will belicve
him, and that ts much the fame as if he were not
produced ; tho it feems more agreeable to the
Practice in Civil Cafes, that he fhould not be ad-
mitted as a Witnels at all. |

Mr. Ketelbey. Mr. Solliciter miftakes the Words
of the Book as I read them; heis plealed to un-
derftand them as if all the reft of the Judges dif-
fered in Opinion from my Lord Chiet Baron Hales .
but the Book does not fay fo, ’tis only that
fome of the other Judges wereof Opinion that it
did not difable him, but all agreed that it went
to his Credir, and that was all I rcad 1n the Book
and I would not have offered 1t otherwife than as
it was truly there, upon any Confideration what-
foever; but whether this Queftion be afked at firft
or laft, fo as we have an Anfwer to it, I am con-
rented. | |

L. C. Fuf. You fee the moft you can make of
1 is, that it s an Objection to his Credit; and
it 1t goes to his Credir, muft he not be fworn
and his Credit left to the Jury? He mult be ex-
amin’d as a legal Witnefs; but if this Man, un-
der Expectation and Promife of a Pardon, comcs
here to fwear that which 1s not true, and you
would ask him o that, he 15 not obliged to an-
fwerit. No body 15 to difcredit humfelf, but al-
ways to be taken to be innocent till it appears o-
therwife. It is expreiled that he has a Promife
of Pardon: What to do? To give Lvidence.
Give Evidence! Why fhould he not? Is he not
obliged to’c? Suppofe he gives Evidence accord-
ing to the Truth, he would be entitled as much
to his Pardon, as if he gave Lvidence of that
which isnot wrue,  The molt you can fay is, he
has 2 Promife of Pardon if he gives Evidence;
and can you conclude from thence that he can
give no kvidence except a falle Evidence? If
they who afk the Queftion infinuate any thing like
that, 1t ought not to have an Anfiver: But if he
hath a Promife of Pardon if he givesa true Evi-
dence, it is no Objetion to his being & Witnefs,
or to his Credit.

Vou VI
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Prifsier. My Lord, I humbly hope our Ob-

@] to anfwer it; for my part [ think jetions will thus far prevail, and that we fhall

come at the Ifalt.

L. C. Just. When he is fworn yon fhall ask
hun what Queftions you pleafe,

Mr. Fust. Eyre. The Objection which gives Oc-
cafion to infilt upon this Queftion, arifes from the
Influence which the Hopes of Pardon may pofii-
bly have upon the Witnefss and if this be a Rea-
fon for fetting ahde a Witnefs as incapable, no
Accomplice who difcoversa Con{piracy can cver
be allowed to prove it upon Oath; for I believe,
no Man ever yet made a Difcovery but with the
Hopes of Pardon ; anda Government is obliged in
Honour to grant it, where the Confeflion appears
to be ingenuous and fincere: And therefore if the
Flope or Profpect of Pardon, which 15 all that
can be inferr’d from a Promife, fhould be an Ob-

jection to the Competency of a Witnefs, no Go-

vernment would be fafe; for treafonable Confpi-
racles might be form’d and carried on with Impu-
nity, wien the Perfons concerned, from whom a-
lone a full Difcovery can be had, are utterly in-
capable of proving the Fa&t, though they give all
pofiible Marks of their Sincerity and Truth.
‘They have thercfore beerr always allowed to be
Witneffes; and I don’t remember that ever any
Objection was made to their Competency, *ull
the Cafe of the King and Gorden, when the Coun-
cil for the Prifoner would have asked the fame
Queftion which is now propofed, but the Court
did not think it proper before the Witnels was
fworns for no Perfon produced as a Witnefs can
be examin’d to any Matter which only affects his
Credit, and 1s no Objettion to his Competency,
till after he is fworn to give Evidence, and hag
been examin’d. |

Mr. Fuft. Posoys. Mr, Hungerford would do well
to remember the feveral A&ts of Parliament made
to give Encouragement, by a Reward of forty
Pounds, for the apprehending and conviéting of
cevery falfe Coiner, Highwayman, and Houfe-
breaker; and if a Criminal in thofe Offences fhall
come iny and difcover and convict two of his Ac-
complices, he fhall be entitled to a Pardon s and
by the exprefs Words of the 5th of Queen Aune,
fhall have the Reward of forty Pounds for each
Houfe-breaker, and fhall alfo himielf be entitled
toa Pardon; fo that the Parliament thought 1t
proper to give even Money as well as a Par-
don to fuch Difcoverer. Yetever fince the mak-
ing of thofe A&s, the Perfons fo promifed and
encouraged, have upon thofe Trials been admit-
ted as good Witnefies even before aPardon,  And
indeed there cannot be too great Encouragement
agiven to Criminals to become honelt, and to come
in and impeach their Accomplices, it being often
impofiibly fully to difcover thofe fecret Contedera-
cies, but by fome of the Accomplices and Actors
theretn.

The Law thinks thefe are fit Witnefles, and
you will find it in the Book that Mr. Keteloey
hath mention’d that they were though fit to make
Difcoveries of thofe fecret Combinations; I don’c
fay to come in and give falfe Evidence, but to
make a fair Dilcovery.

Mr. Hungerford, My Lotd, we fubmit; we fhall
ask the Quettion whether he hath any fuch Promife
made ; let the Truth comc out, and we fhall be -

tishied.
Mr. upt. Zortefene Aland. 1 was Council in

the Cafe of the King and Gordon; and I very well
Lla remember
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remembet the Council of the other Side infifted
the Witnefles produced fhould be afked this Que-
ftion on a Veyer die, his Name was Maver.  The
Reafon the Court gave that it was improper o
afl this Queltion on a Foyer dire, was, that
i he had this Promife, fuch Promife was made
either to fpeak the Truth, or to {pcak a Fﬂl!:
hood s if it were to give a jultand true Lvi-
dence, there was no Harm in 1t and b 1t was
a Promift of Pardon for fpeaking that which was
not true, the Witnefs was not bound to anfwer
that Queftion, and confequentdly it can be of no
Ufe whatfoever, therefore the Wimels mult be
fworn, .
M. Stepben Lynch was {worn,
Mr. Soll, Gen. Do you know the Prijoner at

the Bar ?

Lynch. Yes.

Mr. Soll. Gen. How long have you known
him ? _

Lyiuch. T frft koew him about the Month of
Fune laft,

Mt Soll, Gen. Pray give an Account to the
Courtand the Jury by what Muans you firlt be-
came acquainted with him, |

Lyich, 1became acquainted with him by Dr.
Muiphey : About the Month of Api/ Tl T came
into Lagleud from Maiders 5 at my Arrival
Englaid I met wich Dr. Murphey, that was my
Acquaintance feveral Years before, who met me
and told me he had fome particular Bufineds to
tell me, and defired me to meet him at Cogpei’s
Coffec-loule in Corubill, where I met him; and
he told me that material Things were acting 1
the Kingdom in order to a Rifing, and if I would
be of the Party, he would recommend me to o
Gentleman that had the Management of 1t: 1
afked Time to confider it, and in two or three
Days time I told him that Twas refolved to be of
the Party. I frequently told him T was impatient
to know who the Gentleman was that I was to be
recommended to; aboui the Month of Fune he
told me I fhould go with him to his Lodgings,
which were at the upper End ot Chancery-lai,
right over-againlt the /¥7bise-Hait, |

Mr., Soll, Gen, 'Whole Lodgings did you go
o ?

Lynch. The Lodgings of Mr. Layer : Mr. Lay-
er was at home, and defired us to go to the Giiffiz
Tavern in [felborn and he would mect us there 5
we went, and in a little while Mr. Layer came to
uss and then Dr. Murphey told him that T was
the Gentleman he had {poke to limot,  Mr. Layer
was glad of my Acquaintance, and told me that
he had had fuch a ftrong Recommendation of
ue, that he was fully fatisfied in me; and then
he held a Difcourfe abont o Riling that was to

¢ in the Kingdom in Favour of the Pretender,
and that 1t would be back’d by a great many of
the Army and the Guards, and feveral other
Gentlemen,

Mr, Hungerford. 'The Overt-Act 15 kud i Ef-
fex, and here is an Evidence given of an Overt-
Act in Middlefexs with Submiffion, they can give
no Evidence of an Overt-Act in another County,
tll they give Lvidence of an Overt-Act m Lffex,
where the Indictment is Lud.

L. C. Juwi Al they fay of Matters in the
County of Aliddlefex, unlefs they give Evidence
of an Over-AQ i the County of Zffex, it fig-
nifies nothing,

Mr. Hungeiford, My Lord, with Submiflion,
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they ought not to be fuffered to give Evidence
of an Overt-Act in Middlefex, betore they give
Evidence of fome Overt-At in Effex 5 for the
proving fome Overt-Act in Effex 1s the only thing
which can entitle them to prove any Overt-Aét
cliewhere.  For by the Method they would g
on in, the Jury may be captivated with a Story
of the Griffis Tavern, and of Mr, Layei’s other
Aflignations and Actions in Mddlefex, which can-
not be imputed to him upon this Indi@kment until
fome Treafon be proved in Zffex : Thope therefore
the King’s Council {hall receive your Lordfhip’s
Directions to go on regularly, to begin to give an
Account of the Overt-Aéts in Effe, before they
go into another County.,

L. C. Just. Mr. [lmgerford, you muft give them
leave to go on their own Method, of that that
firlt happened in Adiddlzfex, and afterwards of what
happened inJiffex 5 and if you dare not truft them
and us, but will have your own Method, it would
be to put usinto Confufion.,

Mr. 8o/, Gen. My Lord, we infit upon it in
point of Law, that we are intitled to give Evi-
dence of Overt-Adts of the fame Species of Treafon
laid 1 the Indictment, though done inany County
in Eiglad, provided we alfo prove an Overt- Aét
in the County of Zffex 5 which we muft do, cther-
wite this will pafsfor nothing.  Mr. Lywch, go on,
and gve my Lord and the Jury an Account of
what Mr, Layer faid, when you were togeiher ag
the Griffir Tavern.

Lynch, The firft thing he told me was, That he
was very glad to meet me, that he had had a
good Recommendation of me from Dr. Aziphey,
as being a Man he could confide in; and begin-
ning his Difcourfe of an Infurre&ion in the King-
dom, he told me, that they were back’d with
a great many of the Army and the Guards; thae
there was a greatmany of the Nobility and Gen-
try of the Country that would come 1 tothem :
He told me then, that he wanted a Man of Re-
{olution that would take upon him the feizing of
fome Perlon of Note, as a General, or fome other
great Man.  The Dicourle run all upon the fame
thing,

Mr. §o/l. Ger, Recollect as well as you can,
the Particulars Mr. Layer told you relating to this
Defion.

Lynch. Ile told me the general Defign of a
Revolution i the Kingdom, in favour of the
Pretender, and that they were back’d by a great
many of the Army, and a great many ot the No-
bility and Gentry 5 and then he teld me he wanted
a Man of Refolution, to undertake with fome o-
thers, to leize a great Man, as a General or fome
other great Man: At that Time I took upon my-
felf to do it, fo that Time we difcourfed no
more.

Mr, Sall. Gein. How long were you together ?

Lyuch, About half an Hour.

Mr, Soll, Gen. When had you the next Meet-
ing ?

Lynch. A Dayor two afterwards.

Mr. Soll. Gein. At what Place?

Lynch. At the fame Tavern, the Griffin Ta-
vern 5 when T came there, I fent a Boy for Mr.

Layer, as he had ordered me to do when I wanted
to lee him.

L.C. Fust, When was your firft Meeting ?
Lyich. About the Month of Fane.
L. C.Fuff. And the fecond Mgeting was two
or three Days after the firft?
Liuch,
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Lynch, Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. At your parting after the

Meeting, what did Mr. Layer fay to you ?
ﬁr[iynci. M. Layer told me, if I had Occalion to

{peak to him that I thould not come to his Lo'dg-
ings, but to go o a Tavern nn_d fend for him,
which I did; I fent aBoy for him, and he came
rome. Then tlking over a Glafs of Wine, he
rold me that he had pitched upon me tofize the
Farl of Cadogair, and that I fhould chufe as many
Perfons as I thought fit who wouid anfwer the fame
Defign; and he being the principal Man 1o the
Army, it would diicourage the Ktng’s Party, n:n_d
animace the Pretender’s Party 5 which, as I fud
before, Tagreed to undertake, and to do the urmoft
of my Endeavours to do it. |

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Was you to do it alone, or
was you to have any Affiltance ¢

Luich. Yes, I'was to have Affiftance.

Mr. Scrf. Pewgelly, What Affiftance ¢ *

Lyirch. Such that I fhould chufes fuch People
that I conld confide in.

Mr. Sofl, Gen. Did you undertaket ?

Lyach, Yes T did undertake it, and to pitch
upon fuch Perfons as fhould be proper to affift me
n 1t.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Was any thing fud at that ume
relating to any Perfon, who was to have the Con-
duct of the Defign 2

Lyuch. Hle told me that there was fome great
Man that did not want Wi, Courage or Refolutior,
and was at the Head of this Aftair, who would at
2 proper time give me an Order to cffect fomething
furcher about 1t

M. 89ll. Gen. Had you any more Difcourfe with
the Prifoner about this Affair ?

Lsih. Yes, we had feveral Difcourfes abont
it

Mr. . Geir. Tell my Lord and the Jury what
more Difcourfe you had, if you can remember,

Lyich. The chiet Part T was to act was to feize
the Earl of Cadsgan, with luch Gentlemen as [
fhould think proper to anfwer the end of {eizing
him.

Mr. Sexy. Chefbire.  Was there any other Meet-
ing, and when, and how long after ?

Lyich, After that came to a Tavern in Ho/-
bori,

My, Scrj. Chefbire, How long after ?

Lynch, Some few Duays; it was at the Cofle
Tavern in Holteii,

Mr. A, Gen. Who was with you at the Ta-
vern ¢

Lynch, T came to the Tavern and fent for Mr.
Lt’?_}'ﬁ'.

Mr. Att. Gen. Did he come to you ?

Lyieh, Yes, he came to me,

Mr. A, Gein. 'What Dilcourfe had you with
him at that time ?

Lynch. We had no particular Difcourfe, but
in general we talked about the Uncalinefs of
the Nation, and the far Opportunity there was
to rife.

Mr. A1t. Gen. Pray give an Account of what
elle paffed.

Lynch, I fay, the Difcourfe that we had ac
two Mectings before, he repeated, and faid, Now
is a fair Opportunity, the Uneafinefs of the Peo-
ple being fuch, to bring about a Revolution,
fince they would be back’d by the Army and the

Guards, and feveral other People.  Soon after that
we parted.

for High-Treifon:

261

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. When had you any other
Meetinge

Lyuch. Some Meetings we had at Mr, Zayei’s
Houle in Sonthampton- Buildings.

Mr. Seiy. Chefbire. How long after ?

Lynch. A few Days only,

Mr. Sery. Chgfbire. At the feveral Meetings at
his Iloufe, what was the Subject of your Dil-
courfe ?

Lynels. Tt wasupon the fame, about the Rifing
and Unealines of the People, and the fair Oppor-
tunity ol bringing about a Reolution j of the Dil-
pofition of the Army and the Guards,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Did he give you any In-
conragement !

Lynch, After I met him at his Houle in Ssueh-
ampton-Biuildings, 1 told him of my Uncafinesy,
becanfe he had told me at the beginning, thac
theie things would be foon put in Kxecunion ¢ J
told him, if they were dilayed, T was atraid they
would not fucceed.  He then animated me, by
telling me that there was no tear of 1rs fucceeding ;
and that I fhould not be difcouraged, for there
was a great Man, a Man of Wit and Condudt,
that was at the Helm, and that had the Manage-
ment of the Scheme : That 1 fhould always keep
a good Ilearts and that Things went on very
well.

Mr, 778, Did he tll you in whole Favour
this was to be !

Lyzch. Yes, in Favour of the Pretender.
mentioned him by the Name of King,

Mr. Seiy. Chgbire. 120 you know any thing
about his goirg into the Counery ?

Lyich, After I met inm ac s Houfe, he went
into the Country and flad fixteon or {voneen
Days at his Retrn [went to e lum, weprdling
how uneafy I wasabout the Dilay.,

Mr, Seij. Pengelly. About what Time was
this

Lynch. I beheve 1t was in oy, And then I
told him hiny again how uneafy I was at the Delay.
To which he anfwered, keep a good Heart, all
‘Things go on very well.,

Mr. Seiy. Chefpive, Had you any Apprehenti-
ons that all was to be done at home, or that you
was to have any foreign Afliftance ?

Lynch. In my Dilcourle to him of the Uneafi-
nefs I wasunder at the Delay, ©afked him if he
had any Promife of any Succour from any Power
Abroad? He told me, if we once made a Begin-
ning, we fhould not want them: Bue did infinu-
ate, that we thould not want ncouragement from
the Court of I7aiice.

Mr. ctt. Gen. When yoo expreffed vour U
calinefs at the Delay, what did he fay to encourage
you ?

Lyich. The Reafon he told me was, that things
went on very well, and would very {oon be put i
Lxecution,

Mr. A, Gen, Inwhat Manner did you exprefs
your Uneafinefs?

Lyuch. Nothing but that 1 was vneafy, and I
was afraid that things did go wrong,

Mz, Sofl. Gen, What did you fay, did you fay
any thing relating to your own Circumitances ?

Lyiach, In the Beginning 1 told Dr. Aduipley,
becaufe 1t would be a long while, fome five or fix
Weeks, before T was to be introduced to Mr.
Layer’s Company, that I came on my own par-
ticular Bufinefs, and my Circumftances would not
permit me to be long here at my own Expence.

At

Iz
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At the Meeting with My, Layer, when Ifirlt made
this Complaint to him, Mr. Layer told me I fhould
pot want for 2 fimall Matter, to maintain me
England, Accordingly Mr. Layer gave me {ome

Money,

Mr, Ait. Gen. Do you remember how much

that was ?
Lynch. 1 cannot remembet,

M. Att. Gen. Did he give you Money at any
other Time ?

Lynch, Mr. Layer gave me fome Money the firft
Time, and afterwards he fent me fome Money by
Dr. Murphey.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Did he give you any Moncy
at any other Tune? o

Lynch, Yes, the laft time I was with him I had

fmote.
Mr. Att. Gen. How many times had vou Money

of him ?

Lynch. Fiveor fix times.

M. A, Gen. Do you know what the Sums did
amount to together ?

Lynch. 1 can’t recolleCt; but I believe about
¢ight or ten Guneas.

Mr, Ait. Gen. What was it given you for ?

Lynch. To keep me in Lngland, and o aflift in
the intended Defign of a Revolution.

Mr. Serj. Perselly,  Atter you went to him,
upon his Return out of the Country, do you re-
member the Difcourfe that paffed between you
then ¢

Lyich. Yes : After I came to his Houfe, I ex-
prefled my Uneafinefs at the Delay 5 Upon which
he encouraged me, giving me to hope that Things
went on very well, and our Defign would effectually

take Place.

Mr, Sers. Peagelly, Did you alk lim any thing
about the Army ?

Lyneh. T afked him if he had any Iincourage-
ment from the Guards and the Army ¢ e told
me, Yes, he had 5 that 2 great many of the Of-
ficers would not engage themielves now, being well
paid 5 but he faid he had fpoke with feveral Othicers
of the Guards, who had affured him, that molt of
the common Joldiers would come 1n, as {oon as we
had made a Beginning.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Did he mention any thing of
the Time?

L. C. Fust. When you afked him if he had
any Iincouragement from the Army, whatdid he
fay ?

Lyich. Fe told me, thathe had Encouragement
from many of the Officers of the Army : That he
had difcourfed with feveral Serjeants of the Guards,
who told him that the common Soldiers would be
glad, after they had made a Beginning, to comein
to them.

L. C.7ust. Did he give you any Reafon for
this ?

Lynch. Mr. Layer told me, the Serjeants told
him fobefore they were encamped, and complain-
cd of their ill Ufage, and hard Ufage from the
fubaltern Officers.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly, Was you acquatnted with any
Time or Day that was fixed ?

Lynch. There was no fixed Time: Mr. Layer
told me, it was to be on the Rifing of the Camp ;
becaule they could not talk with the Soldiers fo
well, while they were encamped, as they could af-
terwards, when they were in their Quarters.

Mr. Serj. Chofbire. Was there any Confultation
of viewing any one’s Houfe ?
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Lynch, Afterwards in Difcourfe he told me, that
it was fit to go and view the Earl of Cadogan’s
Houfe, in cafe it was neceflary to feize the faid
Lord in his Houfe.

M. Serf. Chefbire. Where is his Houfe 2

Lynch. In Piccadilly,  Accordingly we appoint-
eda Day togo; and I came to his Lodgings,
and we took Coachy and away we went; and
talking to him about it, he told me, he was very
well acquainted with my Lord Cadsgan, and had
fome Bufinefs with him, about an LEftate which
his Lordflip was about buying : We went to his
Houfe, but my Lord was not to be {poke with,
or was not withing I don’t remember which, but
we were conduéted into his Houfe @ We viewed
the inner Partof the Houfe, alterwards we went
into the Garden; we view'd the lower Pare of the
Garden, then we went out in the Yard, and wok
a View of the Avenues round about the Houfe,
I don’t remember exactly the Time, but it was
that Day thata Soldier fheuld have been fhot in
[yde-Park,

Mr. Sery. Chefbive, Flad vou any Difcourfe a-
bout the Feafiblenefsot 1t ?

Lynch, Yes, that itwas ealy to be done 3 if we
had but fome refolute Gentlemen to ftand by us,
that 1t was very fealible to be done.

M. Seiy. Chefbire. Flad you any Talk at that
time relating to the Zosoer ¢

Lyuch. He told me, the Zower would be imme-
diately furrendered to the Partys on the Day
the Plor was to be pur in Kxecution, acertain Of-
ficer of the Guards would take upon him to mount
the Guards there, who would facthtate the Deli-
very of the Tewer to them,

My, Seij. Chefbire. Was there any talk of the
Mint ?

Lynch, Yes, afterwards: e fud there would
be no deubt of the Minty they would be glad
to take the Opportunity to fhake off their Con-
finement 1 And that they would put Arms into
their Hands, according as they repaired to thelr
Party.

Mr, Att. Genr. When did you fee the Prifoner
next after the time that you {peak of viewing my
Lord Cadggan’s Floufe ?

Lyneh, 1 faw him at his own Houfe, and atfe-
veral Taverns in the City; and once he wrote to
me, defiring me to come to his Lodeing 5 accord-
mgly I went, and when I came to his Houle, 1
met with a litle Paper that was left for me, di-
recting me to go to the Quecn’s-Head Tavern In
Great Queen-Street near Lincoli’s-Tin-Fields, and
to enquire there for one Mr. JFilfon 5 which I did,
and I was conduéted into a Room where the faid
Mr. T7ilfonr was, with Mr, Laye and another Man,
who fvemed, by his Clothes, to be a Serjeant of the
Guards. I do not know the Man.

Mr. At Gen. What pafled then ?

Lynch, We ftaid a little while there, we talked
over the Bufinefs, and drank good Succefs to the
Enterprize.

Mr. Sery. Chefbire. Your Lordfhip will pleafe
to take Notice, that when he went to Mr, Layer’s
Lodging, he found a Letter there, directing him
to go to the Queer’s-Head Tavern, and enquire for
one Wilfon 5 that when he came there, Wilfon was
there, and Mr. Layer, and another Man.

Mr. Serg. Pengelly. What paffed atthat time?

Lynch. Nothing material,

Mr. Att. Gen. You talked about drinking good

Succels to the Enterprize : 'Who drank that ?
Lynch,
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We all drank that. |

i Lych. Did the Prifoner at the Bar

Mr. At Gen.
drink 1t ?

Lynch., Yes, hedid. 1 told the Prifoner, when

he went ont, that 1 was mighty uncafy at the
Delay of this Affair. He told me, I need not be
uncaly, for every Thing went on well 5 and they
tad 2 Nobleman at the Helm, who had Authority
f.om the Pretender, and would lole no Opportu-

nity when a fit Time offcred.
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. What did he call the Pre-

tender ? _ |

Lyuch. He called him the King, I was uneafy
at the Delay, for fear of being _dlﬁ:ovr:rld‘

L. C. Fuft. What Reafon did he give you,
why you fhould not be uncaly ¢ |

Lyich. Becaufe their Defigns were quickly
o be put in Exccution and there was 2 No-
bleman at the Helm who would put the Defign
in Execution, as having full Power and Au-

thority from the King to act as he thought

oper.
PrI[.). C. Fuff. Did you ask who that Noble-

man wis ?

T1ich. Yess but he never told me his Name,
but faid, that I fhould, in a proper Time, be
prefented o him, and recelve my Commifiion
and Orders from him to feize my Lord Ce-
dogan,

Mr, Serj. Pengelly, My1LDrtl? we f(hall now
oratify the Prifoner’s Cqunit:l, with an A(_:count
of what happened n Effex 3 T hope they will not
be impatient to hear that: Therclore, pray ac-
quaint my Lord, and the Jury, when you went
out of Town with Mr. Layer.

Lynch, My Lord; I was at Mr, Layer’s Houlc
the Day when the Bifhop of Rochgffer was fent to
the Tewer s he afk’d me, 1if T would ride abroad
with him the next Day to take the Aiwr 3 I con-
fented to it, and came the next Morning to his
Houle 5 and Mr, Layer afked me 1f I mounted
with Furniture: Itold him nos but that I had
a1 double Barre] Fowling-picee, which if his Ser-
vant would carry, would do as well.  He then
defired me to go and ftay for him without A-
aate, and get my Gun ready loaden, for he had
that about him which he would not lofe for any
thing i the World, T went and flaid tll about
wn or cleven o'Clock, when Mr. Layer met me,
and gave the Gua to his Servant to carry.  On
the Read he told me, we were going to my Lord
Neeth and Gray’s, whom he was very well ac-
quainted wich, and that he would recommend me
o him as a Friendof his.  When we got to the
Gireeir Man, he told me, we had better go inand
ame there, becaufe Dinner-time would be over
before we could getto my Lord Nerth and Gray’s.
Whilit Dinner was getting ready, we had feveral
i2ifcourfes on the fame Subjeét, Of dic Uneafines
of the Nation, and its Inclination to a Revolu-
iion, and how to bring it about 3 upon which e
pulled a Paper out of his Pocker, and gave 1e me
to read the latter Part of it.

WMy, Serj. Peizelly,  Can you ramember what
it contained 2

Lyich, T vemember fome Lines of it which
was, I general, to invite the Nation to an In-
turreClion, and to fhake off the Calamities and
Mileries they endured under the prefent Miniftry.
And 1t was mentioned in the faid Paper, that
the Il of Cadogan was a@tually in their Cul-
tody 3 thercby encouraging the Army 1o revolt,
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with an Offer of three Guineas to cvery Hotfe-
man and Serjeant, and two Guineas to every
Corporal, and one Guinea to every common
Soldier, to be paid immediately on their join
ing the Party, and a Promife of farther Prefer-
ment, |

Mr, Att. Gen. Did you read this ? ,

Lynch, I did, out of the Paper in Mr, Layers
Hand. -

Mr. A, Gen. Do you know whofe Hand-
writing it was ?

Lyneh. - According to our Difcourle, I thought
1t might be his writing,

L. C. Fuff. But he produced it ?

Lynch.,  Yes, my Lord, he produced it.

L. C. Juft.  You fay you imagine, from fome
Difcourfe between you, that it was his Hand-
writing ; what Reafon was there in all his Dil-
courfe, that induced you to think fo ?

Lynch, He tall’d of it as being of his own mak-
ing 5 befides, there were feveral Interlineations,
Dafhings-out, and Interlincations afterwards. He
was very well favsfied and caly as to me, and faid,
he could wifh that he could bring Matters about
fo, as that I could have the fole Dire@ion of
cizing fome of the Miniftry, and namely, my
Lord Towaflvid, my Lord Carterct, and Mr.
fﬁ?&‘l‘dﬂ.

Mr, At Gen, Was there any Difcourfe about
feizing the King ?

Lyuch: He faid, when the Defign was put in
Lixecution, the Army would declare in their Fa-
vour, and they would fend a firong Guard to take
care of the King’s Perfon,

Mr. Auit. Gen. Flow o take care of the King's
Perfon 2 What was you to do ?

Lyneh.  Nothing but to fecure the King’s Per-
fon 5 by what he wld me, it was for the Public
Good of the Kingdom ; that they did not nieap,
nor had they any Defign on the King’s Per-
fon, but only to keep him in Security from any

Infult.

Mr. At Gen.
Time ?

Lynch.  Nothing mote in particular.

Mr. Au. Gen. Fad you any talk relating o
the Army ?
Lyich.

Army.

Mr. Seij. Pengelly.  Was there any Dilcourfe
about a Scheme or Plan ?

Lynch, He told me there was a Scheme lud
on that Foot, of which I told you the firft Step
was to feize the Earl of Cadsgan, and then, ac-
cordmg as the Army came over, to take care
and feize the King’s Perfon 3 and he thought
the proper Time to put this in Execution,
would be at the Rifing of the Camp in Hyde-
Park.

Mr, Serj. Pengelly,  'Was there any Objection
made to this? |

Lynch. Nos 1 made no Objeétion, only fhew’d
my Uneafinefs at the long Delay.

Mr, Serj. Pengelly, When you fo exprefled
your Uneafinefs, what did he fay ¢

Lynch, He told me, if I could think or pro-
pofe any Thing more proper, that I fhould do it.
After that we rode toward Lpping, and went to
my Lord Nerth and Gray’s 5 and there Mr. Layer
introduced me as his Iriend.  'We ftaid there all
Night, and dined there the next Day. In the
Evening we came away, in company With aﬁc-'

tner

What more paffed at that

I faid before what related to the
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ther Gentleman that T did not l::novf; but we
alktd on the Read about the Sttwation of my
[ord’s Houfe; and Mr. Layer told me he had
recommended me to his Lordfhip as Ius particular
Friend, and #fked me how I liked him,

Mr, Sci7. Peigedly. Did he afk you any Que-
ftions ? Do you remember what he called his
Lorathip?

Lk, 1 don’t remember any other Name but
Ay LE?';.". -

Mr. Serj. Pengelly, When he afked your Opi-
nion of him, and how you hled him, did he de-
feribe him in any other manner, or only called hiny

My Loid 2 .
Lyuch. He only called him my Lord Neyt)

and Giey; he only asked me how 1 liked my
Lord Newth and Girey. |

Mr. Serj. Prigelly. Liked his Lordfhip, for
what ?

Lyneh,  That was all.

Mr, Reeve. Had you any Talk with him a-
bout the Perfon that was to have the chicf Com-
ntand ?

Lynch.  Yess but he never named the Perfon.

Ny, 777, Had you never any Difconrle who
was to command the Party that was to {eize my
Vord Cadogan ¢

Lynch, T was to command that Party,

Mr. 775, Was you any other Time at my
Lord Neithand Giey’s ?

Liuch. Yesy, another time I went to my Lord
Worth and Groy’s, where I found Mr. Laver, and
exprefled to Mr, Layer the Uncnﬁi_n.‘:fsl Was 1n at
the long Delay, and that [ was afraid our Hopes
would vanith 5 and told him, 1t things were not
joon put in Execution, I would withdraw my
felf, Mr. Lager bid me not be unealy, Things
might perhaps be fooner put in Ixecution than 1
agined.

Mr. Weff.  Where was this

Luich. At Epping, ar my Lord Nerth and
Giey's,

Mr, /gt Did you come home together ?

Lynch., No; Icame home that Night : M.
Layer remained there.

Mr. Sevy, Pengelly. Did you fee him fome time
afterwards ?

Lyich, T met himat his own Houle, where [
exprefling my Unealinefs as formerly, he faid, I
fhould not be unealy, for Things would foon
take Liiect 5 and bid me get myfelf ready to ex-
cente iy Defign g becaufe they had Norice the
Camp woukl foon break up, which was the Time
defigned to put Things in 1ixccution. And at ano-
ther timie he told me, that the Declaration which
he had fhewn me ac the Green Man, had menti-
oned no particular Perfons, but in eencral the
Salety and Public Good of the Kingdom: There
was nothing mentioned of the Prewender in i,
but that he bad thovght fit to put it now in the
Pretender’s Name.

Mr, Serj. Pengelly,  Who was you to receive
your particular  Orders from, for the exceuting
your Delign ?

Tyned,  Irom that Nobleman, who was to aét
15 General In this AHair,

Vir, Sy, Pengelly.  Did you never hear from
Mr. Layer who that was ?

Lyneh. No s 1 don’t recollet he was ever nam-
ed by Mr. Layer; he told me, that the Decla-
ration was afterwards pot in the Name of the
Pretender, :

Mr, Serj. Pengelly, What was it he- recom-
mended you to my Lord Nesth and Grey for ?

Lynch. He recomniended me to him as one of
his particular Friends.

Mr. Sy, Pengelly.  What Difcourfe had you
at that Time ¢

Lyich,  We tall’d indifferently 5 we difcours®d
rothing of the Revolution at that Time : He
told me he had given the Declaration to a Nop-

juring-Miniller to get printed, and had given

twenty Guineas for that Purpofe.

Mr. So/l. Gen. Was you acquainted before with
my lord Nerth and Grey.

Lyuch. No s he introduced me as one of his
Friends,

Mur. Seiy. Chefbire.  Did you know when Mr.
Layer was hirft taken up ?

Lyuch.  Yes,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire.  How long before that had
you been with him ?

Lyuch.  Ucan’t recolle@ the Time. I firlt be-
came acquainted with Mr. Layer about Fune.

Mr. Seij. Chefbive.  What pafled the laft time
you was with him, before he was taken up ?
Was there any particular Conference  between
you ¢

Lyich, T told youabout the Declaration, and
about my Unealinefs, and that he told me
Things would fucceed fooner than I thovght
for.

Mr. Serj. Chghbire.  When you exprefs'd your
Uneafinefs, did he ufe any Vehemence of Expred-
fion, as to what Part he would aét?

Lynch,  Tle told me feveral times, when I was
fo irrefolute and uncaly, faith he, don’t you be
uncaly 5 rather than all fhould fail, T will ttir up
and be a fecond Mafinells,

Mr., 775, Had you any Converfation about
the taking up of any Perton ?

Lyach, Fle only told me at that Time, that
it the Nobleman at the Head of Affairs thould
be taken up, every thing would be quafld.

Mr, Serj, Peagelly.  That Nobleman was not
taken up at that Time then?

Lyich. No.

Mr. Seij. Pengell,  'What Recommendation
had you to my Lord Nerth and Grey 2

Lynch,  Only as a Friend of Mr, Layei’s, to
pafs away the Time in Summer,

Mr. /lungerford. 1 prefume they have done
with giving the Iividence, which they intend,
of any Overt-A& in the County of Effex; if
they have, I would crave the Liberty to ob-
ferve.

Mr. Seiy. Pengelly, We have not done 5 if you
have any thing to obferve, it mult be when we
have gone through our Evidence,

L. C. juf. When they have given all their
Evidence, then will be your proper time to ob-

ject to the Evidence, and to fhew whether *ds

competent or no.

Mr, Hungerford. 1 do not prefs to make any
Remarks upon their whole Kvidence s bur if they
hiave given all the Evidence they intend to give
of any Overt-Act in  Effex, for on that depends
the Fate of this Gentleman at the Bar, I hope
we are now (before they fhall be permitted to
give Evidence of any farther Overt-A& of Trea-
fon in another County) at Liberty to obje,
that the Tranlaction in Effev is not an Overi-
Actatall of the High-Treafon kid in this In-

dictment.
Mz, Soll, Gen,
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.M. Soll. Gen. We have not domi:} When
we have given our Evidence, then it will be

proper for them to make their Objections to the

¥ hole. _
'\ Ic’?r? Hungerford. 1 humbly offer 1t to your

Lordfhip’s Confideration, whether it 1s right and
proper to go on in fuch a Method, and to take
up the Time of the Court, when the Gentlemen
on the other Side fay, they havedone with giving
Evidence as to any Overt-Act in the County of
Effex. _ | _
M;r: Soll. Gen. No; we have not done with that
Evidence.

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 don’t know whether your Lord-
thip will indulge us to afk the Witnefsa Queftion
O twO Now.

L. C. Just. Propofe your Queflions; and we
will tell you.

Mr. Ketelbey. Whether he hath any Offer of
Pardon propofed to him to induce him to give
Evidence againft the Prifoner at the Bar s which
if he hath, we apprehend will invalidate his E-
vidence.

Lyuch, No, Sir; I have no Promife of Pardon
atall : T only do thisoutof fuftice, to make what
Reparation I can, and to fave the Blood of many
People,

Mr. Ketelbzy, 1 beg leave to afk him a few
more Queftions. I think you fay the fieft time
you were introduced into this Gentleman’s Com-
pany, the Prifoner at the Bar, was at the Griffn-
Tavernin Holborn, and that he then told you he
had great Defigns in hand ; and that there was
an Infurrection defigned, and they wanted a Per-
fon of Refolution to feize a General : This, you
fay, was the firft Time that ever you faw the
Prifoner at the Bar. How came you to have
that Share of Confidence in 2 Man that you never
faw before?

Lynch. T told you 1 was in Difcourfe with
Dr. Murphey a great many Days and Weeks be-
fore I faw Mr. Layery I told you how every
Day I faw him, and always difcourfed about the
Infurre€tion, and how he told me then that he
would recommend fme to a Man that had the Ma-
nagement of the greateft Part in this Affair ; and
I afked every Day when I fhould be introduced
to him : He told me, the Time was not come
yet s but when 1t was a proper Time, he would
introduce me.

Mr. Ketclbey. 1 think you give that fora Rea-
fon, why you had that Confidence in him, becaufe
you had been recommended by one Dr. Murpbev.
How came you to have that mighty Dependance on
Dr. Muyphey 2

Lyiich, Becaufe Dr, Murphey and I had been
acquainted feveral Years ago,

Mr. Ketelbey. I hope you was not in any
wicked Defign with Dr. Murphey, and fo much
acquainted, as to recommend you in a Cafe of
Treafon,

Lynch, There was a common Friendthip be-
tween us.
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Minute or two; but was you there an Hour, or
two, or three Hours ?

Lynch, T can’t fay whether we were there dn
Hour or two ; but we had fomething dreffed for
Dinner, and the Matters was difcourfed of by us
before Dinner.

Mr. Ketefbey. When you firft aliglited from
your Horfes, what Room was you fhewn into?

Lynch, We were fhewn into a Room .up
one Pair of Stairs on the Right Hand, the firft
Room.

Mr. Ketelbey, Was it towards the Street, or
backwards ?

Lyuch. It looked into the common Road.

Mr. Ketelbey, Did you look outof the Window
and fee a Perfon of your Acquaintance ?

] Lynch. 1faw two Gentlemen, but did not know
them,

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you not look otit of the Win-
dow, and fay, you faw a Gentleman of your Ac-
quaintance ? .

Lynch. T faid T faw two Gentlemen that I
thought T had feen before.

Mr. Ketelbey. Did not you go down to thof
Gentlemen ?

Lynech, No, I did not go down to them.

Mr. Ketelbey. Did not you go down to them ?

Lynch. No.

Mr. Keteltey. Did not you fay fo to Mr. Layer,
in the Drawer’s Prefence ?

Lynch, No.

Lrifoncr, Did not you tell me that thofe Gentle-
men were your Acquaintance ?

Lyneh. 1 told you; thofe two Gentlemen I had
feen before,

. Prifoner. How long were we together at the
Green Man? Were the Horfes put up or not ?

Lyneh, I can’t tell. -

Prifoner. Was there any thing drefled for our
Dinner but a Beef-Stake ?

Lynch. No, nothing elfe.

Prifener. Did notyou go down Stairs, pretend-
ing you went to thofe Gentlemen 2

Lynch. No, 1 did not tell you I went to thofe
Gentlemen,

Prifoner. Did you not go down Stairs ?

Lynch, Yes, 1did, and came up aguin imme-
diately.

Prifoner. Was not Dinner on Table when you
came up again ? i

Lynch. T wentdown twice before Dinner.

Prifoner. Then you mull confequently leave me
1 the Room,

Lynch, I went down to make Water,

Prifoner. What did you go down the fecond
time for ?

Lynch, Out of Curiofity.

Prifoner. How long did you ftay 2

Lynech, Not both times above two Minutes,

Prifoncr. 1 was then alone, when you went

down.

Lynch. Yes, .
Prifener. Was this Difcourfe before or after

Mr. Ketelbey. How came he to wuft you? Dinner ?

Would you have trufted him in = Bufinefs of
Treafon ?

Lynch. It was before Dinner. |
Prifoner. When you came up .the fecond time,

Lynch, We have been concerned in Affairs to-  was not Dinner on the Table ?

oether,

Mr. Ketelbey, How long was you at the Greex
Man with Mr. Layer ?

Lynch. Ican’t fay exactly the time.

Mr. Ketelbey, 1 don’t afk you exattly to a
Vou, VI,

Lynch, It was comeup, o
Prifoner. And yet the Difcourfe we had was be-

fore Dinner?

Lynch, Yes; it was before Dinner,

M m Prifoier,
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Prifoner. How thuch Time might we fpend
hefore Dinner, half an Hour or an_Hﬂur?
Lynch. T don’t remember, but it was a oood

while, '
Prifoner. Was not the double Barrel Gun in

the Room?

Lynch. 1 don’t know whether it was there, or
whether your Servant had it.

Piifoner. At the Time of Dinner was my Set-
vant, or Drawer, in the Room ?

Lynch. Neither of them was in the Room.

Prifoner. You fay we were a good while, you
and |, alone; pray, how long ?

Lynch. 1 cannort fay pofitively how long.

Mr. Hungerford. Have you any Copy of that
Part of the Paper he gave you to read, and which
you read ?

Lyuch. No.

Mr., Hungerferd. Was the Whole of 1t of any
Length?

Lynch. To the beft of my Remembrance it was
a common Sheet of Paper.,

Mr. Hungerford. Did you read the Whole ?

Lyich. No; he doubled it down, and gave me
ehe lacter Part of 1t to read.

Mr, Ketelbey. Some Things you feem to remem-
ber, and fome Things you don’t remember : Was
it printed, or written ?

Lynch. It was written,

Mr, Ketelbey, Did he not mention it to be the
Prince of Orange’s Declaration ?

Lynch. No, he did not.

Prifoner. Was not the Paper blotted ?

Lynch. In that I faw there were two or three
Places interlined,

Mr., Hungerford. My Lord, I think the Gen-
tlemen did fay they had not done with their Evi-
dence, with rclation to an Overt-Act in Effex 5 if
they have not, they will do well to go on now:
But we hope they fhall not go into Overt-Alts
committed in any other County, till they make
the Whole of their Proofs of an Overt-Aé& in
Effex.

L. C. Fust. You have been told, they fhould
proceed in their own Method, and when they have
done, you may make what Obfervations may be of
Service to your Chent.

Mr, Hungerford. Relations of Ialt arifing in
another County, which have no Relation to the
Falt arifing in Effex, we hope they fhall not go
into, to amufe or captivate the Jury, the Court,
and the Auditory.

L.C. Fuit. Sure never any Thing was like
this! It is our Province to give Directions, and
we think it not proper to interrupt the King’s
Counfel, but that they fhould proceed in their
own Methoed : You fhall be heard as long as

you pleale, when you come to make your Obfer-
vations.

Mr., Soll. Gen. The Prifoner hath a Right to
fay any thing that is proper to the Court and the
Jury, 1n his Defence, but he muft fay it openly
he 1s not to talk privately with the Jury; tho' I
am fure they are Gentlemen of fo great Worth
and Honour, as not to be influenced.

Mr. /¢, Gen. 1 dare fay the Jury won’t be in.
fluenced ; but he talks to his Counfel fo loud,
1:}1:1t the Jury may eafily hear every Word he

ays.

L. C. Fust. He muft not {peak fo loud.

Mr, Ait, Gen. 1 juft now heard him fay, It
was ftaange to go on with Evidence that would
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not be to the Purpofe. I heard him, as I fathere -
fet him deny it if he can,

L. C. Just. 1 hope you will notoffer any thing
of that Kind, Mr. Layer : You have a Right to
difcourfe with your Counfel, but you muft do i¢
in fuch a Manner as the Jury may not hear,

Mr, Hungerford, Indeed, my Lord, he fhall
have no Encouragement from us for any {uch
Condu&.

Matthewy Plunkett fworn,

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. Tell my Lord and the
Jury, whether you know the Prifoner at the
Bar,

Pluikett, Yes, 1 do know him.

Mr. Ser). Chefhire. Wil you tell my Lord and
the Jury, upon what Account, and by whof
Means, you hrit became acquainted ?

Plunkett. One Major Barnewell brought me
firlt acquainted with Mr. Layer 5 he had an Exe-
cution in his Houle in Great Queen-fircet, and this
Major Barunewell came to me, and defired me to
act 2 Couple of Grenadiers, 1 brought him two ;
we went to Mr. Layer’s Hoofe, and his Clerk et
us 1n at the Back-door, and the Grenadiers turned
the Officers out, and Mr., Layer gave them a
Crown, and a Glals of Brandy.

Mr, Scrj. Chefbire. When was this ?

Pluikett. As near as [ can guefs, 1t 15 going on
of five Years.

Mr. Sery. Chefbire. ‘Tell my Lord und the Jury
what Month m this lalt Year you renewed
the Acquaintance, and who brought you 1o
him ?

Plunkett. 'The next Acquaintance I had after-
waidls, was by Major Baruewell, who was arrefted,
and he fent me with a Letter to his Houfe, to de-
fire him to relieve him,

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. Do you know any thing of
one Fanics Plunkelt ?

Plunkett, Yes ; hecame to me from Mr. Laycr.
in Fuly laft, to defire me to meet him 3 but how
this Counfellor Layer and this Fames Plunkett came
acquainted I don’t know.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. What was he ?

Plunkett, 1 don’t know what he is; he is ac-
quainted with Mr, Layer.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire.  What Profeffion is he
of ?

Pluntert. I don’t know ; nor how he lives, or
gets his Bread.

L. C. Fuit. Go on,

Plunkett. Mr. Layer paid the Charges for Ma-
jor Rarnewell, and brought him out of the Mar-

Shalfea.

Mr. Reeve, How long was this ago ?

Plunkett, To the beft of my Knowledoe, four
Years ago.

Mr. Keeve, He is giving an Account how he
came 10 be acquainted with Mr. Layer ; the firlt
time was upon the Account of refcuing Mr, Layer’s
Goods; the other time was by Mr. Layer’s re-
deeming Major Barnewell out of the Marfhalfea,
and paying his Debt: Give an Account how you
came laft acquainted with him:

Plunkett. 1 being at home, in my own Room,

Mr. Reeve, How long ago?

Piunkett. Ibelieve, as near as I can guefs, it
was laft Fuly,

Mr, Reeve, Give an Account of what hap-
pencd then,

Plunkett. Now this Fames Plunkett came into

my Room, fat down, and he afked me hm:l*_df
i,
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did, and faid, he was glad to fec me; and he
aflked me, Are you not well acquainted in the
iArmy? Yes, faith I, 1 know a great many 1n
the Army, both Officers and common Soldiers.

know, faith he, any of the Sctjeants of
512 }gzar(?s? [ know fome of ’em, faid I. He

broucht me out of the Room, becaufe my Wife

was there, and then he opened his Mind to me:

Ssith he, Do you know one Mr. Lajer 2 (I had

forgot the Gentleman, being fo lightly acquaint-

ed with him;) No, faith 1, I don’c know him.

No matter, faith he, I have appointgd a Place
for you to mect him at, at the ftalian Coffce-

Houle in Ruflel-Court s and at the End of this,
Mr., Pluakett afked me to keep Correfpoqdcncc
with them for the Pretender’s Service. I dld* not
co to the Jialian Coffee-Houfe, not being in a
proper Station, nor having Money for that Pur-
pofe: So I did not think proper to go to the Jta-
lian Cofice-Houfe s but the Swiday following I went
to St. Andrew’s Church, and meeting with fome
FFriends, they told me Dr, Sacheverel PI‘UIIC‘II’(J. there;
and fo they decoy’d me togo and hear him preach
there. When Service was over, to the beft of my
Wnowledge, as I was going Home, between twelve
and one a-Clock, I met Mr. Layer acaidentally m
Lincoli’s-Tm-Fields 3 Mr. Layer he lool{’fi at me,
he was really a perfect Stranger to me, for I did
not know him again 5 faith he, Is not your N:-.ltpe
Pluitkets 2 Yes, faith I, 'Was there not one with
you t'other Night, one Fames Plunkett ? qu,
Sir, faysI.  Where did he dcfire youto go? faid
he. I anfwer’d, He defired me to go to the fra-
fioin Coffee-IHoule in Ruffel-Conrt,  Saith he, *Tis
well enough : Do you not know me ¢ No, faith
1, you have the Advantage of me; I afk your
Pardon, for I don’t remember you. Don’t you
remember one Layer 2 faid he, Then I call’d to
Mind that I knew the Gentleman, Saith he, Will
you walk on this Side? I walked back again towards
Little Turn-Stile, and we ftruck up the Wall-Side,
and juft as we came under a great Coach-Houfe
Gate-Way, we went in, and in the Gate-Way he
ralk’d to me; faith he, I am told that you are a
very honeft Man, and well-affected fo and fo.

My, Reeve. Well-affe€ted, to whom ?

Plinkest., Well-affetted as to the Bufinefs of the
Pretender., At the fame Time we had this Talk,
he bid me not mention 1t to Fames Plunkets, that
I had {een him : Then he asked me if I knew
any Serjeants in the Guards ; for faith he, I
want fuch old Soldiers as you are yourfelf, that
could difcipline a Mob, for we have other Men
enough amongft us; but if we could get fome old
Soldiers, if that could be managed, they would
be finely rewarded. But Sir, faith I, the Pretender
1s & Papift. Saith he, what Difference is there be-
tween a Papift King, and a Lutheran King ?

Mr., Reeve, He faid he wanted fuch old Sol-
cliers as you 5 for what?

Pluiskett. He wanted them to difcipline a Mob,
and to put them in Order. Then we began
to reafon about the Pretender; Why, faith he,

we had as good have a Papift for our King as a
Lutheran,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. What did you object 2

Plunkets. 1 faid he was a Papift.  Says he,
We had as good have a Papift for our King, as
to have a Lutheran, 1 don’t know what Diffe-
rence there is3 but as it was, the Nation was en-

flaved, and the People were obliged to be Slaves, -

[ asked him, Sir, who is the Promoter

of this,
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that may join us?- You ‘fee, fays he,. what In-
juftice is done to you, you have ferved "Abroad,
and others are put over your Head; you have
had and found great Hardfhips. I asked him
who promoted this ? He faid, the Lord Nerib
and Grey, Says I, He is a Peer of the Realm,
Saith he, Heis a fine General, And the Earl of
Strafford he mentioned.

Mr. Reeve, Who did he fay wasa fine Ge-
neral ?

Pluntett, He faid my Lord Noith and Grey
was a fine General ; and ask’d me whae I thought
of him? I faid I had never been under his Com-
mand, but I Jook’d upon him to be a great Man,
and one of the Peers of the Land. And then
he mentioned my Lord Strafford, What do you
think of him ? To which I made the like An-
{wer.  And what do you think of General Prim-
rofe? Tfud, 1 had lately feen him at Chelfea, paf-
fing by in his Coach, but that he was an old
Man ;3 however, Mr. Layer faid he was a brave
General.  Then he ask’d me what I thought of
General 7Vebb 2 1 faid, I had heard of his Fame.

Mr. Ser). Pengelly, When he had faid my Lord
North and Grey wasa fine General, and when
you ask’d who promoted it, whether did Mr
Layer tell you what their Defign was to do ?
When Mr. Layer ask’d you what do you think of

this Perfon, and the other Perfon, what. were they
to do?

Plunkett, 'To raife a Rebellion,

Mr., Ser), Pengelly, Was that talk’d of at that
Thne ?

Plunkctt, Not at that Time;

L. C. 74ff. You fay he wanted fuch old Sol-
diers as you ; for what Purpofe? You fay he want-

ed them to difcipline a Mob, and put it in Order.
Pluntett. Yes, my Lord,

L. C. Fuft. Did he tell you how many he
wanted ?

Pluikett. No ;5 he did not fay how many:.

Mr. Ser). Chefbire. Was there any thing fid
about their Names at that Time ?

Plunkett, Mr. Layer would have me take a
Laft of their Names, and to earoll them, that
they might know where they lodg’d, and where
they quartered ; that fo when he wanted them,
he might fend for them to be in Readinefs.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Was there any Number
he ask’d you the Namesof ?

Plunkets. 1 faid I knew a great many, and
that I could get twenty five. Saith he, you oughe
to have a Lift of their Names, where they lodge,
that they may be in Readinefs for a Call : And
faith he, This would have gone on fome Time
ago, only Somebody made Difcovery of it to the
french Ambaffador, and he wrote to the Regent,
and fo it was difcovered to the King: And faith
he, The Duke of Ormond was to come in one
Ship, and General Dillor in another, and they
would bring their Numbers with them; and then
I fhould fee that the Army would not oppofe
them., And when I parted from him, he gave
me half a Crown to drink.

Mr. Sex): Chefbire. What was that to do?

Plunkets. It was to encourage me, And he
faid he would fend a Meflfenger to me 3 and in a
Day or two afterwards there came a Meflenger
from him : X was not at home, but he fpoke with
my Wife,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Who was that &

Plunkest. The Un-juring Minifter,

Mm2 M.
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Mt A, Gen. What was his Name ?

Plunkest. His Name was Feffreys.
Mr. A, Gen. You fay you wasnot at home

the firft Time; did he come again ?

Plunkett, Yes.

Mr. Att. Gen. How long after ?

Plunkest. A matter of five or fix days after,

Mr. Az, Gen. Did you fee him?

Plunkett,  Yes, T faw him.

Me. 211, Gen.  What pafled between you ?

Plukert, He afk’d me if I knew Mr. Layer?
T told him I did. He then carried me to the
Caftle ‘Tavern in Draury-Laie, where we drank
swo Pints of Wine, which he paid for; after the
Nonjuring Parfon told me he came from Layer,
who gave his Service, and told me that he was
employed by Mr. Layer to go to fuch as I was,
who were oid Serjeants, to get a Parcel together
o difcipline Citizens, and other Mob i the

Country.
Mr. . Gen. What further pafs’d between

you and Mr. Feffreys 2 |

Mr. Ketelby. 1 beg leave to objedt to that

neftion.

Mr. A, Gen. 1f I don’t bring it home to Mr.
Layer, it will fignify nothing,

L. C. Fufl. Mr, Ketelbey, you know that many
t'mes in Difcourfe it is neceflary to mention In-
troductions, to let in what is matertal : Whatever
paf'd between him and Feffreys, don’t affek
your Client, *

Mr, Hungerford, It isa conftant Rule, if a
Man fpeaks of a third Perfon’s Tranfactions, 1t
is declared as nothing, and commonly ftop’d from
being given in Evidence. o

L. C. Fuft. If they begin right, they will give
Evidence in fuch a Method as to be underftood :
By declaring what paffed between him and Plua-
kett, the Evidence may be the better under-
{tood.

Mr. Ketelbey, 1 don’t doubt your Lordfhip’s
aiving Dircttion right ; but I obferve this, left
fome of the Jury thould not take 1t right,

L. C. Fuft. Let the Evidence be given in fuch
a manner as may be underftood; what 1s intro-
dutory goes for nothing, but it is in order to ex-
plain the Evidence,

Mr., At Gen. What pals’d between you and
the Nonjuring Parfon, at the Caftle Tavern?

Plukett,  He talk’d to me of the fame Sub-
je@t, deliring me to get Men 1n Readinefs ; he
told me, he had a great many Places to go to
belides me with this Errand, and then we parted.
Another time he came to me, we went to an Ale-
Houfe, to the Cock and Bottle in the Strand, where
he gave me half a Guinea, and faid, there is a
Token, Mr. Layer had fent it me to give me En-
couragement.

Mr, Serj. Pengelly, At that Time that Mr.
Layer faid he would fend a Meflenger to you, did
he mention any thing of Money ¢

Plunketr, Mr. Layer faid he would fend Mone
by the Meflenger to me. |

L. C. fuf. You fay he told you, that he would
fend you Moncy by the Meflenger,

Plunkett. He told me fo,

L. C. Fup. Afterwards you fay, one came to
you as from hirh, and encouraged you, and gave
you half a Guinea. ‘

Plunkett. He did ; T am upon my Oath be-

fore God and Man, I will fay nothing but the
Truth, ‘ '

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. Did you receive any Mef.
fage from Feffreys to appoint a Meeting with M.
Layer ?

Plunkett. Some Time afterwards I met Mr,
Layer, at eight a-Clock, at the Cafile Tavern
Drury-Lane 3 there was the Landlord, and Mr,
Layer, who had two Bottles of Wine, and fome
Bread and Cheele : He would have had me eat,
but I told him T could not eaty but I drank of
the Wine. When he had difcours’d with me a-
bout the Affair, to encourage me he gave me a
Crown 3 I went crofs Lincoli’s-Inn-Lields, fo went
home.

Mr. J/eff.  What did he give you the Crown
for ?

Plunkett, 'To encourage me to lft Men for
the Pretender.

Mr, Att. Gen. Had you any Letter by the
Peumy-Poft ?

Plunkert. ‘That Morning Mr. Layer was going
to Nerfolk, Plunkett told me Mr. Layer was going
out of Town, and would be glhd to fte me. [
went to Mr, Layer, and his Horles were at the
Door 3 he defired me to walk up two Pair of
Stairs forwards, and by the fame Token order’d
his Servant to charge his Blunderbufs in the Room.
Saith Mr. Layer, 1 have given a Guinea to the
Nonjuring Munifter to give you, to do what Ser-
vice you can ; and when I am abroad, you may
be fure I fhall not be idle.

Mr. Reeve. Was any Propoful made to any
other Perfon ?

Plunkett. 1 brought an old Soldier who had
been in the Service many Years.

Mr. Reeve. What was his Name ?

Plunkett, fobn Child 5 1 brought him as think-
ing he might have been of Service to them,

L. C. Fuf. What was 1t Mr. Layer faid when
he was going into the Country ?

Plunkett. He told me he would not he idle
there.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly, What did he defire of you ?

Pluikett. He delired me to fee and get what
Soldiers I could for him : I came to the Nonjuring
Minifter, and told him I had got twenty five.
Then Mr. Layer afk’d me, why I did not bring
a Lift of them, that he might know where their
Habitations were, and that they might be in
Readinefs at the Time, I difputed with Mr.
Layer what they would do for Arms ? No fear
of Arms, faith he; Arms will be provided for
them, After he returned from the Country to
the Town, this Mr, Plunkett was the firlt Meflen-
oer that was fent to me; he came and told me
Mr. Layer was come to Town; and this Nonjur-
ing Parfon {fent me a Letter by the Penny-Poff 5
Mr, Child was in my Room and rcad it; the
Contents were, Mr. Layer is come to Tozon, and
would be very glad to fee you : No more, but your
buinble Servant, William Jeffreys, By this I knew
his Name,

Mr. A, Gen. By this Letter he told you
Mz, Layer would be glad to fee you ; did you go
to him?

Plunkett. Yes, I went to him.

Mr. Art, Ger. Where? To his own Houfe?

Plunkett. Yes, to his owwn Houle,

Mr. Att. Gen. What paffed between you and
Mr. Layer at that Time 2

Plunkett. 1 remember at that Time, when I
came to him, he gave me a Guinea with his own
Hand,

M.



1722. B.R.

A1, Gen. Who gave it you?
%:wg::, Mr. Layer, after he came from the
Counéry, gave 1t me, and I recommended Mr,

. h' .
Cbﬁ:ﬁ Sc’.l‘:‘? Pengelly. When you recommended

 Child, what did Layer fay ? .
M}f?fﬂeﬁ. 1Fi-Ie faid he had no Bufinefs for him.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. For what Purpofe was Child
recommended to Mr. Layer & |
Pluskets. 1 recommended him as an honeft
Man, as one that was well-affected, as he defired

mcMr. Serj, Pengelly. Upon what Account did

vou recommend him ? .
" Plunkets. Upon the Account to be a Pretender’s

Man. | |
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Did you ever recetve any

ney to give to Child?
M(;’!u};!;ﬂm.gl received half a Guinea from Mr.
Layer to give to Mr. Child. .
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. For what Purpofe was it ?
Pluikett. For to encourage him in the Service,
to be trufty to him, and to be a Pretender’s Man.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. By what Name did he call
the Pretender? * '

Piunkett, He called him the King.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Had you any Talk with hin
any other tumne?

Plunkett. The Sunday before he was tak_cn up 1
was with him, and he was talking and faying the

King was as finc a Shooter as any in Lurpe.
Mr. 8arj. Pengelly. Whom did he mean by the

King ?

Plunkett, The Pretender, that he was as finea
Shooter as any in Europe; he fhot nineteen out of
twenty : I faid, that was fine fhooting.

Mr. Att, Gen. Where was this Difcourfe ?

Plunkett. In his own Parlour.,

Mr, Att. Gen. Can you recolle€t any other
Difcourfe there was at that Time, befides that of
Shooting ¢

Plunkett. Yes, there was; We talked of thofe
Men that would do Service. [Iafked him what
Rewards thofe Men, that would do Service for
their King and Country, fhould have 3 he told me,
that they, and their Families, were to be for ever
taken Care of,

Mr. Serj. Peigelly, \Vas there any other Promife
made to you ?

Plupkett. There was no Promife; only he was
the Man who faid, 1t I would follow his Direc-
tions, he would promote me 3 that he would en-
gage to do great Matters for me ; and what I fuf-
fered 1n the Army, he would make me Amends
for. -
Mr. Ser). Pengelly. Had you any Dilcourfe a-
hout the Difpofition of the Nation ?

Plunkets, He faid, that moft of the Nation
was tired with the prefent Government ; and he
faid that King George was for ruining of the
Nation.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Had you any Talk of any
Perfons at Court 2

Plunkett, Yes 3 he faid, what fignified the Go-
vernment 3 there were but only eigat or nine Up-
itarts that belonged to King George’s Court 3 that
the ancient Peers of the Realm would not be run
down ; for they fhould be made Slaves, if they
did not prevent it. '

Mr. Ser). Pengelly, Had you any Difcourfe any
other Time about the Dutch or the French ?

Plunkett. Yes 5 1 do rerhember that he faid,
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here 15 2 Dutch Army come in upon this Nation,
and then the French Army will comein, and take
our Rights and Liberties from us: You will keep
a Duich Army, and it will be to make a War a-
mong, our felves.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. What would he have to cure
all this ¢

Plupkett. e told me, that when the Infure
rection was, there would be a great many Half-
Pay-Ofhcers as I knew that would be on the Pre-
tender’s Side, and efpecially thofe of the Names
of Fitzgerald ; but 1 never knew any Fitzgerald
Abroad.

Mr. At Gen. We have done examining this
Witnels.

Prifoner. You fay your firft Acquaintance with
me was in Queen-Street, and that Mujor Barueoel!
defired you to aflift me, there being an Execution
m my Houfe : Was it not fo?

Plunkett. Yes,

Prifoirer. Atthe fame time you called me Coun-
cllor Layer ¢

Plunkett, Yes; T came to your Houfe,

Prifoner. Did I employ you ?

Plunkett, Major Barnewell fent me to get a
Couple of Grenadicrs, and you ordered your Clerk
to let them in at the Back-door ; and the two Gre-
nadiers, which were confined in the Savsy afterwards
for it, drove the Officers out.

Prifoner. Was it the Landlord of the Houft’s
Goods, or my Goods ?

Plunkett, 1 cannot tell ; how fhould I know
whether they were yours, or his ? they were in
your Houfe.

Prifoner, You faid it was about five Years before
Lfaw you in Lincoln’s-Iim-Fields.

Plunkert. It was when the Army was broke ;
and I came over from Freland,

Prifoncr. Well, you fay, five Years afterwards
I met you i Lincolw's-Tnn-Fields, and gave you

half a Crown to drink, Itold you my Lord North

and Grey was to be General : That my Lord $iraf~

ford was concerned in it,

fl_’lm:kett. No, you told me they were Promoters
of it

Prifoner. Promoters of what ?

Plunkest, Of this Confpiracy.

Prifoner. So you did not know me ? nor I did
not know you,

Plunkett. Yes, you knew me; therefore, Sir,
faid I, you have an Advantage againft me 5 for I
don’t know you. Afterwards we met one another
by Accident: Says you, don’t tell Plunkett you
met me,

Prifoncr. What Plunkeit 2

Plunkett, Fames Plunkett.

Prifoner. Where lives Fames Plunkett ?

Plunkest, I don’t know : However that’s not
material,

Prifoner. Did not you come to my Houfe fome
time after this, and defire me to lend you thirteen
Shillings, upon Account of being Bail in an Action
in the Marfhals Courc ?

© Plynkett, ‘That was two Months after: There
was a Soldier which was arrefted by a Marfbal'’s
Court Writ,

Prifoner. And I lent you thirteen Shillings in
order to difcharge him ?

Plunkett. Yes, you did. |

Prifoyer. Did not you afterwards afk me for
fome Money on Account of Sir Daniel Garrol ?

Pinukett, No. o
| Lrifomr,
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Prifomer. Did not you make a Demand on Sir
Daniel ¢ o

Plunkett, No: T told you my Affairs with Sir
Daniel,  You faid you would not meddle vourfelf,
but you would write to him.

Prifoner. Did you not bring a Paper, and fay,
Sir Dantel had agreed to pay you twenty Pounds
when he received his Pay ¢

Plunkett. No ¢ T brought no Papers to you.

‘Prifoner, Did not you tell me, it would be the
yreateft Kindnefs in the World.to you to advance
twenty Shillings for you?

Pluikett. ¥ never afked youin the Courfe of my

Life,
Prifoner. Did you never borrow any Money of

me ?
Plunketr. No 3 T never borrowed any Money

of you, otherwife than to get Men lifted for the

Pretender, | 5
Prifoner, 1 fhall fhew that you area hictle muf-

taken by and by.

Mr. Hungerford. You faid you was decoyed to
Church ?

Plunkett, Decoyed ! 1 faid it was out of my
‘Way, whenmy own Parifh Church was nearer.

Mr. Hungerford. What do you ule to go to
Church ¢

Plunkett, Yes.

Mr. Ketelbey. You fay, the firft time you faw
this Fames Plunkett, ke came to you when your
‘Wife was in the Room ¢

Plunkett. The firft time I faw him, was, when
Mr. Layer releafed Major Barnewel] onc of thie
Marfbalfea.

Mr, Ketelbey, When Fames Plunkett came to
your Houfe, he took you by the Arm, and told
you, he came from Mr. Layer 5 did he tell you
that firft time, he came from Mr. Layer 2

Plunkett, Upon my Oath he did.

Mr. Ketelbey, What Difcourfe had you the firft
Time ? Did he only afk you to go and meet Mr.
Laoyer ¢

Plunkett, He came to me, and defired me to
meet Mr, Layer at the Italiain Coftee-Houle in
Ruffel-Court.

Mr, Ketelbey, Did Fames Plunkett talk to you
about lifting Men for the Pretender the firlt time
ke faw you ?

Plunkett. Nosy he only was fent on an Errand
from Mr. Layer,

Mr, Ketelbey, And then you came to the Non-
juring Parfon : The Unjuring Parfon, as you call
him: What Difcourfe had you with him ?

Plunkett, 'The fame Difcourfe pafled between us
about lifting Men.

Mr. Ketelbey. What, the firft time you faw
Fames Plunkett, and the firlt time you faw the
Nonjuring Parfon ?

Plunkett, Becaule he came from Mr. Layer.

Mr. Ketelbey. So you trufted both of them at
firft Sight, and talked to them about lifting Men
for the Pretender 2
~ Plunkett, Yes, both talk’d to me.

* Mr. Ketelbey, How many times had this Un-
- juring Parfon been with you, before you knew his
Name *

_ Plunkert, He had been with me two or three
times ; he told me his Name was Feffreys, but did
not tell me his Chriftian Name.

L. C. fu. Did he tell you his Name was
Feffreys the firlt time? -

Plunkett, He told me his Name was Feffreys.
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L. C. Fust. How long after was it that this
Letter was fentto you by Mr. Feffreys ?

Plunkett. It was the time when Mr, Layer came
from the Country.

L. C. Fust. How long ago was that?

Plunkert, 1 believe about ten Months ago: I
mean ten Weeks ago.

Mr, Ketelbey. 1 would not furprize vou; I
would have you conlider you are upon your Quth :
Is 1t ten Months, or ten Weeks ?

Plunketr, Ten Wecks,

Mr, Ketelber. How came you to remember the
Contents of the Letter fo exallly ?

Pluikett. 1 heard it repeated over.

Mr, Ketelbey. Pray repeat it over again,

Pluukett. Mr. Plunkett, 2y, Layer is come to
Town s I fhould be very glad 1o fee you : So I ref
William Jeffreys,

Mr. Ketelbey., Where 1s that Letter ?

Plunkett. 1 don’t know; the Letter is loft,

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you remember how long *tis
fince this Letter was lofl ?

Plunkett, Why, I milled icabout two Months
ago, Or more.

Mr. Ketelbey. Two Months ago, or more,
How long was it after you received it that you
mifled it ¢

Plupkett, T kept the Letter in my Pocket fome
(ime.

Mr. Ketelbey. How long ?

Plunkett, T believe T had it three Weeks.

Mr. Ketelbey. So that °tis ten Weeks fince you
received this Letter, two Months fince you loft it ;
you kept 1t 1n your Pocket three Weeks : You can
read Writing ?

Plunkett, No, I cannot.

Mr. Ketelbey, What not read Writing ?

Plunkett, No, Sir.

Mr. Keteloey. How can you be fo patticular as
to the Writing ?

Plunkett, 1have heard it read often enough,

Mr. Ketelbey, Who read it to you ?

Plunkett, Fobn Child read it over to me two or
three times.

Mr, Ketelbey. Why, this is mere Romance,
that at twice hearing it read, you can remember
it, the very Words.

Plupketr. 1 can remember thofe Words to the
beft of my Knowledge.

Mr. Huugerford. IHow can he tell, when he
cannot read at all ? There is nothing in it: If
one was t0 alk him, whether you can recite the
Articlesof the Cread, I believe he could notdo it ;
and yet is fo exact in repeating the Words of this
Letter,

. Prifoner. What Countryman are you ?

Plunkett. An Irifman : You knew that longago;
you need not atk me that Queftion now,

Mr., Serj. Pengelly. My Lord, we fhall now
proceed, and produce the Plan of this Confpiracy,
which was found among the Papers taken in Mrs.
Mafow’s Pofleflion ; and fhall thew how they
came to be in Mrs, Mafor’s Pofleffion; and we
fhall prove this Plan to be Mr. Laye+’s own Hand-
Wiriting,

Jobn Turncr, one of the Meffengers, {worn.

Mr. 4st, Gen. Look upon thefe Papets.

[ Turner. looks upon the Papers,

Mr. Ast. Gen. Do you know any thing of thofe
Papers, and where they were found ?

Turner. My Lord, by Warrant from my Lord

Carterety Principal Secretary of State, dated thlc
29th
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~ath of September laft, 1 was direCted to fearch
fogr one Mr’;;. Mafon and Mrs. Cook, and the very
fame Day I executed that Wartrant; 1 fopndﬁ out
Mrs. Cook’s Houfe in Stone-Cutter’s Yard in Little
Qucen-flrect near Lincolns-Inn-Fields, and in {earch-
ing the Houfe—

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Who lodged there ?

Pyrner. One Mrs, Mafon lodged there : T found

her in the Houfe; and in her Lodging there was
. Trunk, and being demanded to open the

Trunk———m—
rE,. C. Fuff. Was your Wartant to fearch for

both Mrs, Mafon and Mrs: Cook ?

Turner. For both & and in Mrs. Mafor’s Lodgs
ings there was a Trunk which the other Mefien-
oer and I demanded to be opened : She opened the
Trunk, and in the Trunk there were two Bundles
of Papers fealed up; which Papers being opened,
this Paper was found among(t them, (meaning the
Plan or Scheine. ) |

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Look upon it : How do you
know that to b the fame !

Turser. 1 know it to be the fame, becaufe I
writ upon’t, I fet my Mark upon 1t

Mr. Att. Gen. You fay that thefe Papers wete
found in the Trunk, in two Bundles fealed up ¢

Tirner, Ys.

Mr. Att. Gen. (Shewing the Witnefs another
Paper) Look upon that 3 fee if that was in the
fame Bundle with that you laft gave an Account
of ¢

Turner. Yes, thatwas in the fame Bundle.

/And fo be was examined as to feveral partict-
Jar Papers, which be fwore to have been all
found in the tevo Bundles taken ont of Mys,
Malon’s Trunk, and that he bad fet bis
Mark upon them.

Mr, Ketelbey. 1 beg leave to atk Mr. Turner
a Queftion or two, Mr. Twrner, I think you
eive a pofitive Account of feveral Papers, what
they are I know not; of feveral Papers ' handed
to you from Mr. Paxton. You had a Warrant
to fearch for Mrs, Cosk and Mrs, -Mafon, and in a
Trunk you found thefe Papers fealed up in a
Bundle.

L. C. Fuff. He faid he had Dire@ions from
my Lord Caiteret, to fearch for Mrs, Cook and
Mrs. Mafon. That he fearched Mrs. Cook’s Houfe,
and found Mis. Aaforr there; he fees 2 Trunk in
the Houle, in Mrs. Afafor’s Lodgings, and he de-
manded the Trunk to be opened, and in the
Trunk is found two Bundles of Papers ; in thefe
Bundles are thefe Papers which have been fhewn
to the Witnefs, When he isafked how he knew
them to be the fame that were in the Bundle, he
fays, he knows them to be the fame, becaufe he
fet his Mark vpon them.

Mr. Fust, Fortefiue Aland. Were the Bundles
fealed up?

Turier, Yes, my Lord, they were fealed up
when we took them out of the Trunk,

Mr. Ait. Gen. In whofe Lodgings were they

found ?
Turier. At Mrs, Mafon’s Lodgings, in her Bed-
Chamber, S
Mr. Ketelbey. You fay thefe Papers handed to
you, you found in the Trunk in Mrs. ' Mafon's
Lodgings. Where have they been ever fince?

Flow come you to be fo pofitive that thefe Indivi-

dual Papers are the fame Papers that you found in
Mrs, Mafon's Room ? F /

Turier. 1 put my Name upon them,
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Mr. Ketelbey. Is your Name putupon thofe

Turner. Yes, upon each of them at that time.

Mr. Ketelbzy, How long were they in yout
Cuftody ?

Furner. Aboutan Hout,

Mr. Ketelbey, Who did you deliver them tos
when you parted with them ?

Turner. I think, to Mr, Stanyain.

Mr, Ketelbey. 1 afk you, when you put your
Name on each of them, was it before you firft
parted with them ¢

Turner. After the Trunk was openy and the
Bundles were opened ; in the Bundles finding
Papers of Confequence, I was diretted to go and
fetch Mr. Stanyan as being a Magiftrate, to give
that Perfon her Qath.  While I was gone, I de-
livered the Papers into my Brother Meflenger’s
FHand, and he figned them.,

Mr. Ketelbey, So you only fwear -for your Bro-
ther Meflenger,  How long after your firft feizing
the Papers was it before you put your Name upon
them ? '

Turner. 1believe three Quarters of an Hour.

Mr. Ketelbey. Who had you left them with

Turner. 1 left them with this Man, my Brother
Mefienger, o o

Mr. Ketelbey. You left them with your Brother
Meflenger before you fet your Mark upon them 3
how comes it that you are.fure they are the fame ¢
How can you fwear they are the’ fame; ,when you
went away and left them in your Brother-Meflen-
ger’s Flands, and did not fet your Name upon
them, till you returned # A

Mr. Soll, Gen. You fay thefe: Papers were feized
in Mrs, Mafon’s Lodgings, and that fhe was by,
and unlocked the Trunk, and you took out the
two Bundles,

Turner. Yes. , , ‘

Mr. A1, Gen. You fay you delivered the fame
Papers to this Perfon here ? . oL

Furner, Yes, Sir, ‘

Prifoner. Mr. Turner, in Mrs. Mafon’s Lodgings
you fay you feized two Bundles of Papers fealed
up ?

Turner, Yes, ' .

Prifoner. When Mrs. -Mafon had them locked
up, were they then fealed up 2

Turner. They were then fealed up.

Prifoner. Did not the Seals appear. to have
been broke open ? |

Turner. No. .

Prifener. You faw two Bundles ?

Turner. Yes. -

Prifoner, You faw this Paper, and that, and
all the Papers taken out of the Bundles. What
Bundle was this Paper in 2 (Meaning the Plan or
Scheme.,) - o

Turner. This was in the fame Bundle,

Prifoner. Was there afmall Bundle, anda great
Bundle ? - S

Turner, Yes, there were two Bundles.
Prifoner.. And this was out of one of the

“Turner.-Out of the fmall Bundle.

Prifoner, Did you fee them taken out-of the
Bundle ? - o B

Turner. I can’t fay that,.

‘M. Hungerford, '1f I obferve that i’aper or

Bundle right, it is one that confifts of. feveral

- Shicets of Paper 3 1 defire he may hold it in his

Hand, till we have done examining of him.

Mr, Ketelbey, Mr. Turner, that confifts of
I0re
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mare Sheets than ones did you {ign your Name
to each Leaf, or only to the firftand the laft Leaf

of the Book ¢
Turier. 1 fign’d my Name to each Sheet.
Edward Speare, {worn. |

Mr. A, Gen. Mr. Speare, Did you go with
Mr, Turner to feize apy Papers at Mrs. Cook’s
Houfe ?

Speare.  Yes; 1 did.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Give an Account of what you
know of feizing any Papers there.

Speare. My Lord, by a Warrant directed to
us from my Lotd Carterct, Mr. Turner and I
were to feize Mrs. Cook and Mrs. Mafon 5 and
fearching, Mis, Cook’s Houfe, I found Mrs. Mafor
there. At Mrs. Cook’s I found no Papers in the
firft Room ; I proceeded into a fecond Room,
where there was a Trunk, which I ordered to be
opened, and I took two Parcels out of it onc of
sem was feal’d with three Seals, which I looked at;
they did not appear to have been open’d and feal’d
up again. Iopen’d them, and mark’d them.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Who was by ¢

Speare, Mrs. Mafon was.

Mr, Ait. Gen. Was fhe there when you open’d
them ?

Speare,  She was by when they were open’d.

Mr, A, Gen. Look upon them, are they

the fame Papers ¢
Speare. 1 have look’d upon them, and know

them to be the fame.

Mr, Att. Gen. Are thofe the Papers that were
taken out of the Trunk 2

Speare, 'The very Papers.

M. Az, Gen. In whole Room were they taken?

Speare.  In Mrs. Mafor’s Room,

Mt: Serj. Chefbire. Where they cver out of
your Cuftody, till you mark’d them ?

Speare. No, Sir.

Mr. So/l. Gen. During the Time that Turner,
your Brother Meflenger, was gone for Mr. S/a-
syay, who had the Cultody of the Papers 2

Speare, 1 had the Cuftody of them. ,

Mr. Soll, Gen, Were any of them taken away,
or was there any Alteration n, or Addition to
them, during that Time ? -

Speare.  No, Sir.

Mr: Serj. Chefbire. Do you remember that
Mr. Turner fet his Name upon them ?

Speare.  Yes, he did.

L. C. uf. How long after your Brother Mef-
fenger returned back to you, was it before you
fet your Name upon them ?

Speare.  Immediacely, my Lord.

Mr. Ketelbey. How long did you ftay in the
Place after the Return of Tuirner ¢

Speare. 1 believe I nught ftay there an Hour,
or an Hour and an half. -

Mr. Ketelbey. When did you firft part with
the Papers out of your Cuftody?

Speare. 1 gave them to Mr. Szanyan.

Mr, Ketelbey. How long after you firlt feized

thofe two Bundles was it before My, Stanyan came

to you ¢ -
Speare, 1 believe about half an Hour, or three
Quarters of an Hour,

Mr. Ketelbey, 'What, did you deliver them to -

Mr. Stauyan then ?

Speare.  Atter Mr. Turner and I had fign’d
. them, Ideliverd them to Mr. Stanyan,
Mr. Ketelbey. Was it not before you fign’d them?
Speare.  No, upon my Oath,

Mrs, Elizabeth Mafon {fworn,

Mr, Att. Gen. Mrs, Mafon, Give an Account
of what you know of thefe Papers ?

Mrs. Mafon. Mr, Layer left two Parcels of
Papers with me: He told me they were of the
Value of 500 /. He afterwards took them away
from me 3 and afierwards brought them to me
again,

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. You fay, he deliver’d two
Bundles firft ¢

Mrs, Mafon. No 5 he deliver’d only one, and
that was the largeft Bundle : He told me it was
of the Value of 500/ and defired me to take
care of 1t, and lock it up.

Mr, Serj. Chefbive. When was the lefler Bundle
deliver’d to you ?

Mrs. Mafon. Some time after 5 and after tha,
he took them away from me; and in four or five
Days time he brought them to me again: He
took them away, and brought them to me again,
and told me they were a few Love-Letters 3 and
begg’d of me not to let Mrs, Cook know ir, for
the would make a Difturbance, and tell his Wife.

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. When had you the leficr
Bundle ?

Mrs, Mafon. I had that fome time after.

Mr, Sery. Chefbire: What Directions had you
with the little Bundle ?

Mrs, Mafeir.  He defired me to take the fame
Care of that, as of the other.

M, Serj. Chefire,  'Was that feal’d up 2.

Mrs. Mafon. They were both feal’d,

Mr, Sery. Chefhire,  Where did you put them?

Mrs. Mafon. 1 put them into my Trunk.

Mr. Sery. Ghefbire. After this; you know when
the Meflengers came?

Mrs, Mafou. Belore that, he came one Day
in the Afternoon to our Houfe, and ask’d where
I was, It was the Beginning of Bertholoimezs-tide.
I was not at home : He left a Meflage for me,
that I fhould bring thole Writings home. I car-
ried them home,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire, Home! What do you

mean by Home ?
- Mrs, Mafon. Mr, Layer’s own Houfe : He
left word, that he wou'd be at home by eight a-
Clock that Night. I was there abour cishe a-
Clock : I asked the Maid where he was ? She faid
he was in the Back-Parlour. 1 asked her if any
body was with him ? She faid, there were two
Gentlemen, Said I, telf your Mafter that I am
here.

L. C. Juff. You fay the great Bundle was taken
from you again, and afterwards he brought the
lefler Bundle ; and after this you recciv’d a Mef-
fage, or Intimation, that you fhow’d bring home
that Bundle.

Mrs. Mafon, My Lord, 1 had two Bundles.
He left Word, that I fhould bring his Papers
Home ; for he ftaid at Home *ull cight a-Clock
that Night. I went to his Houfe : And when I
knock’d at the Door, the Maid came to the Door.
I asked her, if her Mafter was within? fhe told
me, yes; he was in the Back-Parlour ; and that
there was a Gentleman or two with him, I de-
fi'd her to go and tell her Mafter that I was
there, And he came out to me; and I gave him
the Writings ; and he defir’d me to come again
the next Morning 3 which was on a Saturday, a-
bout eleven a-Clock, for he was going out of
Town : And that I would come and take thole
Writings again.  Which accordingly I did. I

Was .
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i the Morning, at the Time that the Bell
::ﬁ lringing at .%z}w!;:’s-_ﬂm Chapel, when I
went to him, and he delivered me the Papets
agﬁ;. Soll, Gen. Can You recollet the Day that
he lelt Word for you to come to h:im?

Mrs. Mafor. It was the Beginning of Bariho-
lomcw-tide. ) '

Mr. Soll. Gen. What Day of the Week was 1t ?

Mrs. Mafon. Tt was on a Fricay Night that I
went and carried them to his Houle.

Mr. Soll. Gen. And when was it that he

defired you would come and call for them a-
gain ? '
Mis, Mafon. Tt was the next Morning at eleven
a-Clock, or near the matter, that 1 went to his
Houfe 3 and he gave me the Writings again, and
charged me to take Care of them. '

Mr. Sery. Chefbire. What was you to do with
them !

Mrs. Mafon. To take Care of them.

Mr. Sery. Chafbire. Did you meddle with them,
or open them ?

Mrs, Mafen. No, Siry I put them in my
Trunk : They lay there all the tme,

Mr. Sery. Chefbire, Were they there when the

Officers came ¢

Mrs. Mafon. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Sery. Chefhire. Was you there when the
Bundles were opened ?

Mrs. Afafon. I was there.

Mr, Serj. Chefbire. Did you mark the Papers
yourfclf ?

Mrs. Mafon. 1 did,

Mr. Ser). Chefoire. Look upon the Papers, and
fee if you find your Mark on thofc Papers

Mrs. Mafon. Yes, this 1s my Mark,

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Mr. Speare, you was prefent
at the opening of them ?

Mr. Speare. 1 was: They were fealed up when
I opened them.

Mr. Sery. Chefbire.
them ¢

M. Speare. 1 did put my Name on them.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Were they out of your Cufto-
dy before you put your Name on them ?

Mr. Sgpeare. No, they were not.

Mr. Scrj. Chefbire. Did Mr. Taruer put his
Name to them ?

Mr. Speaie, He put his Name to them, before
ever they were out of my Cultody.

Mr. At Gen. You have marked all thofe Pa-
pers.  You arc fure thofe are the Papers you ool
outof the Trank in Mrs. Mafor’s Lodgings ?

Mr., Speare. T am fure they are.

Mr. At Geir. Shew them to Mrs. Mafon. Mrs.
Mafon, were thole Papers in the Bundles that were
delivered to you by Mr. Layer ?

Mrs. Mafon. Yes, Sir; they were,

Mr. At. Gen. You have marked thofe Papers,
have you not ?

Mrs, 2Mafoir. Yes, I have.

M. Soll. Gen. You faid, you gave the Bundles
back to Mr. Layer on a Friday, about the Begin-
ning of Bartholonew-tide : Do you remember
whether it was upon Barthelomew Day or not ?

Mis. Mafon. Indeed 1 don’c know.

Mr. Soll. Gen. 'What did Mr. Layer fay when
you brought them to him again ?

Mrs. Mafon. He only thanked me 3 and de-
ired me to come the next Dayand take them from
him again : Which I did.

Vou VL
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Mr. Soll, Gen. Did he mention then, that he was
going out of Town ?

Mrs, Mafon. Yes: And it was about eleven
a~Clock on a Saturday Morning that I went to him, -
and he delivered the Papers to me again.

Mr. Hungerford. Can you write ?

Mrs, Mafon. No. |

M. Hungerford, Have you made the fame Mark
on all thofe Papers?

Mrs, Mafon. 1 was fo frightned at that Time,
that T hardly knew what Mark I made, |

Mr. Hungerford. 1f you was frightned at that
time, and did not know what Mark you made,
how can you be fure you know your Mark again 2

Mrs, Mafon, Yes, I cantell 1t very well,

Mt. Hungerford, When you fay you was fo
frighted you did not know what Mark you made ?

Mrs, Mafon. Yes, fure I do.

M. Hungerford. Upon the Oath you have takeh,
hath any Body feen thofe Papers before they were
taken by the Mcflengers 5 whether Sir Yobu Meres,
or his Man Thomas hath feen themn 2

Mrs. Mafon. No.

Mr. Ketelbey, Nor his Man Thoas ¢

Mrs. Mafon. No, nor his Man Zhoinas.

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 afk you, can you write or can
you read Writing ?

Mrs, Mafon. 1told you I can’t.

Mr, Ketelbey. You only can make your mark ?

Mrs, Maforr. No.

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you only make but one
mark, or ufe feveral marks ?

Mrs, Mafoir. 1 make but one mark.

Mr, Ketelbey. Pray make the mark you genc-
rally ufe? With Submiflion, my Lord, Idefire fhe
may havea Pen and Ink to fee if the can make
the fame mark again.

Mi. Hungerford, Surely we are regular in de-
firing that ?

L. C. Juff, What you defive is proper. She
fays fhe knows them to be the fame Papers, be-
caufe fhe hath fec her Mark upon them ; they
doubt whether fhe may miftake in her Mark,
and delire the may make her Mark again,

Mr. Ketelbey, My Lord, we defire fhe may
make her mark again,

Mr. Soll, Gen. We defire the may have a con-
venient Place to doit in, and that the may fit down
while fhe writes 2

Mrs. Mafor, No, I can doit without. (4 Pe
and Ink and Paper is given to ber, and fbe (ets ber
Markan E and an M,)

Mr, Soll, Gen. Here are the Letters £ and M
fet to the Papers produced ; and tho’ in this Con-
fufion fhe fhould not make her Letters exactly
like thofe, yet I apprehend that would weigh very
little,

Mr, At Gen. My Lord, I can’t tell what they
mean ¢ this doth not depend -

Mr. Ketclhey, My Lord, I defire to go on with
our Queftions. I afk you

L.C. Fuft. (Having compared the Letters siade
by Mrs. Mafon in Conrt, <vith thofe on the Papers)
The Character which fhe now writes is like what
fhe writ on thofe Papers, and {o confirms her E-
vidence,

Mr. Ketelbey. After the delivery of thofe two
Bundles to you by Mr, Layer, I afk you whether
Sir Fobn Meeres’s Man Thomas ever faw thofe
Bundles opened ?

Mrs. Mafon. No, he never wasupin my Room 3

there was no fuch Familiarity between vs.
N n Mr. Ketelbey,
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Nr, Ketelley, Did one [Vilfon ever fee them ?
Mys, Afafan, INO.

Mr. Keteibey. Did ever you produce them o
-one Binks ¢

Mys. Mafon. No.

DPrifoicr. No s Nov did Siv Fobir Meeres’s Man
Themes never fee them?

Mrs. Aefor, No, never upon my Oath.

Mr. Ketelbey, Did you cver produce them feal-
od up? Did you ever let Thomas or Hilliaii, ox Sir
Yobn Meeres himfelf fee either of thofe Bundles as
they were fealed up ? |

Mrs; Mafen. No, they were in my Trunk @ ]
always kept them in my Trunk; perbaps as I
opencd my Trunk, they might fec them lie in my

Trunk.
Mr. Ketelbcy. Do you know one Mrs. Buda?

Mrs, Mafor. No : I don’t know the Name. 1
don’t know one Mrs. Buda.

Prifaner. Did you ever know one Mrs. Herbert 2

Mrs. Mafon. I know many of that Name,

Prifenzr. Did youcver go by that Name

Mrs, Mafon. INo.

Prifoicr. Did you ever go by the Name of
Coicet ¢

Mrs. Mafon. No. |

Prifosrer.,  Did you ever gn by the Name of
Beran 2

Mrs. Adafon. No, I never did go by the Name
of Bevan,

L. C. Fust. Mr. Ketelbey, T don’t know what
the Mcaning of this Examination is 5 when 1tap-
pears beyond Contradiction, that this Woman was
an Acquaintance of your Client’s,

M. Ketelbey. My Lord, if we prove her to be
an il Woman, T hope it will take off her Credic
fo that her Lvidence will not weigh with your
'Lordthip, or the Jury.

L.C. Juf. Atthe Time when thefe Bundles
were feized, had they Mr. Layer’s Seal upon them ?

Mrs. Mafon. Yoz, “he Scal of Mr. Lawyer was
upon them.,

L.C Yrd. What fays the Mcflenger? At the
Time that you feized thefe two Bundles of Papers,
was there any Seal upon them ?

Meffinger. There were three Seals upon one,
and fome Seals upon the others the Seal was fome-
thing of a fmall Head.

L. C. 7uft. What 1s Mr. Layei’s Seal ¢

Mrs, Mafor. Something of a Head, but I can’t
tell what Head.

Mr. Keteléey, Do you know Mr. Layei’s Seal ?

Mrs. Mafsi. Ttis fomething ol a Head.

Mr. Ketelbey, Was it the Reprefentation of 2
Man®s Head, or the Head of a Baalt ?

Mus, Mafen. Tt is aHead, with fomething of a
Ruft about it

L. C. Fuft. Nrs. Mafon, look upon the Head :
Is that Head the Seal of Mr. Layei ¢

Mrs, Mefein. Yes: Uponmy Qath it 1s.

L. ¢ Tuf. What fays the Mclenger : Was
that Seal of a Head upon them, when yeu feized
them ¢

Meffeioer. Yes, it was.

Mr. Kerelboy, Before that Time that the two
Mcflengers came, Mr, Zwiver and Mr, Speare,
and feized the Papers, and afterwards one of them
went for Mr, Sranyan 5 1 afk you, whether you had
fhewn  thole Bundles to any Body before that
Time ?

Mrs. Mafon. Wo3 1 had fhewn them to no Body.

Mr, A, Gen,  She hath faid fo two or three
T'imes before,

L. C. Fup. Indecd, Mr. Ketelbey, we muft di.
re@ you not to fpend the Time ot the Court fo,
You have afked her that Queltion two or three
Times over,

Mr. Ketelbey. My Lord, Iwould very fain have
the Truth come out.

Mr. Hungerford. T will afk you a Queftion or
two, What Trade or Bufinefs do you follow ?
What is your Trade or Occupation ¢

Mrs. Mafeon., What is that to you ? I have no

T'rade.
Mr. Hungerford, I (hould have afk’d you another

Queftion before; have you not a Promife of Re-
ward for the Service you do here, in giving this
Evidence ?

Mrs. Mafon. No, 1 have not.

Prifoner. Nor you have recetved none 2

Mrs. Mafor. No: You are an unjuft Man,

L. C. Fuff. Arcyou promiled any Reward !
Why don’t you afk her whether fhe is to fiear
for Hire ? Is that a proper Queftion to afk a
Witnels ¢

Mr. Retelbey, 1 fubmit 1t to your Lordfhip,
whether 1t 15 not proper to afk her this Queftion ;
Whether fhe hath not told any Perfon, and whom,
that fhe was to have a Reward for coming hither 2

Prifoier. The Quettion 1s, Whether the hath
never owned and confefled to any Body, that thete
Papers were opened before a Friend of hers, be-
fore the Meffunger feized them 2

Mirs., Mafen. No, my Lord, I neverdid, I
never opened them before any body.

Mr. tt. Gen, They have afked you what
Names you went by ; do you know whar Names
the Prifoner at the Bar has gone by ¢

Mrs, Mafon. He had once given me Orders,
that if any Letter came directed in the Name of
Formtaine, that I fhould take 1t In; accordingly
in two or three Days Time, there came a Letter,
direCted to Mr. Fountaine, and I took it iny and
when he came, I gave it to him, and he opened
it, and read it

Prifoner. Where 1s your Houfe ?

Mrs, Mefon, Where! Where you left the
Writings.

Prifoner. How can vou tell how that Letter
was direfted, which you took in, fince you fay
you cannot Read 2

Mrs. Mafon. Tt was direCted to Mr. Fountaiue:

Prifoner, Did you read the Superfeription ?

Mrs, Mafon. WNo; Mrs, Coox did.

L.C. Fuff. You fay you was defired by Mr.
Layer, when any Letter came directed to Mr.,
Fountaing, to take 1t in 5 and that a Letter came
direfted to Mr. Fountaine, and you took 1t in,
The Queltion is afked you, fince you cannot read,
how could you tell 1t was directed to Mr, Fori-
laing ¢

Mrs. Aejor, My Landlady told me 1t was for
Mr. Lomnaine, and fhe knew he went Dy the
Name of Zounteine lometimes,

Prifoncr. She fard fhe read it.

Mus. Mafon. Noj I faid I gave it to you, and
you opened 1t, and you read it.

L. C. Fuff. The Occafion of this Queftion is,
that this Mifusmer was approved of by you. She
fays that you order’d her, that if any Letter came
cdireCted to Mr, Fountaine, fhe fhould take it in;
a Letter did come direted fo, the took it in;
and then delivered it 1o you 5 and you receiv’d it
from her, and opened and read it ; but how, fay

they, could you know this Letter was directed
{0
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Y M. Fountaine, when you can neither write nor
jead? She having received fuch an Order, when
there was a Letter come, it was natural enough,
that fhe that could not read; fhould afk I_ler L:ln(!-
lady the Directions of the Letter, and it was di-
vected for Fountaine 3 it was natural enough for her
to take it in, and give 1t to you.

Who brought the Letter ?

Mrs. Mafon. A Porter,
L. C. Fuff. Did he fay from whence he came?

Mrs. Mafon. He told me he came from the
Ditch-Side, and afk’d me if Mr. Fountaine lodg’d
there,

Mr. Hungerford. This Trunk that the Papers
were in, did itufe to be kept open, or wis i
lock’d up?

Mrs. Mafor, It was always lock’d up.

Mr: Doyley worn.,

Mr, At Gen. Mr, Doyley, do you know M.
Layer s and how long have you known him ?

Doyley. 1 have known him about {eventeen
or eighteen Years; he was my Clerk; *ns there.
abouts, I believe,

Mr. it Gein Do you know his Writing ?

Mr. Doyley. T believe 1 do.

Mr. .. Gen. Look upon that Paper.  (He /s
(icon the Scheme. )

Mr, A, Gen. Do you take that to be his
Hand?

Davley.  If you afk me as to my Belief, T be-
lieve 1t 1.

Mr. .4t Gen, Flave you often feen him twrice ?

Dsyley, Yes, Sir.

Mr, A, Geir,  Iave you feen him write fince
he 1.t your Service 2

Dayley. 1 have had feveral Letters from him,
{ince he was my Clerk.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Look upon that Paper; can
you fwear that you believe that is his Hand-
Writing ?

Doyley.  Thave feen the Paper before, and I
do believe it to be his Hand-Writing.

Prifaier. Have you feen me write any thing
but my Name thefe fourteen Years ?

Dyly, 1 can’e particularly recolle@t whether I
have or no.

Prifoncr. How long is it fince T was your Clerk ?

Devley.  About fourteen or fifteen Years.

Prifcirir, Have you feen me write fince ?

Doyley. T can’e fay I have, or I have not.

L. C. ¥uft. How long is it fince you received
any Letters from him ?

Dayley. About five Years ago:

L. C. Fuf. How do you know thole Letwers
came from him?

Doyley.  Becaufe he was my Client, and writ ta
me about Bulinels; and I anfwered thofe Lettcrs,
and did the Bofinefs that he defired me to do by
thofe Letrets.

L. C. fuff. Did he pay you for that Bufincfs
done !

Dayley. Yes, very honourably,

Prifoncr,  You fay you don’t remember you
have feen me write fince I came from yous; as to
that Paper which you fay you believe to be my
Hand, have you com par’d it with thofe Letters ?

Dayley, T have,

Prifoner. Is that what you found your Belief
upon ¢

Doyley. That is what I chiefly found my Belief

upon,
Prifeger. Confider, Mr, Doyley, my Life is
Vou VI
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at Stake, and you fay you have not feen me write.
thefe fourtcen Years?

Doyley. Y don’t know that T have.

Prifoner, Flave you any of my Lesters in Court?

Doyley. I'have not your Letters in Court,

Prifonce.  You fay, you found your Belicf only
by Comparifon of thofe Letters, Now I wifh you
had brought thofe Letters here,

Mr. At Gen. Hedoth not fay fo.

Dosley. It you had defir'd 1t, I cou’d have
have brought *em,

Piifoncr. I defirrd it! T little thought to have
feen you here on fuch an Occafion.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Mr. Daoyley, Tafk you, if you
had no Dealings with him fince he was out of his
Clerkihip ?

Doyley. Yes, T was his Agent, |

L. C. Fuft. Whofe Name is fubfcribed to thofe
Ietrers?

Dayley.  Chrifopher Layer’s.

L C. Fuff. You did the Bufnels mentioned in
thofe Letters; and he honourably paid you for ic?

Doyley.  Yies, my Lord.

L. C. Juff. 1 fuppole, in your time, that you
will thew that other People writ Letters in your
Name?

Mr. Ketelbey, You fay, you believe that Paper
to be Mr. Layer’s Hand-writing.  And if T did
not mifunderitand you, I took 1t down in Writ-
ing, you founded your Belicf on the comparing
that Writing with the Letters which you receiv’d ?

Dayley. 1 fard, I chiefly founded my Belief
upon fuch Comparifon of Hands.

Mr. Ketelbey. That you chiefly did {o; and you
have not thole Letters here in Court, on which
you chiefly founded this Belicf,

Mr. Sofl. Gen. Mr. Doyley, T think you fay
you have fen him write {everal Times ?

Doyley. T don’t remember that T have feen him
write thefe fourteen Years,

Mr. Soll, Geir, During the Time he was your
Clerk, you have feen him write?

Dayley.  Yesy he was but two Years wich me:
He had been Clerk with Mr. before.

Mr, Soll. Gen. Then he had been us’d to Bufi-
nefs before he came to you; and had form?d his
Hand. +

Mr. Hungerford, How old was he when he was
your Clerk? |

Doyley.  Indecd Idon’t know. ,

Mr. Hungerford, You form your Belief upon
the Remembrance you have of what was his Hand-
writing fourteen or fifteen Years ago?

L. C. Fuff. You fay, you have received Letters
fubferibed by his Name five Years ago?

Dovley. Yes, my Lord,

L. C. Juff. Was the Charadter of thofe Letters
that you receiv’d five Years ago, agrezable to the
Characters that he writ when he was your Clerk ?

Doyley. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. 7uft. "ThenIafk you upon the whole, whe-
ther you believe it to be his Hand-writing, or not 2

Doyley. Yes, 1 do believe it to bz his Hand.

Prifoner.  Stnce my unhappy Circumftances,
have you had no Promife of Leing reftored to your
Place again, or the Promife of fome other Office
or Place? |

Doyley. No s I never, to my Knowledge, have
feen one Man that had the Power to put me
in my Place again; nor ever converfed with
any one Great Man upon that or any fuch

Affair,

Nn 2 Mr. Ser.
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Mr. Serj, Peageliy., We think we are cntith:c_l
to read it However, that there may be no Dil-
pute, we defire to call Mr, Delefeye and Mr.
Ssanven, in who'e Prefence the Prifoner at the Bar,
conlelz’d it to be his Fland- Writing,

Mr. Dalefaye was fworn,

Mr, Serj. Pengelly. Sir, was that Paper fhewn
to the Prifoner at the Bar?

Mr. Delafaye. 1 was not near enough when
he was betore the Lords of the Councily to fee
what was on the Table; ncither did ook upon
the Table, to fee whether this Paper was on it or
not.  Bur upon a Queftion that was ask’d him
relating to fome Arms, if he knew where any
were Jode’d in fuch a Place, he fard no: Upon
which, one of the Lords of the Council held up
a Papers it mighe be this, for I ought Iknow s
and faid, here 15 your own Paper, your own
Hand-writine s which fays, Arms that are there
Jodged; fn}-'shlw, I thould have wrir Arms that
thould be there Jodged.

L. C Fud, \Whether 15 that the Paper or no,
and did fie own that Paper that was then fhewn

to b his?

Mr. Delefave, The Queftion was not askid, 1s
this your Paper and your Hand-Wiiting? But it
vas thewn to him as fuch s and he fad, T fhould
have wrote Arms that fhould be there lodg™d,

NI, Stamvan, twora,

Nv, A, Gen Mr, Stawyen, do you remem-
ber whether this Paper was thewn to the Prifoner
at the Bar, or any Queftions asl’d him about 1,
when he was bofore the Lords of the Council 2

Mr, Stanven,  Upon the Quettion that was
afl’d him about the Arms, this Paper was fhewn
him 3 I think this is the Paper: T was nearer to
the Table than Mr, Dolefare, and did obferve
this Paper to lic upon the Table belore the Lords,
and do talie this o be the individual Paper that
was thewn him wen,

Mr, A, Gen, What was fud to lumat that
tine ?

Mr. Stapan.  The Quefltion was ask’d him,
what he knew of any Arms that were Jodg’d m
Jicstiminfier 2 He faid, he knew of none.  Then
this Paper was fhewn to him, and 2 Queftion was
ailk’d him here the Arms are faid to be lodg’d
i this Scheme of your own FHand-wiiting: how
canie you to write 1o, tf there be no Arms lodg’d ?
My, Loyer faid, e was a maftake: It was not in-
terded Arms thae are there lodg’d, but Arms
that thould be thore lodg’d, He dad, I fhou’d
have writ Ars that Thou’d be lodg’d, inftead of
Arms thar are Jodg’d,

sr. Sorps Chgfide. The Queftion was concern-
tag a Papar of his own Hand- Writing ?

NMr. Siaivan, Yes, 1o was concluded, that the
Paper was of bis own Fland-Writing, and he d:id
not deny it _

Nr. A Gen. Did he fay 1t was not hus own
Pland-Wrting ?

Ny, Staivan. No, he did not,

Vir, fecelocy, Was the Queltion ask’d, whether
e Paper was Tus Fland-writing or no?

i, Staavan. No, [believe not.

Mo, Keteloey, Then if there was no Queftion
afld, whether did he own it to be his Hand-
Writing, or no?

M. Stanyen. e did not exprefly own it to be
his Hand-Writing,

Mr. 4. Gen e was not afk’d that Queftion,
whether it was his Hand- Writing, or no?

M. Stanyan, No, Sir,
Mr. Ser). Pengelly. He did not deny it to be his
own Hand-Wrioing ?

Mr. Stamyan, No, Sir.

Mr. 7Veff, Whether the Lords in their Queftion
did ftate it fo, as taking it for his own Hand-
\Writing ?

M, Stenyan, It was taken for granted that it
was fo, and he made no Offer to deny it

Prifoncr. Pray, Sir, let me afk you one Que-
{tion about the Arms? When I was asfled, if
there were any Arms lodg’d, did I not anfiver in
the Negative, and fud, No?

Stanyan.  Yes,

Prifonciy  In relation to the Arms, you fay,
thac I faid Arms that fhould have been lodg’d ?

Stawgair,  That was vpon the Lords afking
you, to explan that part of the Scheme relating
o Arms; and when you faid you knew of na
Arms that were lodg’d, then faid they, how
come you to mention in this Scheme of your
own Hana-Writing, Arms that are lodg’d ? To
which you anfwer’d, I hould have wric Arms that
fhow’d be lodg’d.

Pitfoucr,  When I was afk’d, why Idid fay
Arms thatare lodg’d? Why, faith I, my Loyds,
I know of no Arms.  If that was my Paper, and
[ had writ i, I fhould have writ Arms that fhou’d
Lo lﬁdg’d.

Mr, et Gen, My Lord, we pray that the Po-
pers may be read.

Mr, Hungerford, Ny Lord, we hope that thefi
Papers, (tho” for my Part I know not what they
are 5 for there is no Hint of them in my Bricf)
{hall not be read, for this Reafon; the Evidence
which hath been given for the King, hath not
brought them home to the Prifoner.  ‘There i
neo legal Proof that the Papers are of his Hand-
writing s and confequently e cannot be affe@ed
by any thing that is in them.  As to what is faid
of the Likenefs of Hands, that we humbly hope
1s no Evidence at all, The frlt Witnefs, Mr.
Dayley, he hath faid it is hike his Hand; but he
awves that Opimion of his, on the Knowledge he
had of the Prifoner’s Hand fourteen Years Ago;
and by fome Letters he recetved from him about
five Years fince. Men’s Hands may differ and
vary even 1n five, much more in fourteen Years.

What follows is the Evidence that hath been
given by the Gentemen belonging to the Scerera-
tarics Oifice.

I perfonally know them to be Gentlemen of
good Senle, Integrity and Honour, and for my
pare I believe every Word they fay; which is more
than I can fay of the other Witnefles hitherto
produced. But what thele fay, doth not, with
Submiffion affect the Prifoner: They were pre-
funt when the Priloner was examin’d before che
Lords of the Councily none of them heard the
Prifoncr acknowledge that the Papers were writ
by b, or that he did own them as his; neither
was hie asked any Queltion to that Porpofe; nei-
ther did the nature of the Examination my Lords
of the Council were then uvon, lead them to fuch
a Qucftion : The Lords were not afking Mr. Layer
Queltions to fix an Evidence upon himfelf, But
the Lords having fome Papers before them, and,
according 10 the Duty of their high Stations,
being intent upon difcovering what might be of
Danger to his Magefty and the Public; they
alk’d Mr. Layer, where the Arms were depofited

ac Ayeftminfter 2 He anfwers, that he knew pf none
there,
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here, or to that Purpofe. It cannot In L{lW or
Reafon be from hence mferr’d, that he did own

the Papers to b of his own Hand-Writing,. The

only F.vidence therefore which can be mﬁf’ged on
to entitle thefe Papers to be read; is the E‘,vfdence
which is no Evidence

of Lilenefs of Hand,

ar all in a criminal Cale, | ;-.
In my Lady Carr’s Cale, 1t was not allow’d

to be Evidences and yer that was not 4 (;npltal
Cale, but a Cale ot‘M:l?.icmcnnm_' only, 1t w;ﬁ
Perjury,  But there 1s an Authority beyond 2 ‘
that s we have the Aét of Parlament for the
Reverlal of the Attainder of (;olont:l .S:d;::;)',_
who had been convicked upon Evidence given of
he Similitude of Hands, and thata much flrong-
ot Proof than what appears here; for Cook :uzd
Cory, two famous Goldimiths, Iwore thcy believ’d
1o treafonable Libel laid to Colonel Siduey to be
writ by him; and affigned that for a Reaton of
their Bolicf, for that they had receivd feveral
Wills from him of the like Hand-Writing, which
they conftantly paid. Nay, one of the Gold ﬁTlii:hS
fwore, (as 1 remember the Tryal) that he faw
the Colone] write a Receipt.  Some other Cales
of this Nature might be quoted, but we depend
upon the Authority of my Lady Cerr’s Cule,
and the A& for reverfing the Attainder of Co-
fonel Siduey, which 1s inflar ey for n that
A& the Reaon affign’d for reverfing the At-
tainder, is, for that the Conviction and At-
winder was found upon a Similitude of Hands.
We have an attefted Copy of the Aét here ready
to be read. In Confequence of this A&, my
Tord, Similitude of Hands is never to be given
as Fvidence in a criminal Cale: And thercfore
we humbly hope, that this Paper is not {o prov’d,
as 10 be read 1 any Court, but muft be rejelt-
cd: It is not proved to be his Hand by any that
ever faw him write; neither hath any body heard
him own 1t to be his,

Mr, Ketelbey., My Lord, T beg Leave to fay
a few Words in Support of this Objeftion. We
don’t know what is the Purport of this Paper. [
dare fay, Mro Huigarferd, as well as my el
hath not feen one Thtle relating to 1t whatfoever s
but 1 hope, for the Sake of Evidence, the fa-
cred and ciernal Rule of Lvidence, that fimili-
tucke of Huands fhall not go for Proof, where a
Perfon is charged with a Capial Offence,  We
fhall 1n due ume endeavour to lay before the
Court feveral material Objections to the Credit
of fome of the Winefles; but at prefent we muft
fuppole them unexceptionable, and confider, with
reipect 1o this fingie Pomt, whether this Paper
i3 fufhiciently proved to be s Fland-Wniting,
{5 as to be read.  Nrs, Mafonand the Meflengers
have endeavour’d, by a jumbling Evidence, to
prove the Idenuty of the Papers, and to hand
them down from one to another: But how do
they appear to be of the Prifoner’s Hand-Writ-
ing ? Mr. Dovley fays, fourteen or fiftcen Years
ago he was his Clerk s that five Years ago he
recetv’d Letters from himy and chat he chicfly
founded his Opinion that it was the Prifoner’s
Hand-Writing, becaufe he had compared it with
thole Letrers, and that the Hands were alike:
And yet thole Letters with which he compar’d
this Paper, he hath not in Court to producs.
This is che Subfiance of Dayley’s Evidence,

My Lord, I humbly infift, that this is not
futhcient; and if comparifon of Hands was to
be Lvidence, furely this would rot do, unlefs he

for High-Tréafon:

277
produced thofe Papers; .on which he owns ha
founded his Opinton. I refer it to the Jury, whe-
ther he may not poflibly, nay probably make an
erroncous Judegment, Shall a Man be believ’d
ont of his Life, becaufe the Witnefs faw him
write fifteen Years ago, and received Letters from
him five Years ago? Is any thing more change-
able than a Man’s FHland-Writng ? Can etther of
you Gentlemen, take upon you to fay what is or
is not your Writing after {o great a Length of
Time ? Would not the different Subjeéts, the one
a comunon Letterr of Bufinefs, the other a tren-
fonable Scheme, make a fenfible Vartation even in
a1 Man’s ufual Character ¢

The Cule of my Lady Carr 1s reported in Si-
deifiny fo. 419, and was upon an IndiGtment of
Perjury, an Offcnce of a much lower Nature
that what this Gentleman 1s now tried for: There
a Witnefs fwore he believed the Paper produced
in Court to be her Hand-Writing, yet 1t did not
amount to fuch a Proof as'to make her guilty:
Nay, the Court fuid exprefly, that it was not
Evidence, and fhould not be admitted 5 and ac-
cordingly fhe was acquitted.  But the higheft Au-
thority is what Mr. HHungerford hath named, the
A& of Parliament for the Reverfal of the At-
tainder of Col. Siduey ; and we have a Witnels
here ready, that examined it with the Record,
that proves it to be a true Copy.  Algerioon Sic-
ney, was attainted of High-Treafon by [imulitude
of Hands, and that was the Reafon of the Reverfal,

The two next Witnefles are Mr, Delefaye and
Mr., Stanyan, Gentlemen of IHonour, and that
would not ftraina Point upon any Account what-
foever, Mr, Delafaye doth not know whether
this Paper was on the Table, when Mr. Lay
was cxamined before the Lords of the Courncil,
or no: Mr. Stanyan fays, he was {omewhat near-
er the Table, and he takes the Paper that is now
produced to be the fame Paper that was upon the
Table in the Room before the Lords of the
Council, when Mr., Leyer was there; becaufe
when 1¢ was produced there, and fhewn to him,
he fud, fhou’d have I wrote Arms that fhou’d be
lodg’d.

Mr. Staimvan owns, that he never was afk’d
the Quedtion, whether it was his Hand-Writing
or no? How then fhould he deny ir, if ic was
never put to him? And therefore to fay, becaule
he did not deny a Queftion that was never atked
him, that that fhall import, as to this particular
Matter, a Confeffion, 1s to me firange and un-
accountable ! The natural Senfe of the Prifoner’s
Words, as proved, is no more than this: No, if
I had writ it, I fhou’d have rather wrote Aros
that fhou’d be lodg’d, than Arms that were lodg’d.
Therefore, my Lord, we humbly appreiend they
have not given Evidence in this Cafe, fufficient
Lvidence to fupport the Reading of thofe Papers.

Your Lordfhips are now to lay down a perpe-
wal Rule of Evidence: For lateft Pofterity will
pay a juit Regud to the prefent Determinations
and if Compartion of Hands in chis Cate be al-
lowed as Evidence, the fame Rule muft for ever
hold in all paratlel Cafess and God knows what
may be the Confequence of fuch @ Revelution, or
who may beaffected by i

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. My Lord, we hope, that
notwithflanding what hath been objeted 1o the

Reading of this Paper, that we are proper to have

it read: Tho’ they have mentioned ‘fome Cafes
for to maintain thejr Objetion,- yet the latter
Authoritivs,
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Authorities, and the conftant Courfe of Evidence
fince, as we think, are direCtly with us: As the
Cafe of my Lord Preflon, where eight or nine of

the Judges were prefent. |

In the Cafe of the Lady Carr, there is that O-
pinion infifted on given at the End of the Cale ina
thort unintelligible Manner.

[Here Mr. Hungerford interrupted. ]

Mr. Hungerford, My Lord, Idon’t know whe-
sher we fhall beat Liberty, when the King’s Coun-
{1 have done, to read the Act; and therclore I
offer it to your Lordfhip’s Confidcration, whether
we fhould not read 1t now.

L.C. Fusi, Read the Actof Parliament,

Mr. Ketetbey. Call Mr. Dhecdanm.

Mr. Ait. Gen. We are apprized of that A
of Pacliament; I have an examined Copy of that
A& bat we apprehend 1t will not come up to
what they cite it for,

Mr. Kereliey. We have five Aéts of Parliament
that we have examined with the Recordsy we did
not know where they would fhoot at us, and there-
fore were refolved to be armed Gap-a-pee.

Mr. Ser). Pengelly. Astomy Lady Carr’sCale,
it will be hard to maintain that Opinton, becauie
the Letters they produced were not mn the direct
Inflance of the Perjury.

Even the A& of Parliament, which they pro-
duce, it takes Notice, that a Paper was found 1n
the Clofet of My, Sidrey, and was read, without
proving it to be his own Hand-Writing: Is this
Paper tound without any Owning and Acknow-
ledging it by the Prifoner? Is not this Paper deli-
vered by Mr. Layer himfelt to Mrs, Mafor 2 Had
not he this Paper in his Cuftody, and it proceeded
from him?

In the Cale of my Lord Preflon, there were a
arcat Number of Judges, My Lord Chiet Jultice
Holt, Lord Chiet Juitice Pollesfeir, and others;
there the Inditment of iy Lord Picllon was his
adhering to the Kin’s Enemics, and amongft
other Overt-Acts alledged his carrying feveral Pa-
pers of Inftruttions to inform the fremch King
how to attack the Kingdom: M. IWarer, who
had been an under Sccretary to my Lord Preflon,
fwore that he believed fome of thole Papers to
be Iike the Lord Prgflsw’s Hand, and they were
all read in that Cafe by the Opinton of the whole
Court, though they were the very exprefs Overt-
Adlts alledged in the Indictment 1t felf: How
doth this ftand here, fuppoling no Ule is made of
the Evidence of Mr. Deyley? When this Paper is
{thewn to Mr, Layer himfelf, before the Lords of
the Council, and was mentioned as a Paper of his
own Writing, and he is afked how he came to
write Arms that are faid there to be lodged, his
Anfwer is, T fhould have wrote, Arms that fhou’d
be there lodg’d 5 Is not this fufficient Evidence to
prove a Confeflion? Doth not this amount to an
Lvidenceof his confefling itto be his own Writing 2
So here 1s, as we apprehend, the Evidence not
only of the Thing it felf, but likewife the Prifo-
aer’s own Declaration, that he was the Perfon who
wrote 1t.  In Sir Henry Vane’s-Cafe, the Warrant
given in Evidence againft him was proved only
by Witneffes who believed it to be his Hands but
here 15 a particular Fadt which (we apprehend)
amounts to a Confeffion, and is a proper Evidence

for the Jury to confider of, whether this be not a
Confeflion.

Mr. A, Gen. My Lord, I apprehend that

we have giveh very proper Lvidence to intitle ug
to read this Paper: My Lord, 1 beg leave to ob-
ferve firlt, that it hath been proved that this Paper
was found among the Papers, which the Prioner
delivered to Mrs. Mafsis, 1o be kept for him,
which were feized in her Lodgings, as the Wit
nefles have before acquainted your Lordfhip, and
if that were all, this Paper muft be read.  As o
that, the Lord Preffon’s Cafe is die€t 1 Point, and
fo determined by fix or feven Judges, @iz, that
Papers found in the Pofleflion of the Prifoner may
be read without furcther Proof.  But we mfft thae
this Paper 13 legally and regularly proved to be his
Writing by the Evidence of Mr. Doyley, and the
Prifoner’s own Confeflion: The Council for the
Prifoner have mentioned Lady Cari’s Cale, and the
A&z tor the Reverfal of the Attainder of Col. Siduey,
and fay they have a great many other Cales to the
fame Purpole,

[ dety them to fhew any one fingle Cafe,
wherein it has been determined, that Proof of a
Perfon’s Hand by a Wimefs, who fwears he has
feen him write, and knows his Hand, and believes
the Paper produced to be of his Hand-Writing,
15 not a fufficient Proof in a criminal Profecu-
tion, that thar Paper is fuch a Perfon’s Hand,
before my Lady Carr’s Cafe; if that Cafe docs
fupport the Opinion they have laid down: In
all Actions fuch Evidence hath been conftantly
allowed s then I fhould be glad to know what
Law or what Reafon has made a Ditterence as to
fuch Evidence, between civil Actions and crimi-
nal or capital Profecutions. As to my Lady
Carr’s Cale, the Book is very dark and obfeure s
I believe the Prifoner’s Counfel cannot muake i
fupport what they now contend for,

Lady Carr was indicted for Perjury, fup-
poled to be committed in an Anfwer {worn by
her before @ Mafter in Chancery : What is there
faid about a Letter does not appear at all to re-
late to the Cafe there; and if any Judge did lay
down fuch a Pofition, as has been mentioned by
the other Side, the meaning muft be, that an
Anfwer on Outh fhall not be falfificd by a Let-
ter only under the Party’s Hand 5 and that fuch
a Letter fhould not be a fufficient Evidence to con-
vit him of Perjury,

As to the Cafe of Col. Sidney, *tis very well
known that he was a Gentleman of Quality, and
in his Study @ Writing was found, wz. A Geire-
ral Tieatife of Doflrines and Pofiticns, which
were very diftafteful to the then Government,
writ in anfwer to a Book formerly publithed. It
was not a Scheme for railing a Rebellion, nor
was it defign’d, for any thing that appeared,
that it fhould go out of his own Clofet, but his
Papers being feized, this Paper was found there
among them; and for this he was inditted of
High-Treafon. It was generally thought ex-
tremely hard to make his having by him fuch a
General Tra&, writ in anfwer to a particular
Book, and kept private in his Clofer, an Overt-
Act of Treafon. However, he was found guilty,
and atminted. No wonder then, when this
came into Parliament, that they refented this
Procceding, and revers’d his Attainder, And
the Reafons recited in this A&, as Inducements
for this Reverfal, are accumulative; every Step
taken in that Procceding is complained of, and
there is not Strefs laid only upon the Proof of this
Paper, but

Tﬁc



1722 B. R

The A& recites, That Col. Sydney, by Means
of an illegal Retrn of zbe'jm:}', by df’;g{u{g bins
bis lawful Challenges to the fuiymein, for want of
Freehold, and without fufficien? legal Evidence of
any, Treafons committed by biiiy there being fraa'ﬂf;d
a '}’apﬁ' fourd i bis Cig[e!, [nppofed i'ﬁ: be _b” Hand-
Witiig, cobich wias not prwsi{ by airy Z IWitnefs
to be woritten by bimy bt ‘hf:e f 1ry 'zir.::i.r'd:reﬁed -!a
believe it by compariung it il G'.Cfr:'?‘ Writiigs of f:-r:ff :
Aud befides that Paper fo ;‘}f‘anm‘d, f/::rrcf was bit
one Witnefs to prove any Malici _:;gm;g/? /;i;::, aid
by a partial and wnjufp Confiruitivis of tle Sffz—
tutes of Treafous was wofk myﬂ/}-{v atlamted. /L.{:{
thein the AB reverfes the Attainder,  Surely, il
the Nature of the Evidence wc'l‘mvc given, to
prove this Paper to be the Priioner’:s Hnm‘l 1S
confider’d, it fiands clear of any matertal Objec-
tion that can be raifed from that Act. This 1
not barcly proved by a comparifon of Hands;
here is a Wimnefs, that often faw him write, ﬁvcar_'s
it to be his Hand-Writing: There was a Mulu-
tude of Papers, fome oftered to b:e proved by
fimilitude of Hands, and cvery one of them was
read in my Lord Preffon’s Cate,

Befides, here is that, which I beg Leave to
infift upon, as a Confcl_ﬁon 19}; Mr. Lﬂ)_*fr, that
this Paper was his Writing; if the Queltion pro-
polud to the Prifoner by the Lords of the Coun-
cil and his Anfwer are confider’d, it amounts to
a phin Confeffion of it ; thercfore we muft in-
filt on it, that we have given a fufficient Evi-
denice for the Reading of this Paper; and I hope
we (hal] have your Lordfhp’s Direttion that it
{hall be read. |

[Here fome other of the King’s Counfel

offered to fpeak.]

L. C. Fust. If there was any Occafion, you
fhould be heard s but there 1s no Occalion,

It is proved by the Witnefles that thefe Pa-
pers were in Mr, Layei’s Pofleflion, that he de-
livered them to Mrs. Mafen, that fhe lock’d them
up in her Trunk, fealed as they were delivered
to her by Mr. Layer, and afterward taken out of
her Trunk by the Meffengers, fo that if they
reft it hiere, and no other Evidence had been given,
the Papers ought to be read, as ‘being h_ig PﬂPf_fl‘S:
which he once had in his Pofleflion, if nothing
clfe had been the Cale, |

Can any thing in the World be an  Authority
moie cxprels than that of my Lord Preflon,
where all the Papers which were in his Cuftody,
and taken out of his Cufledy, were read with-
out any Olker of Proof that they were his
Fland.

And then confider, this goes further 5 it is not
only a Paper found in his Cuflody, but it is a
Paper writen with his own Hand ! How do you

prave that ?
The Malter of this Gentleman tells you he

vas his Clerk, lived with him two Years; after-
wards he received Letters from him about Bufi-
nefs, which Bufinefs he did according to the Di-
rection of thofe Letters, and was paid honour-
ably by him for it, and that he believes it to
be his Hand. If they had gone no further, no-
body could have doubted, but that according to
the ufual Courfe and Rule of Evidence it oughe
to be read.  Then they make an Objetion, and
afkk how long it is fince he was his Clerk ? Why
about fourteen or fiftieen Years ago : His Hand
may be altered in that Time very much : there-
fere how can you fivear ity when it is fo long

for High=Ttreafon.

fince, that it is his Hand ? Why, fays he, be-
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caufe I have received Letters from him five
Years ago 3 I dealt for him as his Agent ; this
Gentleman, Mr. Layer, was my Client, he font
Letters to me, and the Chara@eis of the Let
ters 1 have compared with this Paper, and from
hence it is I believe that his Chara®er is hot
changed. How do you know he write thofe Let-
ters * I anfwered thofe Letters,  and they were
apout Bulinefs which I did for him, and after-
wards he paid me very honourably for it 5 and
therefore 1 believe they were his Writing, and
therefore I believe he hath not changed his Cha-
racter 5 and wpon the whole Matter; fays he, I
verily believe it to be his own Hand-Writing,
Confider, this is confirmed by his own Confel
liony butif it had been an independent Evidence,
it is an Evidence fofficient for to have had this
Paper read 3 becaufe if a Man fays he verily be-
lieves it to be his Hand-writing, it is always
allowed to be read.  You did atk him, but upon
what Grounds do you believe his Chara@er s
not changed ? Why, fiys he, I do principally
believe it from the Letters I received from him,
vhich I fhould have doubted on the Hand, which
he writ fourteen Years ago, whether it was chang-
cd or not 5 and I believe it is not changed, be-
cufe it is agrecable with the Chara®ers he Wit
when he was my Clerk ;3 and upon the whole, I
believe it to be his Hand-Writing,

Then they tell you of an Examination of this
Gentleman before the Lords of the Council,
when they asked him about Arms, he knew no-
thing of them; then they thew him this Paper,
and ask him, how came you in 2 Scheme, all
of your own Hand-Writing, to fay, Arms that
are provided 7 What was more natural than for
lnm to fay, here isa Paper that doth mention It,
I deny it to be my Hand-Writing ? But he was
fo far from denying it, that as the phin Senf
and import of the Words fpoken muft be under-
ftood, he owns it to be his Hand,

It isa Miftake, fays he, I fhould have writ
which fhould have been provided.

How {hould he have writ that, if he had not
writ the other?

So confidering the whole Contexture of the
Bufinefs; and Courfe of Proceeding, it s, and [
believe none can doubt i, as Planly proved to
be his own Hand-Writing, as if he had faid in
fo many Words, it is my Hard-Writing, It
mult have been read as a Paper found in his Cuf
tody,  The other Evidence, that is given to the
Jury, will be a Matter proper for their Confide-
ration ; but if that Evidence had not been, they
muft have been read 5 they ofier that as of greater
import, becaufe it is of the Prifoner’s own  Hand-
Writing,

You tell us of the Lady Cair’s Cafe, which
was an extraordimary Cafe, when fhe in hier An-
{wer 1n Chancery fwore that it was not her Hard,
they come to conviét her of Perjury, by proving
itto be her Hand by a Letter they produced.

Gentlemen, there is no Pretence to make this
a Queftion. Do you think that the Paper, which
you offer, fhall conviét this Woman of Perjury 2
No, when fhe bad fworn it was not her Hand,
they come to prove it by a Witnefs, that fays
he Lelieves it to be her Hand, becaufe they pro-
duce a Letter, which they fay is her Hand,

LR

Upon this the Court determines that this Evi.™

-t
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could be of no Confequence to falfify any Matter,
which fhe had declared upon Oath.‘

RBut as this Cale is, fure there is not the fealt
Doubt but if the Proof of his Hand had been
out of the Cafe, it muft be read asa Paper that
was in his Cuftody, and taken out of the Cul-
tody of one, with whom he had depolited 11,
which is proved beyond all Contradiction.

And in Cafe of my Lord Preffon, and i a
thoufand Cafes, it hath been fo, and never was
dented. o

True, if they come and fay, is this his Hand 2
and the Witnels fays T don’t know whether it 1s
his Hand or nos I have feen fomething of h;s
Fland, and I don’t know but it may be his
Hand; it is not rights but the Witnefs mnit
ground his Belief ftronger 5 1 have feen him
write, and I know his Writing, therefore I' be-
lieve it to be his Hand. If they had refted 1t on
that, that the firft Evidence knew his Hand four-
teen Years ago, that muft be left t{? the Ju'r}-',
whether they believe Mr. Dayley’s Evidonce s ™
caufe, fays he, I faw him wnite fourteen 3.7
aco,  The Poffibility of that, . thers vs 1.9,
thing clfe in the Cafe, might b. ™ w the Jury,
whether that Evidence was futhaent o @ .oly
them, that it was his Hand, Upon the Whols,
never was any thing clearer than that this mui
be read asa Paper found in his Cuftedy, that hath
i1 the ufual Manner and Method the Pivof of be-
ing his Hand-writing,

Prifpner. 1 1 am out of Time I beg your
Lordfhip’s Pardon; I will not take up your
Lordthip’s Time ; I only beg a Word or twos
whether there is any legal Eviaence as to the
Publithing ; the Indictment fays, pedlicavit quoa-
dam walitiofuin foditinfiuin & preditiovsm Jriptum,
and that is not that, that is the Declaration.

L. C. Fuf. Whatever you fay or offer, al-
though it happen to be out of Time, we will
difpenfe with you, v."m:n out of Time; but what
you offer now is upon a Miltake, we are not
upon the Paper you thould apply it to, that is,
the Matter of your Declaration, but we are upon
the Scheme Paper, not whether you publifhed i,
but whcther you writ it

Prifoner. 1 am charged in the IndiGtment
as publithing a malicious, feditions and traiterous
Writing,

L. C. Fuff. You are charged with that as an
Overt-Aét of the Treafon, of Compalfing and
imagining  the Death of the Kings that you
did pubhih a malicious, feditious, and traiterous
Paper, that is the matter of the Declaration.
The Matter now 15, not for Publithing, but
whether there is a reatonable Yroof given that it
15 your Hand-Writing,

Mr, Fuff, Powys. This is only a Circumitance,
not an Overt-Ad& fufficient to convict you.

M. §of. Ger. My Lord, we offer this Paper
as a {trong Evidence corroborating and confirm-
ing cvery Thing which hath been fworn by the
Witnefles, and we pray it may be read.

Mr. Hupgerford, 1 was reading the AG of

Parliament when they—o-

Mr, Sol. Gen. My Lord, we muft beg leave
to inhtt upon the Courfe of Proceeding, that the
Counlel fhall not go on to arsue a Point, after
the Opinon of the Court has been given.

L. C. fuft. Now you have hcard the Opini-
on of the Court, you muft not go on.

Mr. Hungesford. 1 was looking upon the A
of Parllament —————

L. C. Fuft. You remember Francia’s Cafe,
there was a Letter taken up at his Bedfide, it
was difputed wherher that thould be read, at laft
+ Witnefs came and faid, I have feen him write
{overal Times, and I believe it to be his Hand ;
and 1t was read.

Mr. Hungerford. Ay, hafily read.

Clerk of the Crown reads the Scheme.,

The SC HE M E,

Au difant de la force, 3l faut employer
la rufe,

I, ]' E T the General, and only one Officer of
—+ Note in the Camp, agree upon a Day for
Execution,

2. Let the Officer that Day put himfelf on the
Gozer-Guars,

3. And o there 1s cight Serjeants (viz.) three
of the fuft Rogiment of Foot-Guards, three of
ehe Second, aad twvo of the Third, all ready at
air Hour’s warning to obey Orders; carly that
Blorne, let the Officer fee a fingle Perfon name-
Iy Georze 7005 who manages thefe Serje-
ants, and give him Dirlions to bring them
all to fyme convenient Place at four that After-
noon.

4. Then the Officer muflt give each Serjeant
Money {ufhicient for the Purpofe, and direct
’em, that each Serjeant order twenty five Men
(making together two hundred, which they have
ready) to go fingly out of the Camp, and meet
together an Church-Yard, exactly halt
an Hour paft eight in the Evening, when and
where another Qfficer that they know, muft meet
em, and take the Command, give *em Muskets
ready loaded, and muarch with them in a Body to
the Zower-Gate, at nine that Night exactly.

5. Our Friend, the Officer within, muflt pre-

cifely at that Hour of nine be on the Guard at

the Zower-Gate, and {eeing this Body of Men ap-
pear, order the Garrifon to let *em in, as a Re-
cruit fent to the Tower-Guard.

6. As foon as ever they have entered to feize
the Arms at the Tower-Gate, fhut the Gate up,
and fecure every one in the Zower, that the Of
hcer on Guard gives them Orders to fecure, bue
not to fhed any Blood.

7. The Tower being thus feized, to leave on-
ly a fmall Guard there under that Officer who
lets *em 1, and then, with all thofe that join you,
march direitly to the Exchange, wlere the great
Doors muft be ready opened, and the General there
in Perfon.

§. At the exa& Hour of nine, that the Towerr
hall be thus feized, the Perfons of fome great
Men to be arrclted at their Foufes, brought di-
re¢tly into the City, and delivered to the Ge-
neral,

9. That upon our Meeting at the Exchange,
the annexed Proclamation to be fpread about
the Gates of the City to be fhut up, and Pie-
ces of Canon brought down againit ’em, but
every Man that defires to enter the Gates, be-
fore any regular Force appear, to be admitted
to come 1n, and after the General has appointed
a Guard ar cach Gate, and lulets of the City,
with proper Ofiicers to command there 3 let
himy march dack to Tower-Hill, for a Place of

General
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GenemllRendezvous ander the Cannon of the

' , and order the Lord Mayor a good Guard
3 ‘ig;ch over the Bank, but firft take Money trom

thence to the Jower, in order to pay the Men.

0. That on the Morne of tl1.1s f:}ﬁﬁ Day,
" our General to have an Interview with {fome other
principal Officer of the Camp, :mdl ?rdu fll{g_w
engage all Friends to attend at their relpective
Polts, and expet a * Token to be fent to each
of them as that very nghr? on receipt of which
Token they are to draw their Men out, and march
direCtly to the Arsillery i the Cainp, as a Place
of General Rendezvous; and that the Captan
of the Artillery may not be alarm’d, ler tius
Principal Officer previoufly fend a Meflage rto
him, that Orders are come from the General
(Cadegan) to double the Guard of the Arullery,
on 2 Rumour that is {pread of the Mob bemng
up in the City. _ .

11. The Party being come to the Arullery
with the faid Principal Officers at the Head of “em,
let *em immediately draw the Guns roun}l >em,
and ftand upon their Defence, w:;haut miﬂ{mg any
Declaration, until the faid principal Officer, who
commands in chief there, receive certam b Tneethi-
cence from our General that the Tower 15 lerzed
upon, and the City all in Arms, and then under
o Pretence of fecuring the King’s Perfon from the
infults of the Mob, lct this Officer make a De-
sachment to take him into Cuftody, and fend him
into the City to the General at the Tower.

12, To facilitate thele Proceedings, let the
General the fame Day {peak to the Lofe-Officers
in the Camp, who he knows to be our Friends,
and upon the very firft Alarm o[: the City’s hav-
ing revolted, et *em march their Men to either
Ludgate or Newgate, on pretence to fupprqfs the
Mob; and when they are at the Gate, as a To-
ken of their being Friends, let the Watch-Word
be This Moraing, and upon giving us the Word
there, to open the Gates and Jet ’em 1n, and as
foon as they are entered, to march direétly to
Tower-Hill and join themfelves with the General
there.

13. Let the General alfo the fame Day order
Tour of the Half-pay Captains to take upon’em the
following Commands, (viz.)

1. Firlt Captain to go into Southivark, and
exactly at the Hour of nine, to make a Bonfire
in the Fields there, and give fome Money among
the Mob, and when you have got o Number toge-
ther, fend an Account to the General, take the
Arms that muft be lodged there, and diftribute out
amongit ’em to your Acquaintance in the Orft
Place, and to thole which they recommend, and
then iffue out the Declarations 5 and after the Re-
ceipt of a Token trom the Captain next mentioned,
who 1s to command in Palace-Tard, to ferry over
thither n Lighters, with the Watch-Word 7/is
Morning, and join the Captain in Palace-1aid,

15. Second Captamn cxactly at the Ilour of
nine, to be in Privy-Garden, adjoining to Wbite-
Hall, with a few Gentlemen armed, and feize
upon the greac Guns there, and then fpread the
Declarations, and f{tay there under the Cannon till
a greater Body join you from Senthwark; or o-
therwife nail up the Cannon, and march direétly
“to the next Captain in §t Fames’s Park with the
Watch-Word Zhis Aforning, and then fend the
Token, as above, to the firft Captain in Sonth-

for High-Treafon.
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wark, and let the Meflenger you {end, -conduct
him and his Men to you it §t. Faiites’s-Part.

16. Third Captain, at the faid Hour of nine,
to go mto St Fames's Park, wwith the Key that is
given you of the Private-Door out of Arlingten-
Sireet, and appoint only fome few Gentlemen
to meet you there exactly at the Hour and ready,
one to have the Watch-Word you give ‘em,
which muit be This Morning. Let your firtt
Rendezvous be at the little Grove under the
Wall near the Gate leading to Ilvde-Park; and
there you’ll meet Iire - Arms ready  charged.
Then march down to the Parade next the Horfe-
Guard, and {eize upon the Cannon there, and
Ammunition in the Store-FHoufe, and the bet-
ter to fecure St Fames’s Park for a Place of ge-
neral Rendezvous, you fhall have an Officer out
of the Camp exaélly at the Hour of ninecome to
your Afiiftance with fome Men, as he and you
(hall agree m the Morne of this Day, and as foon
as you have feized the Cannon here, and Ammu-
nition aforefuid, vou are to put your felves in 2
Pofture of D:fence, and publith the Declaration,
and fend forthwith to the General at the Toswer
to let him know of your Situation, and allo fend
to the Captains in Palice-2ard, Soutlwark, and
Tuttle-Ficlds, that they imniediately come and join
you.

17. Fourth Captain, cxaly at the Hour of
nine, the Evening of the fame Day tobe in -
the-Frelds 5 rvaile the 77ffimnfler Mob there, and
with the Arms that are there fody’d, equip them
as you can; publith the Declarations, and march
dire@ly to S8t Fames’s Park and join with them
there, who, on your giving them the Watch-Word,
are to admit you 1nto the Park,

18. So here being two Bodies of Men thus got-
ten together the firft Night, viz. One on Tewir-
Hill, and the other in §¢. Janes’s-Park, (belides our
Friends at the Artillery in Hyde-Park.) Thenexe
Morning, if not fooner, let our Geueral order a
Detachment to  Lincohss-Inn-Fields, and fome
Cannon to be placed on the Terrasof the Garden
there, left the Enemy come in there between §.
Fanies’s Park and the Ciry.

9. A proper Captain muft be appointed to
head the Watermen belonging to the Thames,
and previous to the Day of Exccution, he muft
agreed with the Duke’s Bargemen, that upon the
feaft Notice to be given them, that they alarm alt
the Watermen, and bring them to a Rendczvous
the fame Hour of nine that Night of Excecution,

and this Captain’s Rendezveus mullt be at Green-
cwich, where he mufl feize the Magazine of Pow-

der, and takeout fuch part of it as each Man will
carry, then blow up the reft, march from thence
to the Tower, and join his Men with the General
there, to whom he maft firlt fend a Meflenger
with the Watch-Word, and an Account of his
Numbers.

20. Some Time before Execution, the General
to fend a Meflenger to particular Men in the Coun-
try, that they rife in taeir refpective Countics
upon the firft News of what 1s done here.—

21. An Officer, &, to go to Richmond, and
at the exa& Hour of nine to feize upon Prince
Pritty Man, and bring him away to Southwark to

“fome particufar Place appointed, where an Agent

from the General muft meet them with his further
Orders. | '

2 Tt may be a Note in Writine thus, Sir, I'll meet you at nine to Night, don’t it me. 7. §

-

VoL, YL

b A verbal Meflage by a third Perfon that mult be by, when the Generaland this Chief Officer confult togetl er till Morne,

Oo Mr, Ser
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M., Serj. Pengelly.  'We read this as an Evi-
’dencerthntJ Cﬂnngt be miftaken, which is all of his
own Hand-Writing,

Mr. At Gen. My Lord, we apprehend that
this confirms what both the Witnefles have
fworn.

Mr. Setj. Peugelly. 'We fhall now produce fome

Reccipts fubferibed by the Name of Fames R, and
pray that they may be read, thefe were likewile

among thofe Papers, as hath been proved in the
Manner you have heard already.
Clerk of the Crown reads one of them.

I Acknowledge to bave recerved froin
the Sum of
which St
I promife to repay with an Iuteicft for it at the Rate
of per Annuni

Fames R.

L. C. Fyf: They are not read as 1f proved,
the Hand is not proved, but as Papers found on
him.

Mr. Soll. Gen.  In my Lord Pieftor’s Cafe,
his Lordfhip was taken in the Hold of a Ship
lying upon the Ballalt, end Abton there near
him, and between his Lordfhip and Afbtor was
found lying alfo upon the Ballaft, a Pacquet of
Papers, which Afbton fnatch’d up, and put into
his Bofomn, from whence they were prefently taken s
two Seals, which appeared to be my Lord Pref-
ton’s when he was Secretary of State, were found
lying near to the Papers. Upon this Proof thofe
Papers were read as Iividence againlt my Lord
Prefton, without any Proof made of their being
his Hand-Writing, 1n order to the Reading of
them.

Mr. Hungerford, My Lord Preflon was taken
on board a Ship going to Fiance, then in War
with England, thefe Papers were found in the
Bofom of Mr. Afbton, who was going with him ;
my Lord endeavourcd, fo far as he could, to
throw them over-board: The Offence did not
turn upon the Papers being writ by my Lord
Preflon; or not; in my Lord Preflow’s Cale the
Papers contained a Difcovery of the Condition
of the I'leet and Garrifons of Eugland and France,
in order to enable Frauce to invade usy it fipni-
fy’d nothing who writ the Papers, the Crime
was the having them, knowing the Contents of
them, and endeavouring to carry them to Frauce,
fo the Circomftances of my Lord Preffan widely
differ from this,

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 beg leave to mention another
Thing, there the Papers were found in the Cultody
of my Lord Preffon, here they were found in the
Cuftody of a third Perfon whofe Evidence we
fhall controvert by a Number of Witnefles, when
1t comes to our turn, I believe it will appear that
fome of the Papers were found on the Table in
my Lord Preflon’s Cale, and others taken out of
his Pocket.

Mr. §oll. Gen. No, they wete firft found lying
on the Ballaft,

Mr. Ketelbey. What were found on Afbion,
and taken out of his Bofom, were feen lying on

the Ballaft, but there were other Papers feized at
that Time.

Mr. Soll. Gen, ‘They were the fame Papers
that were afterwards taken out of 4fton’s Bofom,

which were read as Evidence againft my Lord
Prefion upon the Circumftances I have mentioned.
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Mr. Ketelbey, As I remember, fome of them
were found on the Table in the Cabin.

Mr. Fuff. Eyre. No, they werce found on the
Ballaft in the Hold of the Ship.

L. C. Juf. You fay that they were foung
in my Lord Preffor’s Pofleflion, and not in the
Pofleflion of Afbtons you fay my Lord Prefo,
had no Counfel, but you know it is the Duty of
the Court not to fuffer any thing to be read in
Evidence that ought not. You fay you fhl
controvert this Matter, and give an anfwer to i,
and that it appears they were not in his Cuftody,
they were taken out of this Witefs’s Cuftody,
and under his Seal, and therefore the Difference
it makes 1s nothing at all.  Befides, the Proof
m my Lord Preflon’s Cafe is not fo ftrong as
the Proof of the Scheme againft the Prifoner,
becaufe the Scheme is proved to be his own
Hand-Writing, which was not in the Cafe of my
Lord Prefion,

Mr. Ketelbey, My Lord, will not your Lord-
thip think it neceffary chat they give further Evi-
dence that they are his Papers before they are
read,

L. C.Fuff. Read them,

Gl of the Cr. 1 acknowledge to have teceived,
&Ie, here are ten of thein, that are the fame.

Mr. Ser). Pengelly,  Mr. Stanyan, do you re-
member whether any Queftions were afl’d him
with relation to thofe Receipts ?

Mr. Stawyan.  What I recollect is this: Upori
the Lords afking Mr. Layer the meaning of thofe
Receipts figned by the Pretender, and what Ul
he made of them, he faid that during the Time
he was at Raie, he had fettled a Correfpondence
with Ste 2illiam Ellis, and fome time atterwards
he writ to Sir William Ellis according to the Di-
rections he gave him, and he told him, if he
could fend any Receipts figned by his Majefty,
or the King, as he called him, he thought Mo-
ney might be rais’d upon them for carrying on
the Caufe, thefe were the Words, as near as I can
remember,

Mr. At Gen. Mr. Delafaye, was you by ?

Mr. Ketelbey, It was for raifing Money to
carry on his Caufe, you mean Sir Willian Ellis's
Caulfe ?

Mr. Stamyan. No, Sir,

Mr. Huygerford, He acknowledged to have re-
ceived them from Sir J7illiam Ellis ?

Mr, Stanyan,  Yes.

Mr. Ketelbey.  You faid he own’d he had them
from Sir Williain Ellis, having fettled o Corre-
fpondence with him, that Money might be raif-
el by thele to carry on his Caufe; he told you he
had Bufinefs to do for Sir /¥illiam Ellis.

Mr. Stamyan. No. 1 know nothing of Sir
William Ellis’s Bufinefs, but that he had appoint-
ed to correfpond with Sir /7illiain Ellis, and Sir
William Ellis gave him his Addrefs how to dire
to him, and he acknowledged to have received

-a Letter or Letters from Sir Hilliam Ellis, in the

Name of Fones, and that he writ to him in Anfiver
to ’em,

Mr. Ketelbey. Are you fure as to thofe Words,
or only to the Purport of *em?

Mr. Staiyan. I chink they are near the Words,
but I am fure they are the Purport of them ?

Mr. Ketelbey. Was it reduced into Writing ?

Mr. Stanyan, Tt was reduced into Writing in
this Manner., It was a very long Examination,
about four or five Hours,

Mr, Ketelbey,
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M. Ketelbey. 1afk you, whether it was reduced

™ * P
into Writing ¢ _
Mr. .S'tm;;n. Yes, It wass the Lords fent to

me, to aflift Mr. Delafaye, upon Mr. Layer’s be-

Ing exa
the Queltions propounded 5 and I fate near the

Table, looked over Mr. Delafaye attended to
the Queftions and Anfwers 5 fo that we could fet
onc another right when we came to conlider

them, |
Mr. Ketelbey. This you Wrote, was it read

over to the Prifoner ¢

Mr. Stanyair.  No. |

Mr. Ketc/bey, Do you believe the Prifoner ac
(he Bar faw you write ? |

Mr. Stanyan. Yes, 1 believe he faw us write,

Mr. Ketelbey. Do yon believe he thought any
Perfon was taking his Confcflion in Writing ?

Mr. Stanyan. 1 think it cannot be otherwife.

Mr. Ketelhey. 1 afk you, do you believe that Mr.
Laver knew that you was taking his Confeffion at
that Time ?

Mr. Stanyan, The Lords {poke thusy Pray take
Notice, ard then ke down fuch a Thing, and
fuch a Thing ; and Ibelieve Mr. Layer heard them
{1y, Take down that, and take dowsn that,

Mr. Ketelbey. Was it ever known for one to
tke down the Queltions, and the other the An-
fwers 3 and then to compare them together, in Or-
der to make a Confeffion ?

Mr. Stasvan. Nos Mr. Delafaye wiote down the
Quettions and Anfwers.

Mr. Hungerferd.  How was the Pofition of My,
Fayer, with refpect o you 5 was your Back or
FFace towards him 2

Mr. Staiyan. It was on one Side.

Mr. Lungeiford. Wasyou 1n. the Room when
Mr. Laver came 1n firlt ?

Mr. Stenvan. T was, [ called i Mr. Layer by
the Lords Order,

My, Hunoerford, Wasit ever read to him ?

Mr. Staiyan. No,

Mr. Huigerford, Was 1t drawn up in Form, {o
that you mightcall itan Examination ?

Mr. Stauyan, 1 will tell you what we upder-
{tood by it s it was the Minutes of an FExamina-
tion to be drawn out 1n Form : But the Lords find-
ing Mr. Layer not fo candid and ingenuousas they
thought he would have been, did not afk him to
fien 15 and we only make ufe of it to refreth our
Memories.

Mr. Ketelbey, Hecalls it an Examination, and
1t appears by what Mr. Stanvan faith, that he and
Mr. Delafaye took it 5 one takesone Part, and the
other takes another Part.

Mr. §o/l. Ger.  He did not fay any fuch
Thing.

Mr. Ketelbey.
over to him.

M, Soll, Gen, Mr. Stamyan, when the Lords di-
re¢ted Mr. Delafuye and you to write this or that
particular Thing, was the Prifoner fo near, that
in your Apprehenfion he might hear their Lord-
thips give fuch Direétions 3

Mr, Stamyan, Yes, he was,

Mr, Hungerford.  Sure they are not contend-
Ing, that any Confeflion thall affect 2 Man, unlefs
it was read to him, and it ought to be fign-
ed by him 3 my Lord, the Man is no Way an-
fwerable for any Thing taken in Writing, with-
out s Confent or Privity, in a Criminal Cali -
[t is called DMinutes or an Lxamination, which

VoL VI,

His Confeflion was never read

for High-Tredfon. ‘

mined : Mr. Delafaye took the Feads of

283

they might enlarge as they pleafe; therefore we
humbly fubmit it to your Lordthip, Whether
it ought to be offered in Evidence at all as a Con-
feflion,

Mr. Ketelbey.  What will be the Confequence,
if' this be allowed hete ? Is a Perfon to be con-
victed of Treafon upon a Confeflion taken, with-
out its being read to him, and without his fign-
ing 1t? A Confeflion toa Juftice of Peace, in
Caes of Felony, unlefs read to the Party, and
[igned by him, muft not be given in Evi-
dence. -

L.C. Just. Mr. Ketelbey, you feem to mif:
take what it is that is contended for by the King’s
Council : They are not going to ofter any thing
to be read in Evidence ; your Objeétion would
prevail, if they were going to read a Confeflion
as Evidence, which was neither read to him, nor
ligned by him 5 but if there is no Examination
reduced into Writing, and figned by the Party,
the Confequence of that is, that the Witnefs is
at Liberty to givean Account of what was faid;
and he may look to his Notes to refrefh his Me-
mory : If you will fay, itis not fo great an Lvi-
dence, of fo great Weight, as an Examination
taken, and figned by the Party, there is fome
Room left, fome Foundation to fuppofe the Evi~
dence may be miftaken.

He fays, he was examined before the Lords
of the Council; and he took Minutes of his Fx-
amination ¢ And afterwards to refrefh himfelf, he
looks upon them, and fays, he belicves that is
the Subitance of what he confefled at that Time.
You fay, there is no Precedent for it 5 for God’s
Sake! Recollect your felf, 1t is every Day done
at the OM-Bailey : 1f a Perfon confefleth, and it
be not in Writing, they do prove his Confeflion,
Vivd Voce.

Mr. Sell. Gen, My Lord, Goleman's Cafe,
which was during the Time that Sir 7#7illiam Fones
was Attorney General, went further than this:
There his Letters were laid in the Indi@tment, as
the very Overt-Act of the High-Treafon charged
againlt him ; and yet one of thofe Letters was
proved by his Confeflion, upon an Examination
before a Committee of the Houfe of Lords; and
that Confeflion was prov'd, Vivi Foce, by Sir
Philip Lloyd.

Mr, Aetelbey. Whether that Cafe will be a
Precedent ? I never heard it fo reckoned.

Mr., Hungerferd. And I hope it will never ke
one.

Mr, Delafaye, {worn.

Mr. S:r). Chefbire.  Mr. Delafaye, pray give an
Account what Mr. Layer declared before the Lords
of the Council concerning thefe Receipts,

Mr. Delafaye. ‘The Account he gave

L C. Fuft. Mr. Delafaye, you was prefent at
the Time of taking this Examination ; you fay,
you tcok Minutes in Writing 5 you have told us
the Reafon why 1t was not in Form, and read to
Mr. Layer ¢ 1f you have not already done ir,
you may lJook to your Minutes, and refrefh
your Memory : That which the Court demands
of you 15, what Mr, Layer did confefs ar the
Time of his Examination before the Lords of the
Council, =~ =

Mr. Delafaye.  He told the Lords, that he did
write © Siv'Willian Ellis, that he would fend
over fome blank Receipts under the King’s own
Hand, that might .be made ufe of, for the
carrying on his Caufe : That he did receive fuch

Qo2 Receipts,
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Receipts, and his Intention was to have tried his
Friends ; and to have raifed Money on thofe Re-
CEIpLS. . |

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Did he give any Reafon
why he went into that Method ¢ ' |

Mr, Delafaye. Fora Precedent, he faid, a little
before the Reftoration of King Charles I1. a Me-
thod of this Kind had been ufed,

Mr, A, Gen. My Lord, we fhall now proceed
to read the Letters that were fent and pafied be-
tween them, Sir BWillians Ellis and Mr. Layer : But
it will be proper firft to lny before you the Cyphers
which they made ule of to explun feveral cant
Words and Expreflions, which they ufed in their

Letters.
L. C. Fuft. Were the Cyphers found among Mr.

Layei’s Papers ¢

Mr, A, Gen. Yes, my Lord.

Mr, Serj, Chefbire. Pray read No. 38.

Mr. A1, Gen.  1don’t know whether we fhall
trouble your Lordlhip to read the whole Cypher 4
it 1s very long, but when we meet with a Word
in the Letters which wants Explanation, we may
have Recourle to the Cypher. Read the Letter
No. 38.

Cl. of the Gr. veads,  This Lettey is fioned Eu-

Jrace Fones, &c.

Dear § TR,

Recerv’d with a great deal of Pleafuie and So-
fisfaction, a Letter of the 241 of November,
Jrom my worthy Fricid, <oith an dcconnt of bis [afe
Arrivaly of which [ <wos in fume Donbt  before,

aid i wo finall Peiin on that Aeconist : T cafily con-

cerve be muft weeds beve bad a great deal of Bufine/s
on bis Returir, as wwell of bis Unkle’s as of bis oweon 5
and therefore, I dow’s think much that T beard no
Jooner from bim, belicing e was much better im-
Ployed, aid that Bufiuefs is to be preferred before
Complinunt,

Lwas entively of bis Opinion as to the Methed
of cairying on the ManubaQory 5 the procuring of
good Workmen, is the firt Step to be made, and if
be can get fiuch, the reft <willbe eafyy and particular-
by, if he could gain foine of the ablef of Mlis, Bar-
bara Smith’s, T kuetw it would be very agreeable to
ctl concernedy aind particularly 1o My, Atkins, o
whom be fpoke of Witingy end <hich, T am fa-
l1sfiedy <oill be very acccptable = dud if be thinks Jit 1o
tnclofe it to e, I fhall convey it fafely to bis Hands,
who, 1 find, was very glad 10 bear of him, consts
very diieh upoin bis Friendfbip, and bopes for the Con-
Linttance of it

{ 1made bis Compliments to My, Timothy Wat-
fon’s Wife, <vbo took them very kindly, and returns
bers, <vith ber moff bumble Service.  She and her
Charge are wvery <ell, God be prasfed, as are alfp
all Friends here.

He baving read cver feveral times the Paper [
fhewd bim, and having " q good Menory, I don’t
4oinik it neceffary to fend a Copy of it.

Mr. A, Gen. Your Lordfhip is pleafed to
remember, Mr. Stanyan faid that Siv 7#lliain Eliis
was to write by the Name of Fones.

Mr, Stampan. My Lord, he did fay, that he
had received a Letter fince he had fettled a Corre-
fpondence with Sir #illiam Ellis fubferibed by the
Name of Foues.

Mr. 4. Gen. Inthe Cypher Sir W illiain Eilis
15 called Fones.

CL. of the Cr. reads, 'This Letteris figned ££y-

Sace fones, dated goth Faunary, no Year, Deay

Siry 1 recerr’d, &c.

Mr. A, Gen. Your Lordfhip will be pleafd
to oblerve the Expreffions in this Letter, the
procuring good #erkaein : Now look in the Cy-
pher, and Soldicrs are meant by TWorkmen ; Manu-
factory 1s not in the Cyphers, but I don’t know
for what Manufattory they wanted Soldiers, un-
lefs to raife a Rebellion. The Ablelt of Mrs.
Bardara Smith’s; look for rmy in the Cyphers,
and you will find, that is figniticd by Bardara »
It will be very acceptable to all concerned, and
particularly to Mr, Atkins 5 in the Cypher that is
the Pretender,  Compliments to Mr. Timothy IV as-

Jo’s Iife s look in the Cyphers, and Timothy ftands

for Hughes, whole Wifc is Nurle to the Pretendeis
Child. This Letter is directed for Fames Fouu-
tane, Eiq; to be left av Howells Coffec-Ionfe in
Great Wild-flreet, and 1 oblerve, Mrs, 34afoi faid
the Prioner went by the Name of Fonntajne,—
No. 10. are fix fictitious Names, and the Key to

them : Read it.
Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 10,

Digly-———Dillon.
Orrery—— Burford,
Regemt——Steel,

Tor igSmmm—J anicis.
IFiges——IV ages.
Regers———DPlunkeis,

Mr. A, Gen. Read the Letter No. 4o0.

Cl. of the Cr. Reads, figned N. €. Dawed the
11th of Fuly, 1723,

Dear SR, The 11th of Fuly, 1922,

Received <ith ofl polfdle Satisfaltion your sinof

affeitionate Letter of 8th Nay with its in-
clofed, wwhich <was prefeitly delivered 1o Mr. St
John, <wbo took it extreain Lindly 3 but conid not
wel! underftand what relates to Mr. Burford 5 be
bopes, your dufwer 10 what I «crit, iu the begin-
ning of laff Month, may faon clear that » Vo will
have feen, by what T then told you, that the former
came fafe to bis Hands, and the Reafon of your not
baving bad a difinél dufiocr to it: He hbad the
Stockings you fent for bim, and returns you nany
Thanks for thems as alfo for all other Marks of your
Affection and Concern for bim and bis, and will be

ready 1o fbew bis Senfe thereof on all Occafians, T
am in earncfp Expetfation of bearing foon again

I am, <with great Efteem and Refpest, cver mofe - from you, and am, with all poffible Affection and

entirely,
Dear SIR,

30 Fanuary.
Yor Fames Fountaine, Efq;
to be left at Hoavell 5. Cof-
Jee-Honle, in Greap 1Vild-
otreet, Loxpoy,

Your moft affeGtionate,
moft humble and moft

obedient Servant,

Liuflace Fones,

Lfteen,
Dear § TR,

Por Fames Fountaine, Tlg;  Your moft faithful and
to be left at Howrdl's Coffec-

Tioufe in Gregt IWild-Stre:t,

LoXwpoy, moft humble Servant,

N. C.
L. C. Fuf,
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. C. Fuf. Whoisthat N, C?
I{'/Ir. A!Zﬂ%eﬂ. My Lord, we do not know,

itis direted to Fames Fountaine, Yiqy M. St.
Yobn in the Cypher fignufies the Pretender,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Mr. Burford appears to ftand
for my Lord Orrery in the little Gypber,

Mr. Hungerford, Look into the Paper, pray
what do Stackings ftand for ?

Mr, Soll. Gen. Read the Letter No. 41,

Clerk of the Cr. This is q;lrcd the 27 AMay, it
1s fign’d by no Body, nor diretted to any Body
the Cover 1s off : 1 receiv’d with a great, &c.

Dear § I R, 27 May.

Recerv'd with a great deal of Pleafure, the Fa-

vour of your meft obliging Letter of 224 March,
with an inclofed for onr Friend, who was very glad
to hzar from you y and is very fenfible of, and takes
very kindly, the Care you take of bis litile Conceris
thares but fays, be doth not fufficiently underftand
the State you fent, fo as to be able to make a par-
ticlar Anfwery Il you fhall further explain it
theve being foine Tenants, mention’d by you, whafe
Naines be does not find in the Remtal, as Burford,
Steel, Digby, the little Soldier, and Simmonds ;
the lattery be believes fhould be Simwmes, be is of
the Noithy a grey bair'd amtient [an, wwhon be
very well remembers, and bas a perticular Effcem
aird Value for, as a very good Tenant, and a very
Loneft Man.

AU Friends bere are in perfeld good Health, God
Ve thanked, and reicmber themfelves kindly to you,

and 1 am sinaft entirely,
Yours, &,

Mr. Soll. Gen. If you look into the Cyphes,
you will find Reutal ftands as the fititions Name
for the Cypher itlelf 5 Burford ftands for the Lord
Oriery, Steel for the Regent, and Digly for Ge-
neral Diflon,

Siminous, he believes fhould be Simmes, but
Siimsinoids in the large Cypher is put for Lord North
and Grey, and who is meant, appears pretty plain
trom the Cant which follows. "He is of the North
a giey bair'd antient Man, whom be well remen-
versy and bath a particular Effeen and Value for,
as & very good Lenant, and a very honeft Man.

M. dit. Gen. Look for Simmans in the Cypher,

Mr. Hungerford, 1 can make one Obfervation,
that Mr. Harcouit is very ready at. -

Cl of the Cr. Tt is alphabeted, fo that it is
eafy to look for it.

L. C. Fuff. What Ule do you make of thefe
Letters ¢

Mr. Soil. Gen. The Ufe we make of them is
to fhew that Mr. Layer who took on him the
Sham-Name of Fountaine, by which Name fome
of thefe Letters are addrefled, had a Correfpon-
dence with the Friends of the PRETENDER
at Koine, That this Correfpondence related to a
Confpiracy, which was formed and carrying on
here 5 and it appears, they took upon them to
mention feveral Perfons of Diftinion under a
kind of Jargon,

Mr. Adit. Gen. The firft Letter, wherein is
mentioned the carrying on the Manufatlory, the
procuring gcod /¥ prkmen, and particularly, if
he could “gain fome of the ableft of Mrs, Bar-
bara Smiths, and that it would be very agree-
able to all concern’d, and particularly to Mr.
Atkins, which is the Name for the Pretender

for High-Treafélll
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fhews, that the Agents of the Presender at Rome,
had laid Defigns to procure Soldiers, and thofe,
if poflible, out of his Majefty’s Troops; which
falls in with the Evidence we have given of the
Prifoner’s Endeavours to get Soldiers and Serje-
ants out of the Army.

Mr. Sery. Chefhire. It may not be improper,
fince we have explain’d it, to lay before you the
Lifts of fevcral Perfons Names that are in the
Army.

Pray read No, 7. out of the large Bundle.

Cl of the Cr. Reads a Liff of Officers Names
with Marks and Numbers to fome of them.

Mr, A, Gen, We did mention before, that
there were the Names of feveral Perfons of very
great Honour and Loyalty to his Majefty in fome
of the Lifts; but this is to fhew, that the Pri-
loner was confulting how he might get an Ac-
count of the Number of the Forces; as how
many Colonels, how many Captains, and how
many Soldiers there were in the Guards and other
Troops of his Majefty,

Read No. 5. in the large Bundle.

Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 5. A Lift of Offi-
cers of the Sccond, or Coldfream Regiment of
Guards,

Mr., A1, Genr. We make the fame Ufe of this
to fhew, that he was fearching and examining to
get an Account of the Guards;

L. C. Fut. Iuppofe he is taking a Survey of
the Perfons that were of the Guards, that he might
be capable of makinga Judgment.

Mr. Att, Gen. Yes, my Lord 5 and to know
their Strength : Look out No. 6. in the larae
Bundle,

Cl. of the Gr. Reads No. 6. A Lift of Offi
cers in the firlt Troop of Horfe-Grenadiers, the
Names being diftinguithed by different Letters.

No. 7. out of the fmall Bundle, A Lift, &,
here arc eleven of them put down.

Mr. Soll. Gew. Read No. 8. in the large
Bundle.

Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 8. A Liit, &,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Your Lordfhip will obferve,
that this is a Lift of fome Perfons Names, and
the Numbers of Horfes and Men they were to
provide.

L. C. 7uff. You'll have this to import an Ac-
count of what Quota’s feveral Perfons were to
find.

Mr, A, Gen. The laft was read for that
Purpofe : Read No. 15. in the large Bundle.

Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 15. Containing di-
vers Names, with Numbers fec againft fome of
them.

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Read No. 20, 21, 22, 23,
and 24, 1n the Jarge Bundle,

Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 20. Containing a Lift
of the Great-Officers of the Tower. No. 21. Con-
taining Names of Officers of the Second Troop
of Horfe-Guards, Second Troop of Horfe-Gre-
nadiers, and Fourth Troop of Horfe-Guards,
No. 22. Containing a Lift of Names. No. 23,
Containing Names of Officers of the Firft, Se-
cond, Third and Fourth Troops of Guards,
No. 24. Containing the Names of two Officers
of the Horfe-Guards.

Mr, Ait. Gen. Look upon that Lift, No, 21,
whether there are not fome private Marks upon
It.

Cl. of the Cr. Yes, here is upon one of them
a Dott, and on the other Side there is a Dott;

' and
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and in two or three Places fome Men mark®d and

crofs’d.
Mr. Serj. Chefbire Read No. 25, |
C/. of the Cr. Reads No, 25. Containing @ Lift
of Officers, live of them marked to be et bad.
Mr. Recve. Are the Words aot bad of the
fume Hand-Writing ?
Cl. of the Gr. Yusy It doth appear to me to
be fo.
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Read the Title of No. 22.
Cl. of the Cr. Tlere area great many Peoples
Names, with Marks upon fonic, and none upon
others: Upon one of them is Writ JVilliam Fobn-

oty to be gained.
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Read No. 27,
Cl. of the Cr. Reads, A Lift of the Third Re-
agiment of Guards; againft feveral of which Names

are Dotts and Marks.
Mr. Seri. Pengelly. Read No. 23.
Cl, of the Cr. Reads, A Lift of the Officers of

the Coldftrea Regiment of Guards 3 and a Ltk
of the Officers of the Scorch Guards.

Mr. Soil. Gein. Read No. 35.

Cl. of the Cr. Reads No. 35. A Paper, con-
taining an Account of the Numbers of the Offi-
cers and Soldiers in the Firft, Second, and Third

Regiment of Foot Guards.
Mr. Serj. Pegelly. My Lord, we beg leave
to ask Mr. Delafaye and Mr. Stamyan two or

aeftions, to fupport the Evidence of Mr.

threc Qu
Twnch and Mr, Plunkest, i relation to fome

particular Fafts 3 whether at the time of the Ex-
amination of M. Layer before the Lords of the

Council, any thing was faid of M. Layer’s being

at Rome ¢

Mr. Hungerford. With humble Subrmiffion,
Mr. Layer’s being at Rome, and correfponding
with the Pretender, (if he did fo) is made Lrea-
fon by another A of Parliament, not by this
A& of Parliament upon which he is indicted :
Therefore, whether he was himielt at Roue, or
correfponded with the Pretender, cannot be offer-
ed as an Evidence of High-Treafon upon this In-
dictment,

Mr. Serj. Pengelly. Itis only to fhew the Pro-
bability of his receiving thofe Recetpts.

Mr. Ketelbey. Since we did not know any
thing of thofe Papers, we could not properly
make our Exceptions againft them, till we heard
thent read 5 and now, if they prove any thing;
’tis the holding Correfpondence with the Prefe-
ders but that relates to another late At of Par-
liament 3 *tis another Species of Trealon 5 and
the Evidence which they would give of his Con-
feffion, Yivi Vacey they fay, it is only to fup-
port thefe Papers that are read 5 Who can make
any Objedtion to a Paper which we did know
nothing of ? I believe few in the Court know
what the Meaning of thefe Papers are now they
are read 3 for my Part, I know very litle of
them ; we apprehend that inftead of being al-
lowed to fupport this Evidence, by proving a
foreign Correfpondence between M., Layer and
the Pretender, by the Name of King FAMLES,
which is made Treafon by a particular Act of
Parliament 3 they ought rather to have Indicted
him upon that, than endeavour to {upport thetr
defetive Proof by giving Evidence of an Offence,
which may be matter of another Enquiry.

Mr. Att. Gen. My Lord, we apprehend a
Proof, that the Prifoner was at Rome, and had

Conferences with the Pretender, will be very
proper 1o Corroborate, and explain the Evidence
that hath been given by the Witnefles, and the
Pretender’s Notes, and Sir William Ellis’s Letters
+o the Prifoner; and for thofe Purpols we would
make Ufe of it.

M. So/. Gen. Though we apprchend we have
made our Cafe exeremely ftrong already, yet
this which has been opencd may be ofiered by
Way of turther Confirmation : INotwithftanding
the Objetion which is made, that we are at-
tempting to give Evidence of another Kind of
Trealon not alledged in the Indictment, yet we
infuft upon it, that 1t is proper here, as circum-
ftantial Evidence of the Treafon which is alledged.
We have proved a Eonltyracy entered into be-
rween this Gentleman and others, to bring in the
Pretender, and levy War for that Purpole 5 and
alfo, Notes fign’d FAMES R. which he re-
ceived from Sie Willicin Ellis, a Perlon at the
Pretenda®s Court.  Now, if we follow this by
fhiewing, that the Prifoner was actually at Roiire,
and had Perfonal Conferences with the Presemder
himfelf 5 that, furely, muft be admitted to b
+ material Circumftance to fupport the Proof of
thofe other Fa@s. 1 beg Leave to fay, that i
has been held, even fince the Stat. 70 JVill. Tert,
That A&s of High-Treafon not laid in the In-
diGtment, may be given in Evidence, if they con-
duce to the Proof of fome Overt-Aét which is

there laid.

Mr. Serj. Chofbire. We apprehend your Lord-
thip will receive Evidence of the fame Kind of
Treafon in a lower Degree, in order to prove the
Overt-A€t, whereby he confulted and confpired to
bring in the Prefender, and place him upon the
Throne.

As the Prifoner did correfpond with his Mi-
nifters, fo he had Accefs to the Pretender Tnmiclt s
and he did own it. That we apprehend 1s go-
ing a Step higher, fomething further than already
is admitted ; and if it is proper Evidence, there 18
no reafon why it fhould be rejected.

Mr. Reeve. It is true, we have not Indicted
him for a treafonable Correfpondence with the
Pretender, therefore they object, we cannot give
Evidence of any fuch Correfpondence upon this

Inditment.
My Lord, we humbly apprehend, every thing

that is a Circumftance that will gain Credit t
the Witneflvs examined is proper Evidence. It
looks indeed improbable, that a Gentleman of
the Profeffion of the Law fhould enter into this
treafonable Defign, which is exprefsly Iworn up-
on him by two Witnefles, whole Credit they de-
fien to impeach ; theretore we humbly ofter this
25 2 circumitantial Evidence.  This Gentleman
having gone from lus Profeflion, hath been a:
Rowe, was kindly receiv’d and entertain’d by
the Prefender 5 thercupon he hath entered into
an Intercourfe with his Minifters : And, if we
prove this, it is to induce Credit to the Evidence
we have given by pofitive Witnefles. We there-
fore think it proper, and fubmit 1t to your I ord-
thip. _

L. C. ¥uff. They muft go on, they are not
ooing upon an Evidence of a new Overt-Act of
Trealon ; the Overt-Ads are confulting, advifing,
and agrecing to raile a Rebelhon.

Mr. Hungerford. 1humbly beg your Lordfhip’s
Pardon.
L. C. Fuft.
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i.cC. ?’f{ﬁ‘ If you will not hear me; you will
teach me not to hear you.

Mr. Hungerford. My Lord, I hope we have a
RI%:_tgﬁﬁ.]yUpdn the firft Letter of Sir 7illiei
Zllis’s he congratulates him, as his Friend on his

afe Arrival, _ . |
ﬁﬁ;\dn Hungerford. My Lord, I beg your {Jprd-
fhip’s Pardon; T'am in the Service of my Client,
and in endeavouring to do him Service, Iam ve.
rily perfuaded, I fhall not offend your Lordfhip :
Really for my part, I cannot fatisfy my felf, that
the Evidence which they tender to the Court 1s a
proper Evidence. )

This Gentleman i5 indited upon the Statute
de Proditionibus, 25° Ed, 3. The Overt-Acts lud
in the IndiGtment are, his confulting, conlpiring
and agreeing to raife a Rebellion, and to levy
War againft the King, .

There is an A& of Parliament in the laft Year
of King Filliam, whereby the Pretender 1s at-
tainted; which makes correfponding with the
Pretender; or any of his Adherents Fligh-Treas
fon; and when any Man commits that particu-
Jar Treafon, he is liable to be taken up and pro-
fecuted forit. Now my Lord, fhall they be ad-
mitted to give an Evidence of a Treafon com-
mitted in breach of one A& of Parlmment,
when they ate profecuting him upon another,
they may as well offer Evidence againlt hun for
counterfeiting the Great Seal, or clipping and
coining for the Sake of Evidence: We hope this
Practice fhall not be allowed 5 if they are fo full
of Proof (as by their opening they feem’d to
be) which by the Rules of Law can reach this
Man’s Life, which I cannot yet fee, lec Juftice
take its Courfe: But we humbly hope they fhall
not be permitted to give Evidence of Fats which
are entirely foreign to the prefent Accufation, and
can be calculated for nothing but to captivate
the Jury, by acquainting them that the Prifoner
hath been at Rome., But if the King’s Counfel
will have it effeftually publifh’d, that the Pri-
{oner hath been at Roie, let them confent to have
him found not guilty upon this Indi€tment, and
let him then be profecuted upon the Aét, for cor-
refponding with the Pretender, and fee what will
come of it. |

Mr. Ketelbey. The A& of Parliament that
makes this new Treafon is the 13 and 14 of
King William; which not only miakes that Trea-
fon which was not Treafon before, but puts it
on a new Method of Trial in any County of Exng-
fand, where 1t is laid. Now théy would give In
Evidence a Falt, which Mr, Serj. Chebire fays
is Evidence of the fame Kind of Treifon, tho’
in a lower Degree, and ought to be reccived to
* prove the Overt-Acts of confulting and confpir-
g to reftore, and bring the Prefender to the
Throne: As to the Evidence that hath been read
we could not have objettéd to the Papers, be-
caufe we did not know what they were, not
whether they related to a Foreign or Domeftick
Correfpondence.  Now becaife they are read as
being found on a Perfon to whom he gave themi ;
fball they, to fupport a Treafon, of compaffing
and 1magining the Death of the King; give Evi-
dence of correfponding with the Pretender.,

My Lord, 1don’t apprehend the King’s Coun-
{el have given us any manner of Aniwer, add
therefore fhall not take up any more of your

Lordthip’s Tume, by repeating in 4 Reply, what
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I offered befote by way of Objection: I fubmniit i
to your Lordthip. _ o

L. C. Fuit. Sure as this Evidence is offer®d it
Is very proper; confider, in the Indi@ment the
Overt-Aéts are, meeting, confulting, advifing,
and agreeing to raife a Rebellion, The next is,
publifhing a Traiterous Libel, in which Rewards
are promifed to thof: thet would aflift in this
Rebellion; a third Overt-Aét sy the engaging,
and lifting Men for the Scrvice of the Prefender s
a fourth is, a defigning to depofe the King; and
another is, to fet up the Pretender on the Thronei
Now, confider, if they have not given an Evi-
dence of thefe Overt-Acts; whether fufficient or
not; that muft be left to the Jury; if they have
owven Evidence of thefe Ads, a Defign 1o fet
up the Pretender, and to depole the King, &5e.
If they are not proper td fhew for this Purpofc
this Gentleman correfponded with Rome, was
with the Pretender, thefe Letters fent from Sir
Williain Ellis 1o him: Letters (accotding to his
Defire) purporting Receipts for Sums of Money
to be figned by the Prefender, as a Foundation to
oblige him to make Repayment: After this and
thefe Things have been offer’d, 1s it not proper to
g0 as far as they can on this Head, and fhew how
far he hath been engaged with the Preteider and
s Accomplices? Sure it 1s proper, as a further
Evidence of thefe Overt-Acts, ‘

Don’t trouble yourfelf as to that, no Ul
fhall be made of that, to charge you with the
Treafon made fo by another Act of Parliament;
about correfponding with the Pretender, for Evi-
dence it is proper here; and it neither can, nor
{hall be made Ufe of to any other Purpofe,

Mr. Reeve, Mr, Stanyan, pray go on and
give an Accourtt of what he confefs’d, when ex-
amined before the Lords of the Council about his
being at Rome.

Mr. Stamyan, Mr. Layer did acknowledge le
had been at Rome, and returned from thence ini
Fuly 1721, he faid he had had two Conferences
with the Preteader.

Mr, Ketelbey, 1 think Mr. Stamyan faid, li
had taken Minutes of his Examinations 1 had
rather fee the Minutes than trift to his Memory.
My Lord, in the Trial of the two Bailiffs in
this Court, the Subftance of what the Deceafed
faid was reduced into Writing; and thetcfore
the Parole-Evidence, that was offered to be given
was rejected, I fubmic it to your Lordlhig,
whether the Rule is not the fame in greater
Cafes, and much ftronger in this Point before
your Lordfhip. I Have not the lealt Difrefpeét
for Mr. Stanyan, and could take his Word fot aly
thing, but my Client’s Life; therefore, e hope
he {hall produce thofe Notes, which he liath re-
ferr’d to once of twice, now he is going to give a
turther Account of his Examination. |

Mr. Hungerford. My Lord, I was Counlel
in that Cafe; the Juftice of Peace who had taken
Mr. Lutterell’s Examination did not appear, and
that Examination codld hotbe had 5 thére was a
Copy of it taken and produced, and proved in
Court to be a true Copy, but your Lordfhip
would not let that Copy be read, or the fubject
Matter of it to be given in Evidence,.unlefs the
original Examinatior it felf were produlced.

L. C. Fufl. M. Attorsey,_you hear liow the
Matter is, Mr. Delafaye and Mr, Stanjan give
an Account that they were- comtanded by the
Tords of the Council t6 aitend and ke Mihi.it'csf |
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of Mr. Laye’s Examination before them; that
they have thofc Minutes, and have ‘look’d nto
thofe Minutes to refrefh their Memories: If tl}ey
defire they may be produced, do vou oppofe 1t?
Have you the Minutes here ?

Mr, Stanyen.  Yes, my Lord,

Mr. Serj. Peigelly.  There may be a great
many Things that are not material to the pre-
{ent Cafe of M. Layeirs why fhould they have all
thefe Minutes read ? It is not for the Sake of the
Prifoner at the Bar, but for the Sike of fome
other People, who may be liftening here,

In the Cafe of Luttercl, there was a compleat
Examination taken by a Juftice of the Peace:
In this Cafe there is no Examination compleated
and drawn up; it is nothing but an oral Confel-
fion, and amounts to no more. The Minutes
the Witnefles may take 1n their Flands, as proper
to refrefh their Memorics, '

My, At Gen. Thetr defiring to have thefe
Minutes read, i1s not {o much for the Sake of
their own Client as for the Sake of other
People.

Mr, Sery. Chifbire. How the Matter in that Cafe
WS

L. C. Juff. Tt 15 coough, I only afk’d Mr.
Atterney-Geneiel, whether he thought fit to con-
{ent to 1ty and without his Cenfent, we are of
Opinion, that they cannot be read,

I afk’d Mr. Artoracy the Quettion, and was not
aware of any 11l Confequence,

Mr, Aleriey fays, the Minutes refer to the
whole Examination, and to a great many other
People, and 1t would be for the Differvice of the
Kmg, to have thefe Things difclos’d.  Mr. /-
torncy  might have refuled to confent without
giving a Realon, but he hath given a good Rea-
fon, and therefore will not confent that they be
reacl,

M, Keteltey, We do not confent to wave them,
but infift upon their being read,

Mr, A, Gen, W don’t afk your Confent.

Mr. Ketelbey. If you don’t afk it, nor give it
weare o far even, but Laflure you, Sir, we are
retaned only for one Gentlemian 3 the Prifoner at
the Bar, and we have as little Reafon to be folli-
citous for the Innocence of others, as fome have
for their Guile ?

L. C. ¥t You cannot read the Minutes
taken againdt the King, becante thefe Matters
are ot ripe yet, not to be difcover’d to the
World.

Mr. Hungerford. Something drop*d, as if we
did infilt upon the Matter for the Sake of Others
they are miftaken, we contemn fuch an Infinvation.
Weare of Counfl for this Man, and for this
Man fingly.

L. C. Fuft. You are afligned Counfel for him,
and unlefs you had, I believe you would not
hive ventured to have faid fo much.

Mr. Hungerford,  No indeed.

L.C. ¥, Go on.

Mr. Serj. Lengelly. Mr. Staivan, pleafe to re-
collect, whether when Mr. Layer was examined
before the Lords of the Council, (it is to confirm
the Lvidence of Mr. Lyuch) any thing pafs’d a-
bout the Declaration, |

L.C, Jut. But before you was intending to
alk him about his going to Rome, and having
Conference with the Pretender.

My, Setj, Pengelly, My Lord, that he hath
fud already, therefore T afk you what was fid
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by Mr. Layer, relating to the Declaration ?

Mr. Stanyan, The Lords afk’d Mr. Layey,
if he had feen any Declaration 3 he faid no, he
had only the Heads of one which he drew him-
felt : The Lotds ask’d him where that Declara-
tion was, he faid, he believ’d one /77/fox had it.

Mr. Ser). Peugelly, Was any Queftions afked re-
lating to the Perlons thar had feen it ?

Mr. Stenyan. Yes, he faid the only Perfons
that had feen it was, that JFilfon, one [¥7lian
Yeffiics, ¢ Nowjnring Peifen, and one Lyuch,

Mr. Serj. Peagelly. Where did he mention to
have fhew’d 1t to Lyuch ¢

Mr. Sienyain. On his Way to my Lord News
and Grey’s, at the Green Mai at Eppiig,

Mr. Sery. Pengelly, Was there any thing more
fud by Layer, relating to that Journey to £pping,
and what ¢

My. Stayan. He faid that he went to my Lord
Nerth and Gigy’s, and dined at the Greci-Man as
he went, then he carried Mr, Lyvich to my Lord
Neith and Giy’s, and recommended him to my
Lord Asith and Grey, as a proper Perfon to be
employed. I think it was employed in an Infur-
re¢tion, or in any thing clie, that his Lordfhip
fhould command him,

Mr. Aeteloey, It he 1s not certain, 1 defire he
may produce his Minutes, as he gives his Evis
dence ©iv wece, to refrefh his Memory,

Mr. ztt, Gen. We fubmic to it.

L.C. Fust. It 1salways o,

Mr, Staiyenr.  He recommended him, as a
proper Perfon to be employed in an Infurrection,
and that Lyaeh having wold Lover bofore that he
would feize the Earl of Cadegan, that Layer did
mention him to my Lord Nebh and Groy, as a
proper Perfon for fuch an Arwtempr,

Mr. Ketefbey, The firft tme you faid, in an
Infarrection, as you remembred or thought 3 how
come you now to be more certnin on the fecond
Repetition of your Isvidence than at the firfl 2
On the firft Account you gave you fay, it was
employed in an Infurrection, as you thought
now upon the fecond Repetition you give a po-
fiive Evidence, that this was confult by Mr.
L:"*:'_}'L‘}'.

Mr. Staiyan. 1 have recollefted the Words,
and Mr. Layer ufed thefe Words,

Mr. Keselbey. From whence is it that you are
now fo pofitive, and were not o at firft ?

Mr. Stamyan. 1did fay the Words at firft.

Mr. Keteloey. But you faid it with an Allevi-
ation 5 I defire to know, if you are pofitive thofe
were the Words,

Mr. Slaiyan. 1 am very pofitive.

Mr. hetelby, And yet you were not pofitive
before,

M. Steiyan, T did not fay T was nor pofi-
e,

Mr. Hungerferd, 1id you give your Evidence,
that you was certain he fiid that he had recom-
mended Lynch, as a proper Perfon to be con-
cerned in an Infurredtion in General, or only as 2
proper Perfon to feize my Lord Cadogan, or both?
how did he exprefs himfelf 2

Mr. Staiyan. T will tell you how the Words
were : Lyuch having told him he would feize my
Lord Codsgan, Layer recommends Lynch to my
Lord North and Grey as a proper Perfon for fuch
an Attempt,

Mr. Hungerford, Then the Infurre@ion was

outof the Cale ; he was only recommended to
my
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my Lord North and Greyy as 2 proper Perfon to
frize my Lord Cadogat. |

Mr. Ketelbey. 1think you have repeated it three

times, and different at each time ; now pleafe to
re&ify your Memory, and let us have 1t fo as it

may be underftood.

[ muft defireit in this Cafe, my Client 15 upon
his Life, and he fhould have right, Iam fure he
will have it from the Courtand the Jury.

We defire to know whether you give fuch an
Fvidence of this Part of his Confeflion, with re-
fpect to his rccommending Mr. Lynch to my Lord
North and Girey, as youwill ftand by 2

Mr. Hungerford. Mr. Stanyan, pray give an
Account once for all how that Matter was.

Mr. Stanyan. I can give no other Account.

Mr. Ketelbey, He hath vary’d every Time ;
I appeal to Mr. Aitoruey, I appeal to your Lord-
fhip. o

L. C. Fuff. Wheremn is the Varttion ?

Mr. Ketelbey, Firlt he acquaints you, that he con-
feffed, that he recommended Lynch to my Lord
North and Giey, as afit Perfon to be empleyed, he
thinks, or believes; itwas in an Infurreétion 5 and
then he fays, he 1s politive that he reccommended
him to my Lord North and Giey, as one that was
fit to be employed in an Infurreétion, and at laft he
fays he was recommended by Mr. Layer to my
Lord Neth and Giey, as the it Perfon to feize
my Lord Cadgzan. 1 appeal to your Lord-
{hip’s Memory, and his own QOath, whether
this was not {o, and yet he is pofitive of ir, he
is lure of 1t

L. C. Fusi., Is there any Difference in all
this 2

Mr. Retelbey.  As much as between being cer-
tain, and being uncertain,

L. C. Fuff. Jor what? You talk of the Varia-
tion between an Infurrection and feizing my Lord
Cadogan.  The Infurredtion was partly to be
made on the feizing my Lord Cadogan, at the
fame Time, as to facilirate the Infurreftion s both
were to go together 5 if he was a proper Perfon
to feize my Lord Cadsgan, he wasa proper Derfon
to bzemployed 1n an Infurrecion.

Mr. Ketelbey. He is charging the Prifoner with
his Confcflion, and theretore I fay, he hath men-
tioned 1t with two or three Variations s Firlt, that
he was fit to be employed in an Infurre@ion, and
he explains thatby leizing my Lord Cadagan.

L. C. Jul. Thatis Part of the Infurre@ion.

Mr. Retelocy. Surcly, my Lord, this ferves to
make our Objection fo much the {lronger againit
aliowing parol Lvidence of a Confeflion, which
vas put m Writing,

Mr. .4t Gein. Tcan’t imagine what they mean
here s a Gentleman, that gives an Account, that
the Prifoner confeffed that he recommended Lyich
0 my Lord Neith and Giey, as a proper Perfon
0 be employed in the Infurre@ion, and to feize
my Lord Cedsgen 3 where is the Variation in
this ?

Mr. §oll. Gen. Mr, Staiyan, you was giving an
Account of Mr. Layei”s recommending Lyirch to
my LL:}rd Novth and Giey; did Mr. Layerr declare
any thing further relating to that Matter 2

Mr. Stanyan. He faid my Lord North and Giey
rccewcrlcl him Civilly 5 he fupp’d there and [ay there
that Night, and they din’d there the next Day.

M. Soll. Gen. Did he give any Account of what
pafied at Dinner ?
Mr. Stanyan.

V o [ don’t know whether It Was
oL, VL
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jult at Dinner, or afterwards: But he fiid that
feveral Healths were drunk, which were begun by
my Lord North and Grey 3 and afeer Dinner there
came ina Man they called a Citizen, the drank
the Pretender’s Health, his Wife and the young:
Prince.

Mr. §ol. Ger.  Did the Prifoner fay any thing
about the Chriftning of his Child ?

Mr. Stanyan. ‘That was when he confefivd be-
fore the Lords, that he was at Reme, in the Con-
ference he had with the Pretender, he took Oc-
calion to fpeak of the Difcontents of the Nation,
which had been occafioned by the Lofles fuflain-
cd inthe Sonth-Sea. The Pretender afked him
it he knew any Perfons of Diftintion in that
Cafe ? He faid, that he knew a great many, that
were well-aftected to his Intereft s that he was not
acquainted with People of Quality : But that he
knew feveral of good Lftates, that were very
well affetted to his Intereft.  Upon this the Pre-
tender afked him feveral Queflions, fays he, it
mulft be very expenfive to you to come hither to
Rome, 1t muft coft you 500/ No, faith he, not
above half o much. Then the Pretender praifed his
Zeal, and commended him 3 afeer thar Mr, Lever
atked the Pretender to give him fome Tokens ot
Credentials, that he might have fomething from
his Muaefly ; that would be a Means of his
gaining Credic among his Friends here.  He fays
the Pretender ferupled that: Then Mr. Layer
propoled afterwards that the Pretender’s Wila
thould fland as Godmother  his Daughter, to
Mr, Layer’s Daughter 5 that afterwards Col, Hay,
to whom he was introduced at the Pretender’s
Court, brought him Word, that the Pretenders
Wife would ftand as Godmother to his Child
But then the Queltton was, who fhould repre-
fent her? And after fome time it was propofed
to Mr. Layer to find out a fit Perfon 1o repre-
lent her,  Mr. Layer propofed the Duichels of
Orinond, which was agreed toy after that the
Pretender agreed to ftand Godfacher with his Wife,
and then the Point was, who fliould reprefent
him ? And Col. Hay told him that he mull take
care of that, to find a proper Perfon to reprefent
his Majetty.

Mr. Soll, Gen. What Account did he give of
what was donc in Purfuance of this, when he came
into Lngland ? _

Mr. Stamyan.  When he came into England,
he faid, he applied himifelf to onc Mr. Thompfon,
to fpeak to my Lord Oriery to ftand to repre-
fent the Pretender, with the Dutchefs of Ormond :
But he faid my Lord Oireiy declined it and
afterwards he got my Lord North and Grey to
ftand.  That Mr, Thompfor did Chritten his Child,
my Lord Nowth and Grey and the Dutchefs of Or-
mond ftanding as Proxies for the Pretender and his
Wite s my Lord Narth and Grey did ftand to re-
prefent the Pretender, and the Dutchefs of Ormond
to reprefent the Pretender’s Wife, knowing they
did fo.

And he was afled by the Lords, wlio were in
Company at the Chriltning 2 e faid, only the
Dutchefs of Orimond, my Lord Nerth and Grey,
Mr. Zhompfon the Minifter, himfelf, and his
Wile, and another Woman, at whofe Houfe the
Chriftning was performed : But he faid, fhe was
not prefent in the Room, tho' fhe affifted at the
Chriftning.

Mr. /7¢2. Did he mention any Time when this
Chriftoing was ?

Pp Mr, Stanyan,
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Mr., Stansan. About the Spring @ I can’t fay
that Queftion was afked him by the Tords, and
[ can’t afcertain the Time.

Mr. 7/ef. Did he fay any thing relating to my
Tord North and Grey 2

Mir. Stanyer. Hle told them of my Lord Nerzh
and Greys being at the Head of thefe De-
figns. , * _

Prifoncr. What doth he concern himlelf with
the Lord Noithand Giey for ?

My, W:ff. Pray Sir be quiet.

Mr. Stanyan. e faid he told my Lord Noith
and Grey that he had acquainted Lyich with his
Lordfhip’s being at the Fead of this Defign,
therefore Mr., Zyuch had exprefled a great De-
fire to wait upon his Lordfhip. |

Mr, Ait. Gen. Mr. Delafaye, pray give an Ac-
count what Mr. Layer faid, when he was examin-
ed before the Lords of the Council, relating to his
being at Roine,

Mr. Delafaye. Mr. Layer declared to the Lords
of the Council that he had been at Reine, that
he bad had two Conferences with the Pretender,
that he had acquainted the Pretender with the
Dififection of the MNation, with refpeét to the
Loffts that had been fuftained by the Sowrb-See.
He faid, in general, the Nation was well-aftected,
and  that he knew Perfons of State, not Qua-
lity, that were in his Interelt ; Then he propoled
to have Credentialsor Tokens of the Pretender’s
Reewd to him, which was not granted him :
Then he defired, she Pretender’s Spoufe fhould
ftand Godmother to his Child 3 the Pretender
faid he would confider of it Col. Hay after-
wards brought him Word, that fhe confented
then there were fome Conferences who fhould re-
prefent her,

Mr, At Gzn Give the fame Account that he
gave before the [Lords of the Council.

Mr. Delofaye.  Col. Ifoy brought Word to
Mr.  Layer, that the  Pretender’s Spoufe con-
Lented to ftand Godmother to his Child ; and it
wasagreed the Dutchels of Opmid fhould repre-
fent her 3 he defired a Credential or Token to
the Dutcheis of Ormsnd. Iy told him, with-
out that fhe would fland, only, faith he, Carry
2 Meflage, that the Duke is well, and gone to
Meadrid, that he would doit; and Layer defired
to know wiio fhould fland as Godfather, why the
King himfelf, that is, the Pretender 5 and Layer
defired to ]{HOW who Wils o l'fpl'ifl;..‘lltl‘lil]] } he de-
lired to be excufed, but Layer would find out one
upon his Returiy into England, that was propes for
tht Pur_pol_:: s when hie came into Laglaind, he was
ata Lols fora Perlon to reprefent the Pretender s
he went to Mr, Thompfen to advile with him
11_b011t.if-; who went to my Lord Orrery, to de-
fire him to ftand as Proxy for the Pretender, my
ILrt}l'd Ojreiy flcchncd it, then hc_ went tomy Lord
B:. sith and Giev, who accepred it 5 the Child was
chrittned 5 1t was ac Coelfea, 1take ity at a Houfe,
where there was a China Shop, It was in the
Spring, what Day I can’t tell. That he fiid
there was his Wite, my Lord North and Gry,
who flood for the Pretender, and Dutchefs of
Ormond, who ftood for the Pretender’s Wife, the
\}foman of the E{OL!!?, but fhe was not within the
Room at the Chriftning,

Mr. Att. Gen. Do you remember any thing

fud by Layer abour any Declaration, tnat was
drawn ?

Mr. Delefage, Mr, Lays owned that he had
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drawn Heads of a Declavation; and that, whep
he was going to my Lord Narth and Grey’s, he
did fhew it to Mr. Lyuch at the Green Man, g
he was on his Way thither.

Mr. Sery. Pengelly, What faid he of his recom-
mending Mr, Lyach in his Examination ?

Mr. Delafaye. He {poke of his recommend-
ing Lynch twice 5 that Mr. Lyneh having told him
he would feize my Lord Cadogan, he did recom-
mend hm to my Lord North and Grey, as 3
proper Perfon for that Attempt. The fecond
time that he recommended him, he had propofed
curying Lyinch to my Lord Nerth and Gres,
he having told hun that he was a very honeft
Man, fit to be concerned tn an Infurretion 5 that
Layer having told Finch his Lordfhip was to be
at the Head of the Defign, Lynch was impatient
to wait upon him.

Mr. A, Gen. We {hall now prove there were
Arms at the Prifoner’s Houfe when he was feiz’d,
Mr. Stanyan, were you at Mr. Layer’s Houl,
when he was feized ?

Mr, Staiyan,  Yes,

Mr. Ait, Gen, Do you know of any Arms
there ?

Mr. Staivan.  Yes.

Mr., Ait, Gen. Give my Lord and the Jury an
Account what Arms ?

Mr. Stanyan.  Jult after Mr. Layer was {eized
I came in, he was jult got out of his Bed, 1 ob-
ferved n the Room, where he lay, there were o
Pair of Piftols hung by his Bed-fide, and be-
tween them a Horfe-man’s Swerd, a riding Sword,
anda pretty large Sword ; on th’ other Side of the
Bed next the Chimney a licle Cafe of Piftols,
and another Sword bung in another Part ol the
Room. In the Cloler of the fame Room we
look’d, and I faw two Carbines or Guns, and
two Mulquetoons or  Blunderbufles 5 feeing fo
many Arms, I went to handle fome of them,
upon which he faid, have a Care, they are load-
cd, don’t meddle with thems upon that I afked
him what he had to dowith fo many Arms? He
anfwered, you muft know my Clerk and I are
great Shooters, when we are mn the Country,  In
another Room, looking further, we obferved fe-
veral Moulds for the making of Bullets, There
was alfo a Careridge-box, and a Number of Car-
tridges ready madeup, as near asIcan guefs (Idid
not count them) there were about forty or fifty of
them, There was a Gentleman of the Army, and
he faid they were fuch Cartridges as were ufed in
the Army.

Mr, A, Gen, Was there any thing relating to
thefe Arms confeffed by Mr. Layer before the Lords
of the Council ?

Mr., Stanyai, He did not deny it I believe.

Mr. A2, Gen. 1 would afk you whether there
was any thing {aid before the Lords relating to
thefe Arms ?

Mr. Stangan,  The Lords did afk Mi. Layer,
what he did with forty or fifty Cartridges ready
made up? He faid they were made up by Bowers
the Gunimith, and that, if there was any Diftur-
bance in the Nation, he fhould have Occafion for
them,

M, A2, Gen. Mr. Delafaye, was you by, when
he was afked the Queftion about thefe Arms ?

Mr. Delafaye,  Yes 3 he was afked what he did
with fo many Cartridges and Arms, and he fad
they were proper for his Ufe, if there fhould be
any Difturbance in the Nation, Co

ol.
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Col. Hufke {worn,

Mr. Ait. Gen. Was you by, when thefe Arms
were feized in Mr. Layer’s Houfe?

Col. Hufte. Yesi there were two Cafes of
Piltols, two Fuzees, and fome other Arms, and
q Blunderbufs, and two or three Swords ; there
were about 20 Cartridges ready made up in the
ufual Maoner, as they are made up, when our
Soldiers are to charge their Pieces for Expedition

in Cafe of Action.
Mr. Ait. Gen. How many were there ¢

Col. Hufke. About forty.
Mt:‘. fﬂf Gen. Did you fee any Moulds for

Bullets ?
Col. Hufke. There was a Mould for Mufket-

balls.

Prifoner. You fay I had two Fuzees, will a
Mufket-ball go into a Fuzee ¢

Col. Hufke. I can’t tell but 1t may., |

Prifmer.  There were 40 Cartridges, which
were ready made up, will thofe Cartridges go in-
to a Fuzee ?

Col. Hufke. Thefe very Cartridges were only
fit for the Army.

Mr. Ketelbey. Thefe Cartridges were not fit for
the Mufket ¢

Col. Hufke. T did not try them.

Mr. Ketelbey. Would they go into & Fuzee ?

Col. Hufke. I don’t know.

Mr. Ketelbey. According to my Notions, there
is a Diffcrence in Bignefs betweeen a Fuzee and a
Mufket, and a Cartridge fic for a Mufket will not
co 1nto a [uzee,

Col. Huske. A Cartridge, that is fit for a Fuzee,
will go into a Mufket.

Mr. Ketelbey, T believe that, and fo 1t will into
a Cannon s therefore I afk whether a Cartridge,
that is fitted to a Mufket, and proper for the Ufe
of a Soldier going to Battle, whether that Car-
tridge will fit a Fuzee ?

Col. Hufke. The Bore of a Fuzee may be made
as large as that of a Mufker,

L. C. Fuff. Thole Cartridges, that were there,
would they have ferved for the Fuzee ?

Col. Hufte. 1 am fatishied that they would
ferve for the Fuzee, and the fmalleft Arms there,
except the Piftols,

Mr. Ketelbey, You fay there were two Swords ?

Col. Hufke. Yes, I faw two Swords.

Mr. Ketelbey, 1 believe yon never are without
two Swaords.

Col. Hufke. 1believe T have a dozen, but they
belong to my Company.,

Priforer. Were they Horfe Swords, or Swords
fit to walk with ?

Col. Hufke. 1 can’t tell that.

Mr. Hungerford, 1 think you fay, that thofe
Bullets, made into Cartridges were, by the Size
of them, intended for the fimall Arms.

Col. Hufke. 1 do believe they would fit the two
Fuzees that I faw,

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you open any of the Car-
tridges ?

Col. Huske, 1did, and there was 2 Ball made
up ar the End of each Cartridge.

Mr. Swmeybert fworn,

Mr. 8o/, Gen. Do you know the Prifoner at
the Bar?

Mr. Smeylers, Yes, T do.

M. Soll. Gen. Recolle@ whether you have {feen
him at Rome ?

Mr. Smeybert, Yes, 1 have.
You, V1L

for High-Trealon,

291

Mz, Soll, Gen, When ¢

Mr. Smeybert. About 2 Year and half ago. -

Mr. Soll, Gen, For how long Time was he
there ? .

Mr. Simeybert, 1 think about a Week or 3 Fort-
night.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Did you ot the Prifoner Jeave
Rome firft?

Mr. Smeybert. 1 left Rome firft.

Mrs, Hay {worn.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Did you ¢ver fee the Pri-
foner ?

Mrs. Hay. Yes.

Mr. Ser). Chefbive, Where did you fee him ?

Mrs. Hay. 1 faw him at Rome.

Mr. Serj. Chefbive. When ¢

Mrs, Hagy. Laft Summer was Twelve-month.

Mr. Ser. Chefbiire. What Time of the Year was
It, as near as you can remember ?

Mrs. Hay. I can’t tell exaltly what Time, but
it was laft Summer was Twelve-month.

Mr. Ser). Chefbire. You are fure you faw him
there ?

Mrs. Hay, Yes,

Mr. dit. Gen. My Lord, we fhall now prove
the Prifoner’s Efcape out of the Meffenger’s Cuf-
tody as was open’d before.  Call Mr. Sguire.

Mr. Sguire {fworn.

Mr. Att, Gen. Look upon the Prifoner at the
Bir, do yau know him?

Mr. Sguire. Yes, I do know him?

Mr, A1, Gen. Do you know any thing of his be-
Ing takenup ¢ Give an Account when it was that
he was taken,

Mr. Sgiire. He was taken the Eighteenth Day
of September 1aft,

Mr. A1t Gen, Whofe Cuftody was he in after
he was taken ¢

Mr. Squire. He was in my Cuftody.

Mr. Ait. Gen, What became of him afterwards?
Did he continue in your Cuftody ?

Mr. Squire. No, he made his Efcape.

Mr. dtt. Gen. How long after he had been
taken was it that he made his Efcape ?

Mr. Squire. It was the next Day he got out of
the Window.

Mr. At Gen, How high was the Room he got
out of? .

Mr. Squrre. It was two Story high, he lifted up
the Salh and fo got out of the Window.

Mr. Ait, Gen. Did you purfue him ?

Mr, Squire. Yes.

Mr. ditt, Gen. What Account can you give of
his being taken again ?

Mr. Squire. He had not been gone long before
I found he had made his Efcape, and underftand-
ing which 'Way he went, I immediately purfued
him, and I'took him in a Lane going towards St.
Gesrge’s Fields.

Mr. Att, Gen. What did he fay ?

Mr. Squire. He faid he was very forry to fee me;
I afk’d him how he could offer to go away from
me; and he faid, every body elfe would have dope
the fame in his Condition, and that nobedy could
blame him for it ; and that he believed my Lord
Carteret would not blame him, .»

Mr, Att. Gen. But why ?

Mr. §guire. Becaufe he look’d upon himfelf in
fuch a bad Condition, and fo much Danger, he
fard, nobody could blame him becaufe he was in
that Condition.

Ppa Prifoner.
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Prifoner. What Condition ? T defire to afk you
one Queftion 3 Did not L afk you to fhew me your
Warrant ¢
" Mr. Squire. No, you never afk’d me.

Prifmwer. Did not T afk you at my own
Houft ¢

Mr. Squire. No, you did not.

Prifoner. Did you fhew me your Warrant ¢

Mr. Squire,  You did not afk me for it.

Prifoner.  Did not T tell you the Reafon that |
efcaped was, becaufe I did not know what Autho-
rity you had to detain me ?

Mr. Sgure. No, you did not.

' Fames Peterfon fworn,

Mr: At Gen, Mr. Peterfon, do you know any
thing of the Prifonet’s Elcape ?

Peterfon.  Mr. Layer was in Cuftody at my
Father’s Houfe, in Mr. Squire’s Houfe, m a Room
up two Pair of Swirs backwards. | |

Mr. At Gen. Do you know any thing of his
oetting away °

Peteifon.  No, 1 was nblload then.

Fonir Swecte tworn.,

Mr. At. Gen. Look upon the Prifoner at the
Bar ; do you remember you cver faw him be-
fore ?

Scocete.  Yes, [ faw him jufl going into St

George’s Fields. *

Mr. Ait. Gen. Did any body take him there ?

Szweete. 1 was the firft that took him,

Mr. A, Genr. What did he fay to you when
you teok him ?

Sweete, He faid, for God’s Sake let me go ;
and faid *twas an Arreft: Why then, and pleale
you, my Lord, my Partner came up, and afl’d
him whether 1t was an Arreft, and he jud it was;
and then looking about me, I faw another Per-
fon coming after us, who was the Meflenger < It
feems he had broke out of the Melienger's Houf.
And then he clapt his Hand into his Pocket, and
pull’d out I belicve about forty Guincas, and faid,
we Thould take what we would if we would let him
oo, but we would rot,

Authony Stepbens {worn.

Mr. A, Gen, What did Layer fay when he
was firlt taken ?

Stepbens.  We asked him, is it for an Arrefl?
Yes, fays he, 1t 1s an Arreft s and when he faw
Mr. Squire’s Son coming after us, he would give
us whatever we pleafed to let him go s and more
than that, he faid they had no Warrant, and® he
did not know that they could keep him without a
‘Warrant,

Mr. Sery. Pengelly. My Lord, we have gone
through our Evidence, and fhall reft it here.

Mr. Hungerferd, May i1t pleale your Lord-
.fhip, and you Gentlemen of the Jury, 1 am of
.Counfel {for the Prifoner at the Bar; and after
fo long an Lvidence as hath been given tn this
Caufe, 1t will beft become me to draw the Matter
in debate to a fingle Point, if I can, and thercby
to give Eafe to your Lordihip, the Jury, and the
.Counfel on both fides. My Lord, the Prifoncr
is indicted upon the Statute of the 25th of Ed-
~ward the Third, commonly called the Statute Dy
Proditionit’, the Things made, or rather, de-
clared Treafon by that Act, are, Firft, The
compafling or-1magining the Death of the King,

) a Cete's Inflit. Ch, ;. P.
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or of the Prince of WWales, 'I'hen the Stame
goes on to declare other Things T'reafon which
telate only to the Perfons of fome of the Royal
Family ; and then it declares likewife, That’ i
1s Treafon to levy War aguinft the King, ¢,
It 15 not faid, That to Defign or Contrive to
levy War, but actually to levy War only fhall
be ‘T'reafon.

This 1s the Text, tius the Law upon which
the Gentleman at the Bar maft be cither faved
or condemned.  The Treafon lud to his Charge
s compafling and Imagining the Death of the
King : The Overt-Adls Iud to his Charee are,
‘I'hat he did confult and confpire to levy War,

That he. did publifh a cerrain Treatonable 1.
bel, purporting among other Things, a Promife
of Reward to his Muyelty’s faithful Subjedts, to
rife in Arms and levy War againit the King,

That he confulied to put the Prerender upon
the Throne,

That he hited Soldiers for him.,

And the laft Overt-Act 15, That he confultzd
to feize and imprifon the King.

My Lord, and you Gentlemen of the Jury,
there 15 no Evidence of any of thefe Overe-Act
attemipted 10 be given in Lvidence againlt him
in Effex, fave only that of Publifbing @ T'reafon-
able Libel, which the King’s Countel, in their
Lovidence, would infinuate to be the Pretenders
Declaration.  The Lvidence of the other Overt-
As are attempted to be proved in Aliddlefex,
And in truth, the creawelt Part of the whole
Tranfaction was by the King’s own Evidence,
proved to be in that County, and I wonder the
Indictment was not Iad there 5 but, Gentlenen,
the IndiCtment being lud in Efex, if an A% of
High Treafen is not proved to have been com-
mitted by the Prifoner in that County, he muaft
be acquitted.

I might here, my Lord, nfifly that an 2@ual
levying of War and not delign to levy a War,
bang made T'reafon by the Statte of Trealons,
the publifhing a Paper which porports at the ut-
molt but an Intention only to levy War or raife
a Rebellion 1s not Trealon, and confequenty not
a legal Overt-Alt within that Statute,  This
Opinion 1s warranted by the exprefs Words of
the A& of Parliament tlelf, which 1s a better
Authority than all the Commentators upon it
and it is likewife the Opinion of * my Lord Chict
Juftice Coke, and my Lord Chief Jultice Hales
and in Trach, if this be not the true meaning of
the Act, one Paragraph, <=, That which de-
clares actual levying of War Treafon is fuper-
fluous and redundant 3 for what is the Ule of
making actual levying of War, or a Rebellion a
diftinct Species of 1'realon, when the Intention of
dotng 1t, according to fome modern Doétrines,
was High Treafon within the firfl Claufe of the
Alt, wiz, Imagining the Death of the King.
This Opinion likewife feems to be confirmed by
two Alls of Parliament, one in ® Queen Eliza-
beth’s ‘Time, and one in King Char/es the Second’s,
where confulting or intending to levy a War or
ralle a Rebellion, is made High Treafon during
the Lives of them two refpetive Princes, for
which Temporary Provifion there would be no
Reafon if the Law were fo before. I know what

9, and 10, Hales Pleas of the Crown, p, i3,

hath
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hath been faid to fome Part of this Matter, that
the levying of War meantin the Statute of 25 of
Edward the Third, was not meant of fuch a
Rebellion as was levell’d again{t the King’s Per-
fon, Crown, Title, or Government; but of fuch
public Commotions as difturbed the Peace of
the Kingdom, as the pulling down of Inclofures,
which was the Cafe in Queen Elizabetl’s Time,
or of pulling down Bawdy-Houfes, which was
the Cafe in Charles the Second’s T ime : But to
thew how unnatural a Conftruction of the Words
Tever le Guerre, it is to fay, that 1t relates only
+o fuch riotous Commotions as I have mention’d.
Give me leave, my Lord, to make but one Ob-
fervation. The Statute of Treafons is penned i
the French of that Age, and the Words of the
Sratute Lever le Guerre agunit the King, I have
here within the Reach, in Court, a Book of very

eat Note and good Authority, it is the Hiftory

of Froiffart, who writes the Hiftory of Eugland, -

France, and Spain, from the Year 1326, to the
Year 1340, and dedicates his Book to that very
King, viz. Edward the Third, in whole Reign
the Statute of Treafons was made, and in this
whole Book, Lewver e Guere, is conftantly men-
tioned to denote a public ftated War; and m
this Senfe, it is likewife taken by Dy Lrefue
his Gloffary, Vol. II. pag. 255. ———1 only hine
this Matter to your Lordfhip, for T well know
what Determinations, my Lords, the Judges have
of late Years given upon this Qbjection; bur [
humbly hope that there will be no Occafion for
an intire Dependence upon this Objection, - this
Cafe, for that I hope it will appear both to your
Lordfhip, and the Jury, that no fuch Overt-Adt,
as 15 faid in the Indiétment, that is, publithing
the Pretender’s Declaration at the Green Mai, is
at all proved., r
The Evidence given touching that Matter is
only by Mr. Lynch, and he gives an Account
that the Prifoner and he met at Aldgate, in order
to go to the Houfe of my Lord Nerth and Grey
at or near Epping : In the Courle of their Journey
thither finding themfelves too late to be at my
Lord Nerth’s by Dinner 5 they called in at the
Green Man, and there got a Beef-Stake : And
before 1t was brought up the Prifoner gave Mr.
Lyich a Paper, which Mr. Lyiach, and not the
Prifoner, calls the Pretender’s Declaration 3 Mr.
Lynch reads only one Paragraph in it, whercby,
as he fays, the Soldier’s were tempted to be al-
lured from his Magefty’s Scrvice ; this is the
whole Evidence given touching any Offence com-
mitted in the County of Effw : For as to any
trealonable Difcourfe between Aldgate, and the
Greein Mauy they cannot in Juftice, and without
a particular Proof to that Purpofe, be charged
upon the Prifoner to be done \n Effex, a areat Pare
of the Way, vz, from 4ldgate 1o Bow-Bridge, be-
g in Middlefex, and not in the-County of £ffex.
w the firlt Place therefore, Gentlemen of the
Jury, we hope there is no Evidence to convince
you that any fuch Declaration was publifhed at
il 5 and yer, Secondly, If there was a Paper read
there, the Paper read was notan A& of High
Lrealon.  The Time that the Prifoner and Mr.
Lynch faid at the Green Man, fems to ba very
fhort, their Stay was fo thort that there was no Evi-
dence that their Horfes were put up : The Beef-
Stake was befpoke before they went into a Room.
Mr. Lyuch came down twice out of the Room ;
he himfclf admits once, befides his gaping at
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fome Perfons in the Yard whom he knetw; -before -
the Beef-Stake was brought up; and yet, before
the Beef-Stake was brought up,”this Declara- .
tion 1s pretended to be publifhed: For my part,
conflidering how little Time there was for fuch a
Tranfaction as this s, I cannot think, there
could be any fuch Thing as that tranfafted at
that Time, the Compafs of Time would hardlv
allow 1t 3 whatever was done, 15 admitted on all
Hands, to be done before the Beef-Stake was
brought up, and the other Incidents may very
well be fuppofed to take up all the Time betwixe
the befpeaking and difhing up the Beef-Stake,
fo there could be no Time lor o folemn an Adt
as publifhing a Declaration to overturn Three
Kingdoms. But in the fecond Place, it the Pri-
foner, which I don’t admir, did give Mr. Lyich
any Paper to read, a Paragraph whercol was to
the Purpofe Mr. Linch relates 5 yer fuch Paper
cannot be imputed o the Prifoner as an A& of
Eligh Trealon, there was but a few Lines of the
Paper read, and the redt were not read ac all,
cither by Mr, Lyich, or the Pniloner ; and I
never knew that Part of a Deed or Writing was
ever allowed to be given in Lvidence, without
producing or reading the whole,  In the Cafe of
my Lord Reffe/, where the Declaration for
Rebellion was affigned asan Act of High-Trea-
fon, the whole Declaration was proved to be
read, and not a Part only; and yet even that
Lvidence was upon the Revolution in the firft
Year of King 7Villiam and Quecn Mery, look’d
upon fo imperfect an Lvidence of High Treafon,
that for that, and other Reafons, my Lord Ruf-
JePs Attainder was reversd 5 we have a Copy of
the Act of Parliament for the Reverfal here at-
tefted, and we are ready to produce it if your
Lordfhip thinks fic, — Can 1t be faid that the
Prifoner giving Mr, Lynch a Paper, of which he
reads only a few Lines, and then the Prifoner
takes it up again, is a2 publifhing of a Trealon-
able Paper, or in Truth, a publifhing of any
Paper at all? Declarations for Rebellions are
commonly publifhed in public Places, to capti-
vate Muldtudes, and not handed from one Man
to another when they are expecting a Beet-Stke 3
there was no appointed or folemn Mecting at
the Green Mair 3 no Concourle of People there,
neither in truth, by Mr. Lyneh’s own Lvidence
can 1t be taken to be a real Declaration 5 for he
fays, as I remember, in that Paper it was men-
tioned that the Lord Cadezan was m Cuftody 4
that Fact is utterly fulfe, his Lordfhip neither was,
nor is fo.

I mult fubmit to the Confideration of my
Lords the Judges, and the Jury, of how dan-
gerous a Confequence, Conftructions of this Na-
ture may prove to bz, Before the Statute of
Treafons, the People of England labourd under
valt Mifchiefs by the great Incertainty there was
of what was High Treafon, and what was not ;
the Parliament thereupon, to eafe the People of
that Perplexity, in the 2 5th of Edward the Third,
pafled the Law of Treafons, for which the
People then paid a great Sum of Money ; and
for which that Parlament was called Blefled
(Parliamentnn beatum) and now 1if every A& a
Man doth, though perhaps tending w0 Sedition,
fhall be interpreted to be an Overt-A¢t of High
Trealon, the Subje¢t will labour under the fame
Inconvenience, and under the fame Perplexities,
as they were before the Statutes of Treafons ;
this
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this Practice may bz fo far improved, that if a
Man delivers a Seditious Ballad to another to be
read, that fhall be interpreted an Overt-Act of
High Treafon, mu‘ch more 1f Pcople in iclr
Cups fhould drink fuch Healths, as were faid to
be drunk at my Lord North and Grey’s” Houle ;
for no Man can deny but that Bibere ¢ff agere,
whatever Seribere 1s : ‘This, my Lord, is all that
accurs to me at prefent concerning the Charge of
High Treafon upon the Prifoner within the Coun-
ty of Effex 5 and if there be no Charge made out
agunft him there, the Evidence given againft him,
of what he did or faid elfewhere muft go for no-
thing, '

Mr, Ketelbey. May it pleale your Lordlhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, I likewiie ap.
pear here as Counfel for the Pr.ifoner,‘ who ha-
ving pladed Not Guilty to this Indi€tment, I
muft fuppofe him fo ’ull he be found otherwife;
and ’tis my Duty {being affigned for him by the
Court) to lay the Circumitances of his Cafe be-
fore you inas true and clear a Light as I can, and
to offer to your Confideration what may occur
proper for his Dafence, and legally conduce to the
clearing his Innocence.

The Charge laid to him is of the higheft Na-
rare that the Laws of Eusland know ; Crimex
lefe Majefiatis 5 no lefs than the confpiring and
compafling the Doath of the King; and as it s
an Offence, not capable of any Ageravation, not
to be alleviated by any thing that we can offer, we
humbly hope your Lordfhip, and the Gentlemen
of the Jury, will expedt the ftrongelt Evidence
the Nature of the Cafe admits, fuch as the Law
requircs, and is in fome Mealure proportionable
to the Greatnefs of the Offence,

The Al of Parhament upon which the Pri-
foner ftands incifted, is the 25th of Edward 111,
It is there faid, to make him attainted there muft
be an Overt-Act, and that Overt-Aé&t muft be
fully and clearly proved : Et de ceo provablement
foit attaint de Overt Luil,

My Lord Coke, in his third Inftitutes, Fol. 12,
in his Comment upon that A&, explains the
Word (Prevablement) by faying it mult be Bpon
dire€t and manifelt Proof, not upon conjeftural
Prefumption, or Inference, or Strains of Wit ;
It muft not be commmne Argumentum,

Since that Time, feveral other Statutes have
been made in Favour of the Subjet, and for re-
gulating Trials in Cafes of High-Treafon : Par-
ucularly the late Statute gm0 Gulichni 3tii, which
enalls, that there muft be two lawful Witneffes
to the famne Overt-At 5 or one of them to one,
and the other of them to another Overt-Aé&t of
the fame Species of Treafon : And that no Evi-
dence fhall be admitted or given of any Overt-
Act that 15 not exprefly Jaid in the IndiCtment.

I think we nced not, at prefent, enter into the
whole of the Cafe, or trouble the Court with a
long Detail of Circumftances and many Witneflts s
but rather chufe to leave that on the Foot Mr,
Hungerford hath put 1t for your Lordfhip’s Con-
fideration,

It mult be admitted to us, that if the Prifoner
i not Guilty of an Overt-A&, legally proved o
be committed in the County of Ejfex, where the
Species of Treafon and all the Overt-Aé&s in the
{ndittment are Jaid 3 though all the other Faéls
i Aiddlcfex, or at Rome, or any where elfe, fhould
be never fo clearly made out, yet they do fail up-
an this Indimeént, and the Prifoner muft be ac-
atted,

_*Lz'iyer, Efy; Mich. 9G.1,

What have they to charge him with fuch ap
Overt-A&? Nothing, but the fingle Evidence
of Lynch! He is the only Perfon that fpeaks to
this Point. He fays, that they fet out from
Aldgate in Order to ride to my Lord North and
Grey’s, and alighted at the Greew Man 3 tha
what Difcourfe paffed becween them there was be-
fore Dinner  Fle owns he went down Stairs twice
before Dinner, and fpent fome time in looking,
out of the Window, to fee fome Perfons with
whom he was acquainted, and when the Dinner
(which was foon got ready) was braught up,
Mr. Layer’s Servant came and waited, and no
Difcourle pafs’d there during that time ; he tells
you, that Mr. Layer pulPd a Paper out of his
Pocket, and fhew’d it to the Witnefs, who read
Partof it, and that it contain’d treafonable Mat-
ter, a5 Jaid in the Indi€tment : This is the Sub-
ftance of what Lynch fwears, I took it, as well a3
I could, in Writing from his Mouth.

Now my Lord, Is this fuflicient to convict
this Gentleman of committing an Overt-A& of
High-Treafon in Effex 2 A bare pulling a Paper
out of s Pocket, and giving it him to read,
where fuch and fach a thing is fet forth, as by
him is call’d a treafonable Declaration !

My Lord, if he had pull’d out of his Pocker
the moft treafonable Paper that ever was invented,
is it any more than publifhing a Libel ? Is thac
an Overt-A¢t of Treafon ? I will fuppofe it a
Copy of the Pretender’s Declaration, or an Ori-
aginal, fuch a one as was burnt by the Sheriffs of
London two Days ago : If a Man had that, and
pull’d it out of his Pocket, and gave it to ano-
ther to read, is this High Treafon? I dare fay,
if any fuch Perfon falls into Mr, Ateriey’s Hands,
he, that always docs his Duty to the Crown as
he ought, will go no higher than an Information
for publithing a Libel ; and all this, my Lord,
s upon a Suppofition that the Fafts are true
which have becn fworn by Lyuch : But on the
other Hand, there are fo many unaccountable
Circumftances in the Relation, that an Affair of
that Confequence fhould be tranfacted in fuch a
Place; in fo fhort a time ; upon fuch an acci-
dental Bait; when one of the Confpirators was
cither gazing at the Window, or running up or
down Stairs the preatelt Part of the while, and
other Perfons were continually goine backwards
and forwards into the Room, or within hearing
of every Word that pafs’d there, we think it car-
ries with it fuch an Air of Improbability, that no
reafonable Man can give Credit to it, much lefs,
convict a Perfon of fo great a Crime, upon fuch
Evidence,

But fuppofe what pale’d at the Green Adan
(which T am very far from admitting) fhou’d be
adjudged an Overt-A& of High Treafon : How
s it prov’d ? Only by one Witnefs ; one fingle
Witnefs to the Faét in this County ! The Law
requires two Witnefles to convict a Man of High
Treafon, and that the Jury fhou’d be return’d
out of that County where the Fafs are laid ;
De Vicineto; Becaufes the Law foppofes them
more connufant of the Circumftances of a Cafe
which arifes in their Neighbourhood : But if the
Proof of one Overt-Aé in the County where
tis laid, by one Witnefs, fhould be fufficient to
lct them 1n to prove other Overt-A&ts, in diftant
Countrics, or in foreign Kingdoms, thefe funda-
mental Rules of Law would be totally fubverted :
How is 11 poflible for a Man to provide or defend

him(clf
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himfeIf againft fuch an Attack ? *11s fprmgm{g d
Mine upon him! Sudden and unexpected Ruin!

Mr. Attorney won’t fhew any Precedent, where
it ever was allowed to be good; that one Wit-
nefs might prove the Overt-Act In the  County
where it is laid, and that then they might give
Evidence of Overt-Aéts committed 10 any othe
County : If your Lordfhip is of Opion aganft
ns in this Particular, then we muit bug lcave to
oo farcher, and obferve upon the reft of thu_\Vi'tu
;Jt:fﬁ‘s they have called 5 not only_to take off their
Credit, but to contradict them mn a great mea-
fure. _

There hath been 2 great deal of other Evi-
dence given by them, bl!t we muf_k fu.bmlt It o
your Lordthip, whether it is matertal his efcaping
trom the Meflenger’s Houle, and his being taken
in St. Gegige’s Fields 5 and the Ividence begins to
run thin, or elfe, I believe they would not have
troubled the Court to call thole Perfons to th_:lt
which is no ways conducive to the Point now in
Judgment 5 if your Lordihip is of Opinion with
us, that this is not an Overt-Act in Effex, and le-
aally proved, being thereis but one Witnefs, and
attended with fuch Circumfiances, then the Matter
is atan Lnd 3 bat 1f your Lordflup is of another
Opriion, then we mult beg leave to go on, and
hlkewife to ofter whit we have from the Mouth of
our Witnefies, |

L. C. fuf.  You muft go on, you have mixed
vour Difcourie fo that no body knows what to
make of it; fometimes though the Facts are clear
as to the Overt-Act, you have fud as much againft
as for, the Improbability and Nature of the thing,
in Point of Law, asfor the other. I don’t fee
how we fhall come at it, unlefs you go through the
Crufe.

Mr. Soll. Gerz. My Lord, in the Obfervations
they have hitherto made, they have mixed Ob-
jeCtions as to the Fadt, together with fome Mat-
ters of Law, that feemed to be aimed at, and Ax-
cd upon no Point; to which we cannot give any
particular Anfwer ; thtre_fore we defire they may
go thro’ their whele Cafe, before we reply to any
Partof it

Mr. flmigerferd.  Since it is your Lordfhip’s
Pleaiure that we fhould now oo on, 1 fhall pro-
ceed to make fome Oblervations upon the reft of
the Evidence given againft the Prifoner ar the
Bar out of the CUUH[Y ol Eﬁx The Obﬁ:rvntions
which I thall make will be in the gencral only,
for I cannot defcend to all the particular Inftances
of the Evidence given, having not taken proper
Ivotes for that Pmpofe ; for 1 depended upon che
Infufficiency of the Evidence given touching any
Adt of High-Trealon, being committed in Effex s
and I hoped that from that very Circumftance the
Prifoner would have been acquitted 5 but however
Ikenow the learned Gentleman who is joined with
me, hath talen very exalt Notes of the whole E-
vidence, and therefore whae I omit, T am affured
he will abundantly fupply.

The fecond Witnels produced againft the Pri-
foner, is Mr. Plunkets, whofe Evidence 1 think
ought to weight but very little with any Judica-
ture whatloever 3 the Prifoner’s meeting with this
Man was very accidental in Lincoln’ s-Inn-Ficlds,
when they did not know each other, and yer they
inmediately entered into a Difcourfe of raifing a
Rebellion, and overturning two Kingdoms, and
that great Secret of knowing who was to be the
General 5 though Mr, Lynch, after long Acquain-
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tance with tlie Prifoner; could not get it out of
him ; yet it was communicated to the eminent
Witnefs Mr. Plunkett at the Arft Interview, with
an Addition of mentioning the Namies of two
very great Men more, the Earl of Strafford, and
General 77ebb, as well-affe@ted to the Undertal-
ing : But that noble Earl’s and Great General’s
Scrvices to their Country are too well known to
be blemifhed by fuch an incredible Evidence. Af-
ter fome Difcourfe betwixt the Prifoner and Plun-
kett about the Undertaking, in which there was
an Incident of a Difcourte ot another Nature, whe-
ther the Lutheran Religion were not preferable to
the Pepifh 5 and after (as Plunkett fays) the Prifo-
ner hiad communicated to him an Intention of in-
vading the Kingdom by fome Perfons fromabroad,
the Prifoner, in a very great Fit of Bounty,
prefents Mr. Plunkett with the Sum of half a
Crown.  This Relation feems to be fo improbable,
and in Truth, is delivered (or rather ftammered
out) in fo wretched and incoherent a Manner,
that I believe that no one that heard it, believes
a Word of 1.

The Truthis, the Scheme itfelf feems rather to
be 2 chimertcal Plan of fome crazy-pated Politi-
cians, than a folid Project of any Mcn of Senfe, or
in their Wits,  What Undertaking can there be fo
improbable, as that laid down by this Scheme,
wz. Seizing the General of the Army, leizing
the Tower, feizing the Exchange, and feizing the
Bank of Eugland 3 and all this with a Force
which do not appear to confift of above three or
four Men ? And for Money, the Sinews of War,
there feems to be nogreat Stock of that 3 Pluntert
hath about half a Crown at one Time, and half
a Guinea atanother; for as o the Guinea “feffreys
gave him, 1t doth not affeét the Prifoner. ~ Mr.
Lynch indeed, who feems to be a Man of greater
Weight, upon his frequent repeating himlelf to
be very uneafy, got about {even or cight Guineas.
I mention thefe Things, Gentlemen of the Jury,
to fhew how improbable this Part of the Evi-
dence is of it felf; and we hope to make it ap-
pear to you to be the more fo, by the Evidence
we fhall produce to the Reputation of the Wit
nefics,

As to the Papers of all Kinds produced as Evi-
dence againft the Prifoner, we hope he cannot
be affected by them, none of them being proved
to be of lus Hand-Writing 5 as to the Arms found
n the Prifoner’s Houfe, they are no more than
what Gentlemen ufually have for the Defence of
their Family, or their Recreations; and as far
his being at Reiie, itis admitted that the Evi-
dence is not given as a Faft of High-T'reafon ;
fo onght not to be confidered as any Ingredient
in the Prifoner’s Guile: As to the Prifoner’s cn-
deavouring to efcape, it is no Evidence of the
Prifoner’s Guile s Ido not enter into the Confide-
ration, whether the Cuftody of a Meflenger is a
leanl Prifon, or noy but there is hardly a Man
that is under any Confinement at all, but would
willingly efcape into Liberty :  Befides, the Prj-
foner hath futfered already for that Offence, if
it be onc ; he hath been putinto Irons, and his
ateempting to efcape is the only Reafon that i
afligned for it.

There was fomething {poke in the Introduétion
to this Accufation which was very remarkable,
viz. ‘That it was a Defign, if it had took L :
that would have engaged the whole Nation in
Blood, and would have deftroyed our civil and

religious
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teligions Rights: We who are of Counfel for
the Prifoner, have as great an Abhorrence of a
thing of that Nature as any Men can have : But
yer we hope, thar Mankind 1s not to be led a-
way with Shew and Colour, but to be guided by
Reafon and Matters of Fact.
People could have been raifed into a Rebellion
by a Proclmation which was never publifhed,
but by Mr, Lyuch’s teading two or three Lincs
of it? And which, by Mr. Lyucl’s own Lvi-
dence (which IHorgot to remark before) was 1m-
perfect s for he fays, that the Prifoncr told himy,
he intended to put it in the Pretender’s Name,
which it feems was not then done; and therefore
what was produced, was at the utmolt an im-
perfet Piece only— Or that the Prifencr
at the Bar, a Man of a Gentleman-fike Family
indeed, but of no great Iigure or Luftate m the
World, and having no Dependants or  numerous
Acquaintance, having no Provifion of Men, Arms,
or Ammunition, fhould, with the Afliftance only
of u Bundle of Papers, and of Mr. Lyuch and
Pluikett, overturn and enflave this whole King-
dom., God be thanked, the Proteftanc Britifh
Government is not fo cafily to be brought to
Deftruction : They might muach fooner (and yer
I think that very duficult too} have borrowed
100,000/, of the Bank of Euglund, upon the
blind Notes which they have produced, funt by Sir
Williair Iflis, than have brought about & Revolu-
tion, in this Kingdom, with fuch Materials as
they feemed to be poffefied of.

Thele things thurdore, my Lord, [ urge are
Circumilances which render ally or the greatedt
Part of tae Lvidence given, very improbable,

I fhall clofc the Whole with two Paragraphs
of * Speech made by one of your Lordfhip®s Ire-
deceflors, my Lord Chict Juftice Sergggs, ficting
in the fame facred Seat of Jultice, whare your
Lordfhip now fits 5 the Words are thele :

If once our Courts of Juftice come to be aw’d
or fway’d by vulgar Noife, and it Judges and
Juries fhould manag: Ciemiclves fo as would befl
comply with the ddumour of the Times, tis falfly
faid that Men are tried for their Lives or For-
tunes 5 they live by Chance, and enjoy what
they haveas the Wind blows, and with the fame
Certainty.

Let ws purlue the Plota God’s Name, and not
baulk any thing where there 1s Danger or Sufpicion
upon reafonable Grounds 3 but not fo over-do it, as
to fhew our Zeal, we will pretend to find what is
not; nor firctch one thing beyond what it will
bear, to reach another.

Mr. Ketelbey. T muft beg leave to go on where
T left off with Lyuch’s Evidence.

All Pluitett Tath was In Middlefex, but whe-
ther he 15 a credible Witnefs, you will hear by
and by. T cannot but take Notice of one thing
which 15 unaccountable 1n his Evidence, and ren-
ders 1t impoflible to be true: IHe gives you an
Account of a Letter which he receivid about
ten Weeks ago s he’s very politive as to the
Words of the Letter, I afked him over and over
agamn to 1, he repeats it as fuch 3 when we ex-
amined him farther, it appears that he could nei-
ther write nor read ; and how he came to re-
member fo pertectly, when he could not write
nor read himlelf, 15 very ftrange.  “Why, faith
he, it was read over to me twice, and we have

heard him repeat it three Times 5 and I appeal to
the Jury, if any one of them ean take upon hin
to repeat 1t again with that Iixactnefs the Witiefs
pretends to do,

Is 1t not cqually firange, my Lord, that Fef-

Is it poflible that fieys, a Man of Letters, the firft Time he faw

him, anignorantcommon Scrjeant in the Army,
fhould mmmediately fall mto a Difcourfe with
him about a Plot, and rafing a Rebellion, ag
if he had before been intimate with him? So
hikewife he faith of Fames Phodett, the fame
Day, the firft Day he came to him, he came o
his own Houfe, and there talked to him abour
this Afiair 5 asif they had nothing dlie to talk of
but Rebellion againft the Government.  And I
lubmit it to your Lordfhip and the Jury, whe-
ther 1t 13 likely or poffible, thar any Man of
common Senfe fhould  fubje@ himfelf in fo dan-
cerous an Aflur to another that was an utier
stranger t0 him : Bur here he gives you an - Ac-
count of two feveral Perfons under the fame -
prudence, the fame Infawation, Faies Pluiierr,
and the Nonjuring Parfon.  Bulides, there is 2
manifeft Contradiction in his Lvidence; for, at
firft he fud, that the Nonjuring Parfon told him
his Name was Feffieys the firll T'ime he fiw him s
and afterwards bang crofs examined, he fiid, the
f1rft tme he knew his Name 0 be fo was upon the
Recetpt of his Letter, and findine the Name 1
fubleribed, )

The next Witnefits gave an Account of the
ferzing the Papers, and ther Mrs. Moz, We afk-
cd her if thole Papers had been feen by any body
fince fhe had them, and whether the had  fhewn
themy or any other Papers, to Sir Yol Mecivs,
or any of his Servanis?  She pofitively Conics it
and faith they were not.

don’t know whether theie Papers were feen
by any body, for we have not one Word of them
n our Bricls, and the very producing them is a
Surprize to us; but we fhall prove, that this
Woman fhew’d fome Papers to Sir foby Meeies,
or hus Man, and that thereupon Notice was given,
and the Papers foon afier feized.  But whether
thele are they or not, T cannot well. I oblerved
before upon the Evidence of Mr, Delafave, Mr.
Staiyen ard Mr, Deyly 5 and the’ your Lord-
fhip was of Opinion, that it was fufficient to have
the Paper called the Scheme read, yer we hope
'us far from being a conclufive Lividence againt
the Prifoner, it not being found in - his Cuftody ;
and we fhall produce feveral who now are, and
for many Years have been welb acquainted with
hi§ Hand-Writing, who will give your Lord-
(hip their Thoughes of it. T believe Mr. Atoiuey
would not have endeavoured to call Witnefles
that 1t was fign’d by him, and was his own Hand-
Writing, it he had not thought it material 3 yet
we hope that when our Wimelles are heard, no
Credic will be given by the Jury to it, as a Fa&
to charge the Prifoner.  We fhall give you an
Account, 1f my Inflrutions are true, that Plun-
kett, Lynch, and Mrs, Mafon, who are the Per
fons chiefly concerned in the Courle of this Lvi-
dence, are of fo fcandalous and vile a Charaéter,
that no Regard at allis to be had to their Tefti
mony. The moft honeft Men may miftake in
their Lvidence, as Mr. Stanyan is pleafed to fay ;
if he made any Mittakes, I am fatisfied they
procecded from a Defe@t of Memory, and no
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-fiori. and he is certainly excufable 3 but as for
}::l)leﬁ%[:;faer three, Lyuch, Plunkett, and, Mafon
when you fhall have heard half what we have a-
gainft them, I dare fay they will not have the
[ealt Credit, though they had given a much more
probable Evidence than they have done. * But
furely as it 1s, their Evidence cannot have {u fici-
ent Weight with you, to prevail againft the Life,
Eftate, and Family of the Gentleman here before
you, and to fixa perpetual Stin upon him and his
Polterity. . .

Mr, [fungerford. My Lord, we fhall call our
Witneffes, and begin with my Lord Norsh and

Grev. . .
Mr, Azt Gen, We defire to know what it is
you call my Lord North and Grey to prove.
Mr. Hungerford. He is to give an Account of
what pafied at his Houfe, what Mr: Zynch faid

when he was there. #
L. C. Fust. Then you do admit that he was at

the Green Man, and he went to my Lord Noyth
and Grey's afterwards. _

Mr. Ketelbey, Thereis their Sheet-Anchor,

Mir. If!ﬁ.{gﬁ;fw'«i We admit we were at the
Green Man, but committed no High=Treafon
there 3 your Lordthip hath fet us right in the
Point of timing our Evidence in the Nature of
this Tranfaction 3 it is proper to begin with the
Mafter of the Green Man.

N, Mackreth, {worn,

Mr. Hungerford, Mr. Mackreth, pray give my
Lord and the Jury an Account, whether Mr, Layer
or Mr. Lyich were at your Houfe laft Summer, or

how long they were there. _
Mr. Ketelbey, I think you are Mafter of the

Green Nair,

Mackreth,  Yes, Sir, upon the Qath 1 have
taken, I don’t know that My Layer was ever at
my Houle.

Mr, Ketelbey. Do you remember any thing of
the Saturday the 2 5th of August ¢

Mackreth, No, I can’t.

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you remember whether you

were at Home that Day ?
Meckreth, T can’ctell @ If 1t was on a Satar-

day 3 on Setwrday 1 ofien attend the Juftices at
Lford.

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you know whether you was
at Home that Day ¢

Mackreth, 1 cannot tell.

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you know Mr. Layer 2

Mackreth. I never faw him before in my Life,
as I know of.

Mr. Ketelbgy, Was there never any Enquiry

after him at your Houfe ?
Mackreth, No: There was the Duke of Graf-

ton and my Lord Hallifex came to my Houfe
fome time {ince, The Duke of Graften intimated
fomething of this Affair; the Duke of Grafron
faid to me, you are to be hang’d : Hang’d for
what, faid I.  You and your Friend Layer are to
be hang’d.  Said I, I never faw him in my Life.
‘They walked to and fro in the Hall, What, faid
they, do you know nothing of this Layer 2 No,
I don’t, as I hope to be faved, diretly nor in-
direltly.

Mus, Mackreth, {fworn.

Mr. Hungerford, Pray do you remember any
Travellers at your Houfe upon the 25th of -
gusf lafk ?

Mr. Ketelbey, Do you remember when Mr;
Layer was at your Houfe ?
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‘Mrs: Mackreth.. 1 never faw the Gentleman in
my Life, as I know of. P _

Mr. Ketelbey. Are yod conftantly at Home?

Mis, Mackreth, . Yes, I have hardly time fo go
to Church. - - .

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you ever-hear any thing of
a Declaration read ? |

Mrs, Mackreth. 1 never heard any thing of it
in my Days, my Lord.

Mr. Hungerford, Pray do you know the Room
one Pair of Stairs forward in your Houle ?

Mrs, Mackreth, They dre all forward, my
Lord. , ,

Mr. Hungerford, How far is the Bar from the
Roomn ? | |

Mrs. Mrckreth. My Bar is below Stairs cven
with the Sair-Cafe; |
 Mr, Hungerford, If any thing is read there aloud,
mn any of thofe Rooms one Pair of Stairs, could
you have heard it 2 +

Mrs, Mackreth. To be fure, my Lord.

| Fobn Paulfreeman, fworn.

Mr. Hungerford. Do you remember any thing
of this Gentleman being at your Mafter’s Houle
on the 25th of August laft ?

Paulfreeman. Iremember nothing at all of it?

Mr: Hungerford. You remember nothing of it 2

Paulfreeman. Nos to my Knowledge [ never
fee him before in my Life.

Mr. Huugerford. Do you remember any thing
of fome People dining there on a Boef-Stake ?
meré‘}'ﬂfmrm. No; Idon’t remember any thing
of it.
~ Mr, Hungerford. Do you remember this Gen-
tleman’s Face again ?

. Panlfrecinan. No 3 I don’t remember that ever
I faw him before. _

h Mr. Hungerferd,  Ts my Lord North and Grey -
there ?

- Mr. [ungerford.  We fhall examinc my Lord
North and Grey only as to fome Paflages at his
Lordfhip’s Houfe, and chiefly as to the Charatter
of this Lynch, and what a Charatter he gave of
himfelf 5 generally, aMan will give a good Charac-
ter of himiclf, but he did otherwife.

| Lord Nerth and Grey, fworn.

Mr. Hungerford. If your Lordfhip pleafes to
give my Lord and the Jury what Account you
have of one Lyuch,

Lord Noith and Grey, My Lord, that Gen-
tleman that goes by the Name of Lyuch, 1 faw
twice 3 he came twice to my Houle in Effex: I
little thought that my having feen him twice at
my Houle, fhould be the Occafion of my com-~
mg here in fuch a manner. The Gendeman
was wholly a Stranger to me, and 1 have never
feen him fince. As to my klf, I cannot fay I
know any thing of him perfonally. The only
thing 1 can fay, is what he faid of himiclf. It
1s a little hard for a Man of Honour to betray
Converfation, what paffed over a Bottle of Wine
in Difcourfe; but fince your Lordfhip requires it,
I muft fubmit.

The chief of our Difcourfe was—— He was re-
prefented to me as a Stranger newly come to
England, and had a Mind to fee my Houfe and
Gardens. He was introduced, and brought
there accordingly by Mr. Layer, and I received
him civilly. In procefs of Time he told me the
Hiftory of his Life thus; that he was not a
Spanifh, but an Irifbman, and, my Lord, I think,
educated in the Camp under an Uncle of his.

Q_q He



